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Enclosure 5 
 

 

 Minutes of the Governing Body Meeting   
 held on Tuesday 25 May 2021 at  2.30 – 4.00pm 

 
By Teams Link 

 
Present: 
Dr Mark Dornan Chair 
Dr David Jones Assistant Clinical Chair  
Mark Adams Chief Officer  
Michael Burke Lay Member 
Paul Gertig Lay Member 
Mandy Coppin Lay Member 
Jeff Hurst Deputy Lay Chair 
Margaret Stewart Lay Member 
Oliver Wood Lay Member 
Dr Elizabeth Moylett Member Practice Representative 
Sheinaz Stansfield Member Practice Representative 
Dr Peter Ward Member Practice Representative 

Jackie Cairns Director for Newcastle System 
Joe Corrigan  Chief Finance Officer/Chief Operating Officer 
Bill Cunliffe Secondary Care Clinician 
Dr Dominic Slowie Medical Director 
Lynn Wilson Director for the Gateshead System 

Julia Young Executive Director of Nursing, Patient Safety & Quality 
 
In Attendance:  
Neil Hawkins Head of Corporate Affairs 
Louise McAndrew Minute Taker 
 
 
Welcome and Introductions 
Dr Mark Dornan, Clinical Chair, welcomed the members of the Governing Body to the 
meeting. 
 
 
2021/05/01 Mental Health Presentation 
Dominic Slowie, Medical Director, and Catherine Richardson, Senior Programme Manager 
and Commissioner Mental Health, Learning Disabilities, Autism and Dementia, gave the 
presentation which looked at the following areas: 

• Children and Young People’s Services 

• Autism and ADHD Assessment/ Neurodevelopmental pathway (Adults) 

• Integrated Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 
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• Digital Mental Health Support 
 
There is also a paper at item 11.2 which goes into more detail. 
 
Dominic explained that mental health services are vast and complex and many challenges 
existed before covid which have been exacerbated by the pandemic.  
 
Margaret Stewart, Lay Member, commented that the presentation had been very clear and 
helpful but she has concerns that the waiting list initiatives alone are not going to solve the 
issues.  It said they were looking at bringing in other providers but are they available and 
why are CNTW not offering to help with the backlog?  It was confirmed that CNTW are 
working with us but yes, there may be some competition.  
 
Elizabeth Moylett, Member Practice Representative, raised adult psychiatric services and 
personality disorders – are there any plans to offer support for this and what is the provision 
at the moment - does it exist?  Dominic explained that some patients can be helped by 
Talking Therapies but as to a formal service to be part of the IAPT specification it is a deficit 
which we need to include in discussions.  Catherine Richardson added that it is part of the 
transformation work with CNTW which is in draft format at the moment but will be shared 
when complete.  Lynn Wilson, Director for the Gateshead System, added that in Gateshead 
they are working with VCS and are also looking at alternative models to pull together a 
proposal. 
 
Jeff Hurst, Lay Member, was very interested to hear about diagnosis of pre-school children 
as there are more children coming into nursery showing signs of ADHD and personality 
disorders, but there are no resources available in the area and these children take up 
significant resource in the nursery so anything to ease this would be welcome.  Dominic 
clarified that the pathway is not proposing to change but to address the backlog but there 
will be an opportunity to look at broader pre-diagnostic support where it is suspected, but 
not diagnosed. 
 
Jeff also noted that the Governing body have recognised, for a number of years, the 
problems within mental health but we have not heard what the route of the problem is.  
Dominic outlined that mental health services have always been under invested in and even 
when funding was made available it was found that it had not always been used for that 
purpose.  Funding for mental health services is very complex as there are a huge amount of 
service lines.  He did assure members that we can improve the data set around waiting 
times and it will definitely move forward in the next ten months in the areas above. 
 
Mandy Coppin, Lay Member, expressed a conflict of interest as she is Chief Executive of 
Streetwise and noted that they currently have no waiting lists as funding has been received 
so urged the CCG to not go outside of the current providers just fund them appropriately as 
it works.  Mandy would ask to really look into this locally and noted that Catherine has 
worked to get the funding to where it is needed.  We need to have the offer of services 
across the board not just virtually.  There are some fantastic services on our doorstep that 
just need funding adequately. 
 
Joe Corrigan, Chief Finance Officer/Chief Operating Officer, agreed that giving the funding 
directly to the third sector has been a game changer in recent months.  We did have a 
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standstill budget from CNTW which is actually a cut but now it is by following the funding 
upstream which has seen the improved figures and we have seen an immediate response. 
Jackie Cairns, Director for Newcastle System, noted that in Newcastle they are looking at 
the voluntary sector and local services. 
 
Oliver Wood, Lay Member, wanted to reiterate the points regarding early intervention.  
There are no measures to hold providers accountable for their actions and he feels that we 
need to be sure people with personality disorders aren't discriminated against. 
 
Mark Adams, Chief Officer, wanted to make the point that a huge amount of effort is being 
focused on how we develop and put services back in place and this will hopefully allow us 
to do more in the time that the CCG has left and move the agenda on. 
 
Paul Gertig, Lay Member, noted that he is disappointed with how CNTW have dealt with the 
IAPT issue and that this has been moved on by the work of the CCG and shows people 
need to be more flexible when looking at how to solve problems.  He queried how long is it 
really going to take to get autism assessments down to the three month ambition?  It was 
confirmed that we have asked CNTW to lead the service and develop a proposal of what it 
would take and they have 3 months to complete that.  We hope to have credible plan to put 
into action within the next 6-8 months. 
 
 
2021/05/02  Apologies for absence: 
There were no apologies. 
 
 

 
 

2021/05/03 Declarations of Interest 
Mandy Coppin declared and interest in the mental health items as she is Chief Executive of 
Streetwise. 
 
 
2021/05/04 Quoracy 
It was confirmed that the meeting was quorate. 
 
 
2021/05/05 Minutes of previous meeting held on 23 March 2021 
The minutes were agreed as a true record.   
 
 
2021/05/06 Matters arising from the Minutes 
There were no matters arising that were not covered on the agenda. 
 
Mark Dornan did want to thank the LMC and those involved in finding a way forward 
regarding the Gateshead Agreement.  He noted there is a forthcoming meeting for PCNs, 
the LMC and CCG to get the widest sense of primary care representation and there is a 
pragmatic agreement in place at the moment around primary care representation.  There is 
a leadership meeting every Tuesday morning which hopefully gives more ability to go 
forward in a more collaborative way. 
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2021/05/07 Report from Chief Officer 
Mark Adams gave his update: 

• Mark thanked everyone for their continued efforts with all the challenges we have 
faced and are still facing 

• There is still a lot of work to do around vaccinations and while the restrictions are 
being lifted we need to be mindful of the new variants that are appearing  

• We are also looking at recovery regarding putting services back into place and the 
backlog of patients  

• On top of all of this we still need to be mindful regarding CCG business and we are 
just coming to the end of preparing the annual accounts and reports and also we are 
engaged in planning work which covers 2 periods Half year 1 and 2 – planning so far 
on H1 trying to understand the financial regimes 

• There is also the work starting looking at moving to the new structure.  We are still 
waiting for the exact dates when the White Paper will be read in Parliament.  We 
continue to work with colleagues across the ICS and the ICP regarding what the new 
way of working will look like and what the ICS will look like but we are still awaiting 
the guidance and the HR framework but the expectation is it may not be available 
until after the reading in Parliament. 

 
Following a query from Elizabeth Moylett it was confirmed, to the best of our knowledge, 
that no members of staff have left the CCG due to uncertainty but some have moved to new 
positions as we have not stopped the development of new roles and posts.   

 
The CCG Governing Body NOTED the contents of the update. 

 
 
2021/05/08 Patient and Public Involvement Updates 
 
8.1 CCG PPIE Update 
Mandy Coppin presented the paper which provided a summary of involvement and 
engagement programmes and projects across Newcastle and Gateshead. 
 
Effective involvement, engagement, patient experience with successful partnership working 
will improve commissioning decisions to meet the needs of the local population. If this is not 
done, there will be a missed opportunity to engage with patients and the public to support 
the CCGs organisational objectives to deliver improved services and outcomes for patients. 
 
Mandy commented that the report speaks for itself and she noted she had Chaired the 
Community Forum last week in which sixteen organisations were represented who were 
very keen regarding covid responsibilities and how they could help within their communities. 

 
Paul Gertig commented that it would be useful to see the outcomes of the consultations in 
future reports. 
 
Julia Young, Executive Director of Nursing, Patient Safety & Quality, noted that she had 
presented at the Forum and there had been a healthy debate regarding the changes 
coming down the path and moving to a more place based focus. 
 
Jackie Cairns noted that in Newcastle they are also looking at how they can work with 
partners on how to engage with neighbourhoods. 
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Paul Gertig felt that there needs to be more work done to get patient forums going in 
practices to look at a number of issues and there needs to be more emphasis on supporting 
practices to get these groups up and running.  Jackie Cairns noted that she would look to 
add this to PCN level discussions. 

 
The CCG Governing Body NOTED the contents of the report. 

 
 

2021/05/09 Quality, Finance & Performance  
 
9.1 Quality, Finance & Performance Report 
Julia Young and Joe Corrigan presented the paper which gave an ICP view of Quality, 
Performance, Contracting and Finance across Newcastle Gateshead, North Tyneside and 
Northumberland CCGs.  The report aims to provide a high level view of performance quality 
and finance, as well as providing benchmarking performance data in the appendices. 
 
Executive Summary 
There are ongoing risks detailed below to sustainable delivery of the national and local 
performance standards, and mitigating actions are in place to address these risks.  
The key risks demonstrated in this report are compounded by the Covid 19 pandemic and 
all Trusts are working through the recovery with the following risks: 
 

• Infection control and social distancing risks 

• Capacity and workforce shortfalls  

• Bed availability and theatre sessions  
 
Despite such challenges, Newcastle Hospitals NHS FT, Northumbria Healthcare NHS FT 
and Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS FT continue to be rated ‘Outstanding’, and 
Gateshead Health NHS FT “Good” by the CQC. 
 
Newcastle Gateshead and North Tyneside CCGs have been rated Outstanding, in the 
Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF) and Northumberland CCG has a rating of 
Good. For 2019/20 the IAF has been superseded by the Oversight Framework and the 
initial dashboard is found in appendix 3. 
 
System key Achievements to date for Newcastle Gateshead, North Tyneside and 

Northumberland  

• Patient satisfaction rates from the GP survey have shown recent improvements 

• Dementia Diagnosis is above the standard across the system 

• Early Intervention in Psychosis standards are being met across the system 

• All 3 North ICP CCGs are currently meeting the cancer 31 day standards for 
radiotherapy and surgery. 

• NEAS are currently meeting the national response times for Cat 1 and Cat 4 

• IAPT waiting times to first appointment 
 
The following standards are currently not being met across all 3 North ICP CCGs 

• Diagnostic delays at NUTH NHS FT impacting all 3 North ICP CCG diagnostic 
waiting time performance 
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• Referral to Treatment waiting times 

• Cancer waiting times 

• NHSI SI Framework: 60 day reporting 
 
Quality and Safety   

• Summary Dashboard for North ICP CCGs - Newcastle Gateshead CCG, 

Northumberland CCG and North Tyneside CCG Summary Dashboard for all North 

ICP Providers - Gateshead Health NHS FT, Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS FT 

and Northumbria Healthcare NHS FT, Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS FT, and 

NEAS 

• Quality and Safety Exceptions summary for the North ICP. 

 

Performance  

• NHS Constitution – CCG View for Newcastle Gateshead CCG, Northumberland 
CCG and North Tyneside CCG 

• NHS Constitution Foundation Trust View for North ICP Providers - Gateshead Health 
NHS FT, Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS FT and Northumbria Healthcare NHS 
FT 

• Performance Exceptions Summary for the North ICP 
 

Contracting  

• Following national guidance, usual contracting arrangements have been suspended 
and all providers have been placed on block contracts. A brief update on current 
arrangements is included from page 29. 
 

Finance  

• This section reports on the full financial position for the financial year 2020/21, 
pending audit review. 

 
Appendices 

• Benchmarking Information giving a CCG and FT View across the Cumbria and North 
East region 

• Quality Premium performance across Newcastle Gateshead CCG, North Tyneside 
CCG and Northumberland CCG 

• CCG Oversight Framework performance across North ICP CCGs 

  
Just recently there have been the presentations of quality accounts from the providers and 
it was quite overwhelming to hear what has been achieved during the pandemic.  There 
have been workforce challenges as well as NuTH taking patients from other areas in the 
country but even so a lot of areas have maintained training and gave assurance that deep 
dives have been undertaken to look at any issues.  It was noted we are looking to re-
establish the QRG meetings as we had pre-covid and so be able to assure members the 
report and plans in place are robust.  Margaret Stewart noted that she is getting slightly 
frustrated by often common sense initiatives introduced to tackle to quality and performance 
issues - can they not just become part of daily routines and maybe not call them initiatives. 
Julia Young responded that there are discussions taking place around action plans being 
rather vague and so working on them to be written and carried out in a smart way.  Dominic 
Slowie added that we need to have assurance that learning/recommendations from serious 



OFFICIAL  
 

    

 

7  

incidents are not just vague and we need to see the details of what they are going to do and 
how it compares to previous months/years.  Quality has improved and the trusts are safer 
than previous years and we should be proud of the work that has been done. 

 
Regarding cancer Bill Cunliffe, Secondary Care Clinician, reported that he had attended a 
meeting earlier today of the Regional Scoping Group and noted that they are almost at a 
point to sign off the advice for primary care colleagues.  There had also been a tentative 
suggestion that, regarding bowel cancer, the number of operations being carried out is 
increasing and the suggestion made was that the covid crisis has made people think about 
their health and their symptoms so more are being diagnosed and therefore operated on.    

 
Michael Burke, Lay Member, commented that on p31 of the report other services are down 
½ million units of activity and Joe Corrigan clarified that this was a mixed bag but 
predominantly pathology services. 

 
The CCG Governing Body NOTED the contents of the report. 

 
 
2021/05/10 Director of Public Health Updates 
 
Gerald Thompkins, Gateshead Public Health, and Michelle Stamp, Newcastle Public 
Health, unfortunately had to leave the meeting before this item and so the slides will be 
emailed to members and any questions taken via email. 
 

The CCG Governing Body NOTED the contents of the update. 
 

 
2021/05/11 Strategic Items 
 
11.1 Annual Workforce, Human Resource and Organisational Development Report 

2020/2021 
Joe Corrigan presented the report which provided the Governing Body with an update of 
Workforce, Human Resource (HR) and Organisational Development (OD) information for 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG for the financial year 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021. 
  
The CCG aims to be recognised locally as a ‘good place to work’ where culture, 
management practices and performance are acknowledged as best practice and where we 
have not got this right, seek to improve so that we do our best for staff, and  job 
opportunities attract the best candidates. This will be our continued aim and we will report 
progress through the Workforce, HR, and OD report to the Governing Body. 
 
Our workforce is our most valuable asset, therefore the way we develop our organisation 
and our staff is extremely important to us. Our focus must be on developing our capacity 
and capability to balance the challenges of providing high quality, safe services with the 
efficiencies necessary for re-investment in order to achieve our financial plans. 
 
As noted earlier Joe wanted to confirm that no member of staff have cited the 
organisational changes as a reason for leaving the CCG. 
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He also wanted to thank all the Health Advocates for the work they had done in the last 
year and for the coming year. 
It was noted that Better Health at Work (BHAW) programme is now being rolled out in 
primary care with good success. 
 
Julia Young noted that the CCG is in the process of undertaking another staff H&WB survey 
as we are mindful that staff have different pressures at different times and we cannot 
please everyone all of the time.  It has been a difficult year and the survey will help build on 
what has gone before and also help steer how we move forward and the best way to 
support our staff up to next March. 
 
Michael Burke noted that in section 7 of the report it talks about a team session with the 
Gateshead CCG team and the Local Authority and it was confirmed that there is work going 
on to do the same in Newcastle. 
 

The CCG Governing Body NOTED the contents of the report. 
 
11.2 Mental Health and Neurodevelopmental Update 
Dominic Slowie presented the paper which provided an overview of the current position and 
high-level plans to improve service delivery in 3 specific service areas:  

• Children and Young People Mental Health 

• Autism and ADHD Assessment and Neurodevelopmental pathway 

• Integrated Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 
 
This paper was in addition to the presentation given at the beginning of the meeting. 
 

The CCG Governing Body RECEIVED this report for information and accepted that 
service recovery plans are in place to improve current position. 

 
 
2021/05/12  Assurance, Risk & Governance items 
 
12.1  Risk Register Report 
Neil Hawkins, Head of Corporate Affairs, presented the report which provided a risk 
management update for review and discussion, including a report on the CCG Assurance 
Framework and an update of any operational risks scored 10 or above. 
 
Neil shared his screen to take members through the report and he noted that the risk 
regarding cyber attacks has been increased as the impact could be catastrophic and the 
risk regarding PPE has been removed. 

 
Sheinaz Stansfield, Member Practice Representative, queried the risk around IAPT 
services and if the additional funding threads will change the risk?  It was clarified that the 
Trust can use the money which is intended for them anyway so should not change the risk.   
Sheinaz also noted that the primary care mental health worker has a foot in both community 
and the mental health services. 

 
Michael Burke noted that the Audit Committee had had a discussion regarding red risks that 
have been on the register for a long time and the need to start to see some sort of progress 
and he asked if this could be discussed at a future development session.  Neil Hawkins 
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added that they are looking at risk matrix and how high risks are scored using a matrix from 
NHS England to have a level footing across the ICS area which may touch on risk appetite.   
 

The CCG Governing Body NOTED the Assurance Framework. 
 
 
2021/05/13 Committee Minutes/Reports to be received for information 
 
13.1(a) Minutes of the CCG Executive Committee meeting 9 March, 23 March, 20 

April & 27 April 2021 
The CCG Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 

  
(b) Minutes from the Quality, Safety & Risk Committee held on 4 March 2021 

The CCG Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 
 

(c) Minutes from the Audit, Finance & Performance Committee 20 January 2021 
The CCG Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 

 
(d) Minutes from the Primary Care Commissioning Committee 27 October, 24 

November, 22 December 2020, 26 January, 23 February & 30 March 2021 
The CCG Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 

 
(e) Minutes from the Joint Commissioning Committee 11 March 2021. 

The CCG Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 
 
 
It was noted that it would be good to have an update around eating disorder services.  It 
was also noted that we have never reviewed the promises made in Deciding Together on 
what we have managed to do against what we said.  Dominic Slowie added that there is a 
new eating disorder service about to launch which we have not had.  
 
Sheinaz Stansfield reported that there are pressures in general practice especially on 
receptionists but she did note that her practice are involved with the Health & Wellbeing 
award which has had a massive impact and the morale in the practice has improved. 
 
  
The meeting closed at 3.50 pm. 
 
2021/05/14 Date of Next Meeting 
The next meeting will be held on Tuesday 13 July 2021, Via Teams.  
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Patient, Public and Carer Involvement and Engagement Update 
June 2021 

 
1.  Introduction  
This paper summarises progress on Patient, Public and Carer, Involvement and 
Engagement work across Newcastle and Gateshead since the last report in May 2021. 
 
 
2. Patient, Public, Carer and Partner Online Engagement Forums 
 
2.1 Joint Newcastle-Gateshead - Forum meetings: 
At the June Forum meeting, public, stakeholders and attendees from across the 
Voluntary, Community Sector (VCS) heard presentations from Marc Hopkinson, 
Associate Director for Transformation, System Resilience and EPRR on the move to 
place-based working including how the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)and the 
Local Authority are working together. Kate Bowman, Development Manager at 
Information NOW provided a Mental Health update. Dominic Slowie, Medical Director 
provided an update on the local NHS recovery after COVID and an update on the 
direction of travel. All three presenters also answered any questions raised by the 
attendees.  
 
2.2 Joint Newcastle – Gateshead- Alcohol abuse prevention work with ICS 
and Newcastle University:  
The Engagement team has been leading for the CCG on a joint piece of engagement 
work with the ICS and Newcastle University on their development of a revised alcohol 
intervention strategy for patients who are possibly heavy drinkers but who have not 
yet developed a chronic dependence or are at the complex needs end of the scale. As 
part of the work, we have also been working with our partners in Involve North East, 
as the ICS required a benchmark of GP and patient attitudes research, prior to 
completing the first stage of their work with Newcastle University. The survey looked 
at patient attitudes across both Gateshead and Newcastle places. The draft report is 
now completed, and this will be considered and taken forward by the joint project team.  
The CCG Forum members and the Gateshead Long Term Conditions Group played a 
helpful role in both responding to the survey that formed the basis of the report, and in 
terms of cascading the survey questions through their own networks. 
 
2.3 Joint Newcastle – Gateshead - Patient Media screens 
The engagement team are supporting the process and review of content to ensure it 
is suitable/accessible etc and is written in layman terms for patients to 
understand.  Upon information review, it will be sent this back to the place- based team 
so it can be shared with the practices.  A final process mapping flow chart is being 
produced by the Enablement Team and then work in this area can commence. 
 
2.4 Joint Newcastle – Gateshead – Forum events/Steering group members 
The team are looking to engage with a wider outreach of diverse population to be 
involved in key decisions and have their local voice embedded in the delivery of 
strategies as we move to place-based forum meetings in the future.  There have been 
regular communication meetings to review the current media platforms and how to 
maximise engagement with the introduction of various other media tools. 
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3 Gateshead Place Engagement 
 
3.1 Long Term Conditions: 
At the last Long-Term Conditions stakeholder group meeting, members raised issues 
about struggling to make appointments with GP surgeries. This perhaps reflects 
broader access, demand and backlogs that are being experienced more broadly 
across the system. Sam Hood, Portfolio Manager, Gateshead System agreed to feed 
back to the local GP network on member comments. 
  
3.2 Children and Young People (CYP):  
The CYP team continues to hold a regular engagement group meeting for Gateshead 
System Children, Young People. This has members from health, local authority, social 
care, police, education and the voluntary sector, as well as a representative from the 
CCG Engagement team. The purpose of the group is to support new ways of working 
more collaboratively going forward and will help to ensure that all partners are linked 
up in regards to developments / projects supporting each other across the Gateshead 
system rather than just our own individual organisations. The group has now launched 
a joint engagement newsletter that is being distributed across Gateshead on a 
quarterly basis, and the first edition has now been widely distributed. The second 
edition is currently in development.  
The team has also created an awareness calendar identifying various events 
throughout the year that are significant and resonate with the CCG's core aims and 
objectives. The team appreciates that awareness is important to increase enthusiasm 
and support and encourage action. CYP will work with the Engagement team to 
promote these events throughout the year via a variety of platforms including social 
media, websites and relevant local organisations.  
The CYP team is also currently working to develop a Teenage Resource, based on 
the principles of The Little Orange Book (but for teenagers).  - 
https://newcastlegatesheadccg.nhs.uk/your-health/children-and-young-people/little-
orange-book/.   The development of this teenage resource is Gateshead System led, 
but linking with colleagues from Primary Care, Secondary Care, Public Health, 
Education, Social Care and Mental Health. The resource will contain specific advice 
on topics such as mental health, body image, weight difficulties, bullying, smoking, 
sexual exploitation, drugs and alcohol. Embracing co-production values and ways of 
working, we are ensuring that the development of this resource is driven by young 
people to find out what they would like to see included.   The team is also currently 
soliciting young people's views as to the most appropriate formats and mechanisms 
for distribution, as well as potentially developing an App version.  
Following successful phase 1 engagement, we are now undertaking interactive virtual 
sessions (using Menti) with young people participation groups across Gateshead. 
 
3.2.1 Year 9 GP Awareness sessions: 
The CYP team have been facilitating a new "virtual" Year 9 GP assemblies programme 
across schools to educate our young people about the local services a GP offers to 
help ensure they are mentally, emotionally and physically healthy. Dr Brian Liddle 
delivered the first virtual presentation on 26 May 2021 to Whickham School in 
Gateshead, alongside two school nurses. Dr Fiona Steedman has also delivered a 
virtual presentation on 11 June 2021 to River Tyne Academy, working with the local 
school nurse. 

https://newcastlegatesheadccg.nhs.uk/your-health/children-and-young-people/little-orange-book/
https://newcastlegatesheadccg.nhs.uk/your-health/children-and-young-people/little-orange-book/
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3.2.2 SEND: Awareness Sessions for Schools 
The team has recently been offering awareness sessions and have so far met with 
Primary schools, Secondary schools, Further Education Colleges, Children and Young 
People's Service and Parent Carer Forum.  The focus of the sessions was to offer 
support to schools, and in particular, for children and young people who require an 
Education Health and Care Plan who have Special Educational Needs and are 
requiring additional input from teaching staff on a daily basis.  The idea was to inform 
schools of service availability to help them identify which health professionals were 
involved with the child/young person to ensure they are being approached to provide 
the important health information which would be included in the plan.   The session 
was also aimed at ensuring schools are contacting the family GP, as the key 
professionals who hold vital information into who is currently supporting the child and 
will have relevant health history.   
  
3.2.3 Learning Disabilities Annual Health Checks 
The CCG SEND team have now made an initial contact with all our Gateshead GPs, 
including those practices who were not meeting their targets, to invite patients with a 
Learning Disability diagnosis for an Annual Health check.  (From the age of 14 years 
all patients with Learning Disabilities are entitled to an annual health check at their GP 
practice).   Since then there has been ongoing work to increase awareness of the 
health checks and also increase numbers attending the GP practice.  The CCG SEND 
team are working hard to raise that awareness of the Annual Health Check targets 
through this work. The team are currently working with a Gateshead practice who has 
a good model in place to invite patients for their health check and it is planned to 
cascade our findings to those practices who continue to struggle to reach their 
target.  By sharing best practice it is hoped that all patients with a Learning Disability 
between the ages of 14-25 years will be receiving the advice and support they require 
from the GP Practice, making the transition to adulthood much easier if the young 
person is already familiar with their GP through attending for these checks. 
  
3.2.4 Special School Eye Care Service 
NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI) are currently funding a scheme for all 
children and young people attending special schools to be offered the opportunity to 
have an eye test on a yearly basis in school.   This is a fully NHSEI funded service, 
which is anticipating full national coverage within a five-year period.   The SEND team 
have linked with our six special schools in Gateshead and supported them to engage 
with the service and all have signed up to commence with the service at the end of 
September/early October 2021.  An engagement event with schools took place on 16 
June.  The clinical training session for providers across the North East is happening 
soon. The first of 3 full days of clinician training will include a 'Familiarisation Day' 
working closely with each school that they have been allocated.  This session enables 
the Eye Care Team to meet key members of the school staff, familiarise themselves 
with the school environment (this will be the first time many of them will have been in 
a special school), and potentially to experience some of the classes first hand. 
  
3.2.5 Special Heads Meetings 
The team currently attend meetings of the Special School Head Teachers which is 
held fortnightly and is also attended by the Children with Disabilities Team and Public 
Health service.  Each head teacher gives an update of their school and any difficulties 
they are facing or any achievements which have been realised.  As health 
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representative I give update on behalf of the CCG and our work within our CYP team 
and offer support to the schools should they need it.  Current discussions are around 
equipment and therapies within school and the budgets needed to support this. 
 
 
4 Gateshead Mental Health (MH) Transformation Project  
The Engagement team has commenced work with the MH Operations Group (which 
includes representation from the local authority, Voluntary and Community Sector 
(VCS) representatives, NHS provider organisations (including Cumbria, 
Northumberland, Tyne & Wear NHS Foundation Trust (CNTW) and Gateshead Health 
Foundation Trust) to begin to develop a communications plan to cover all of the 
workstreams. This includes how communications feed into the Project Leadership and 
Governance; the Workforce Review; new multi-disciplinary community mental health 
hubs, as well as how we map social determinants of MH and health inequalities to 
PCN geography. Other work involves supporting the team around the residential care 
bed review, improved support for people with complex MH needs, as well as mapping 
Community Assets and alliance building, etc. Involvement with the Task and Finish 
Groups (including work around Community, Older Persons and the 4 week target for 
accessing Community MH) is also being reviewed. The team will be supported by both 
Involve North East and NECS Communications Team.  Apart from the development 
of a Communications Strategy, other work priorities include development of a video 
package and Plan on a Page.  
 
 
5 Primary Care Networks:  
The Gateshead Engagement lead is currently holding a series of meetings with the 
PCNs to discuss closer working on communications and engagement work.  
 
 
6 Newcastle Place Engagement 
 
Mental Health Transformation 
The lead facilitators attended a meeting to discuss what is happening in the Try and 
test Groups and agree what sub-groups there are and then who will lead and organise 
these groups. The different area specific groups are working on various aspects of 
health and care that could affect mental wellbeing in adults and children. Currently 
workstreams are focused at looking at eating distress and disorders, Foodbanks, 
suicide awareness training and dementia. As part of the engagement stream, working 
alongside Cumbria, Northumberland and Tyne and Wear (CNTW), a draft 
communication and engagement plan is being produced. The plan is to assess the 
communications at present and look at effective mechanisms to reach a wider target 
population within each locality area, ensuring that accessibility is embedded into the 
overall strategy to address those with lower levels of literacy and individuals who have 
minimal digital knowledge.  Therefore, ensuring increased uptake and involvement.  
Co-production is at the core of the delivery framework and utilising and connecting 
services from the Voluntary, community sector (VCS) to improve outcomes and quality 
of services. 
 
 
7 Children and Young People (CHYP) –  

Newcastle Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 
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The team continues to attend the regular Special Educational Needs and Disability 
(SEND) meetings and discussing the 'Getting it right together' improvement plan that 
was put together by Newcastle Parent Carer Forum. This has culminated in an all 
school approach to establish a Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 
Voice network across all schools as well as check Mental Health and wellbeing post 
pandemic to support schools to embrace what Children and Young People (CHYP) 
are telling us works well for them.  
The bid for funding was in order to deliver creative approaches to elements of the 
delivery of the plan by thinking of creative methods for building in Children and Young 
People's Voice (trialling out WIKIS and Mind of my own App). To work with a group of 
children and young people to try out different creative apps and WIKIS that build in 
their voice to the Education, Health and Care (EHC) process. · To evaluate what works 
well for children and young people and buy in licences for the tools they find easiest 
and most practical to use. 
The aim is Children and Young People (CHYP) identify systems that work for them 
and enables all of those with a variety of needs to be at the heart of their Education 
Health and Care (EHC) plan. Also, for staff to feel confident and able to use different 
approaches and demonstrate that their voice is embedded in their plans.  
The next step is to work with a filmmaker and online technician to create video and 
online resources that can be used as part of a training and to create interactive ways 
of communicating the Education, Health and Care (EHC) process to families. This will 
be a resource in a clear and engaging way that works with our families with Special 
Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) to deliver these messages.  
 
7.1 Speech and Language Therapy (SALT) Consultation  
A meeting was held with colleagues from North East Commissioning Support (NECS), 
the Headteacher of Thomas Bewick school and key stakeholders to look at the survey 
that is to be disseminated to parents/carers, therapists and children regarding 
streamlining of services.  The engagement lead was invited to attend and to look at 
ways in how to work effectively with marginalised and invisible communities in order 
to ascertain their views in a more inclusive approach in the survey and in general.  The 
school has a population of diverse communities and are seeking to engage with 
parents/carers who have minimal English. 
 
In Thomas Bewick School there is a historical service delivery model, where 
Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals (NUTH) provide speech and language therapy to 
nursery, reception and year one children and CNTW provide speech and language 
therapy to the rest of the school years.  Hence it would be better to have a single 
provider deliver speech and Language therapy.  If Cumbria, Northumberland and Tyne 
and Wear trust (CNTW) is the sole provider, this could allow the Speech and Language 
Therapy (SALT) service to have greater flexibility in meeting the needs of the children 
and young people across all school year groups.  This could also allow greater 
flexibility with staff cover in case of sickness and holidays. 
 
 
8 Parkinson's disease 
The Engagement team has been requested to look at producing a best practice guide 
for General Practitioner's (GP's) when they assess patients suffering with Parkinson's 
disease. A representative from Parkinson's UK has provided some information to 
Involve North East (INE) about the variable experiences of patients with Parkinson's 
when they visit a GP.  The Engagement team are already working with Involve North 
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East (INE) who have produced a 'best practice' guide for those who experience 
hearing issues as well as those who use British Sign Language.  We are looking to 
assess if there is a need for this resource and then we will progress the workstream 
depending on the outcome of colleagues and others we may consult with. 
 
 
9 Vaccination Inequalities 
The team has attended regular meetings to look at the North East statistical analysis 
and assess which areas are significantly low in uptake of the vaccine and how to tackle 
the age/gender/ethnicity population who are vaccine hesitant.  Different methods of 
engagement and involvement are discussed and types of communications strategies 
that could be employed to promote and encourage this. The approach is working in 
terms of targeted areas, pop ups and vaccine bus.  Also trying to target men over 50 
as the demographics have indicated inequality in this population group as well as 
targeting large scale events such as the football with Newcastle United.  Another 
Vaccine bus is being planned and looking at key engagement strategies and locations 
for it to be positioned in order to have maximum exposure and uptake. 
 
Ashma Begum – Ahad 
Patient and Public Engagement and Community Involvement Lead (Newcastle) 
1st July  2021 
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Executive Summary Quality Performance ContractingContracting Finance Appendices

This report encompasses the recommendations of the Francis review and brings together quality and safety to be reviewed 

alongside performance, contracting and finance.  The CCG Assurance framework (appendix 3) ensures a parallel view of quality 

performance, finance and leadership within an assessment which combines elements essential to ensure improved outcomes for 

patients.    

There are ongoing risks detailed below to sustainable delivery of the national and local performance standards, and mitigating 

actions are in place to address these risks.  

The key risks demonstrated in this report are compounded by the Covid 19 pandemic and all Trusts are working through the 
recovery with the following risks: 
 

• Infection control and social distancing risks 

• Capacity and workforce shortfalls  

• Bed availability and theatre sessions  
 
Despite such challenges, Newcastle Hospitals NHS FT, Northumbria Healthcare NHS FT and Northumberland Tyne and Wear 
NHS FT continue to be rated ‘Outstanding’, and Gateshead Health NHS FT “Good” by the CQC. 
 
Newcastle Gateshead and North Tyneside CCGs have been rated Outstanding, in the Improvement and Assessment Framework 
(IAF) and Northumberland CCG has a rating of Good. For 2019/20 the IAF has been superseded by the Oversight Framework and 
the initial dashboard is found in appendix 3. 
 
System key Achievements to date for Newcastle Gateshead, North Tyneside and Northumberland  

• Patient satisfaction rates from the GP survey have shown recent improvements 

• Dementia Diagnosis is above the standard across the system 

• Early Intervention in Psychosis standards are being met across the system 

• All 3 North ICP CCGs are currently meeting the cancer 31 day standards for radiotherapy and surgery. 

• NEAS are currently meeting the national response times for Cat 1 and Cat 4 

• IAPT waiting times to first appointment 

Executive Summary 
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The following standards are currently not being met across all 3 North ICP CCGs 

• Diagnostic delays at NUTH NHS FT impacting all 3 North ICP CCG diagnostic waiting time performance 

• Referral to Treatment waiting times 

• Cancer waiting times 

• NHSI SI Framework: 60 day reporting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Summary 
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Quality and Safety   
 

• Summary Dashboard for North ICP CCGs - Newcastle Gateshead CCG, Northumberland CCG and North Tyneside CCG 

Summary Dashboard for all North ICP Providers - Gateshead Health NHS FT, Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS FT and 

Northumbria Healthcare NHS FT, Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS FT, and NEAS 

• Quality and Safety Exceptions summary for the North ICP. 

Performance  

• NHS Constitution – CCG View for Newcastle Gateshead CCG, Northumberland CCG and North Tyneside CCG 

• NHS Constitution Foundation Trust View for North ICP Providers - Gateshead Health NHS FT, Newcastle upon Tyne 

Hospitals NHS FT and Northumbria Healthcare NHS FT 

• Performance Exceptions Summary for the North ICP 

Contracting  

• Following national guidance, usual contracting arrangements have been suspended and all providers have been placed on 
block contracts. A brief update on current arrangements is included from page 29. 
 

Finance  

• The Finance section is not required this month as the financial position is not reported at Month 1. Financial reporting will 
resume next month with the Month 2 position. 

 
Appendices 

 

• Benchmarking Information giving a CCG and FT View across the Cumbria and North East region 

• Quality Premium performance across Newcastle Gateshead CCG, North Tyneside CCG and Northumberland CCG 

• CCG Oversight Framework performance across North ICP CCGs 

Executive Summary: Contents 
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Safe Quality Indicators Overview

Key

Performance

Area

Indicator Period Threshold
CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement Threshold

CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement Threshold

CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement

MRSA Assignment Following PIR Process Mar-21 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

C Difficile Mar-21 15.0 9 147 3.0 6 42 5.0 9 77

C Difficile Community Cases Mar-21 N/A 4 78 N/A 4 22 N/A 5 47

MSSA Mar-21 N/A 15 155 N/A 6 59 N/A 7 91

E Coli Mar-21 31.0 29 424 14.0 18 186 21.0 25 292

Never Events (i.e., number involving CCG's patients) Apr-21 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

Serious Incidents - NHS Providers Apr-21 N/A 18 18 N/A 9 9 N/A 12 12

Serious Incidents - Primary Care Apr-21 N/A 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A 0 0

Safeguard Incident Risk Management (SIRMS) Apr-21 N/A 87 87 N/A 12 12 N/A 23 23

Reciprocal Incidents (i.e., incidents reported by secondary care 

about primary care)
Apr-21 N/A 2 2 N/A 2 2 N/A 3 3

Caring Quality Indicators Overview

Key

Performance

Area

Indicator Period Threshold
CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement Threshold

CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement Threshold

CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement

Overall experience of GP practice
Jul-20 

publication
82.0% 82.0% 82.0% 85.0% 82.0% 84.0%

Overall experience of making an appointment
Jul-20 

publication
65.0% 66.0% 65.0% 69.0% 65.0% 68.0%

Overall experience of services when GP practice is 

closed 

Jul-20 

publication
67.0% 72.0% 67.0% 72.0% 67.0% 67.0%

Responsive and Well - Led Quality Indicators Overview

Key

Performance

Area

Indicator Period Threshold
CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement Threshold

CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement Threshold

CCG 

Actual

YTD 

Actual
Movement

Formal Complaint Apr-21 N/A 1.0 1.0 N/A 2.0 2.0 N/A 1.0 1.0

Concern/Advice/Other Apr-21 N/A 2.0 2.0 N/A 5.0 5.0 N/A 0.0 0.0

Freedom of Information Requests Apr-21 N/A 25.0 25.0 N/A 27.0 27.0 N/A 29.0 29.0

GP Patient Survey

Newcastle Gateshead CCG North Tyneside CCG Northumberland CCG

Responsive

Newcastle Gateshead CCG North Tyneside CCG Northumberland CCG

HCAI

Newcastle Gateshead CCG North Tyneside CCG Northumberland CCG

Incidents

Quality Dashboard - CCG Summary 
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Safe Quality Indicators Overview

Key

Performance

Area

Indicator Period Threshold GHFT Movement NHCFT Movement NuTHFT Movement CNTWFT Movement NEASFT Movement

MRSA Assignment Following PIR Process Mar-21 0 1 0

C Difficile Mar-21 2 1 14

MSSA Mar-21 1 0 12

E Coli Mar-21 23 34 26

Never Events Apr-21 0 0 0 1 0 0

Serious Incidents Apr-21 N/A 8 9 17 8 0

NHSI SI Framework: 2 Day Reporting Q4 20/21 95% 96.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

NHSI SI Framework: 60 Day Reporting Q4 20/21 95% 10.0% 60.0% 61.0% 100.0% 50.0%

Safeguard Incident Risk Management (SIRMS) Apr-21 N/A 18 16 28 4 2

NRLS - Proportion of Incidents that are harmful. Feb-21 N/A 41.1% 29.3% 28.0% Nil

NRLS - Potential under-reporting of death/severe harm Feb-21 N/A 0.71 0.25 0.32

NRLS - Potential under-reporting Feb-21 N/A 44.5 68.1 51.8 Nil

NRLS - Consistency of Reporting Feb-21 N/A 5 6 6 Nil

Staffing Absence rate Dec-20 5.09% 5.19% 5.49% 5.09% 5.99% 8.73%

Alerts Patient safety alerts open past deadline Apr-21 0 0 0 0

HCAI

Incidents

Quality Dashboard Foundation Trusts - Safe  
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Effective Quality Indicators Overview
Key

Performance

Area

Indicator Period Threshold GHFT Movement NHCFT Movement NuTHFT Movement CNTWFT Movement NEASFT Movement

Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI) Sep-20 104.1 97.4 98.0

Hospital Standardised Mortalbity Ratio (HSMR)
Sep-20 

Unpublished
115.9 107.5 102.4

VTE VTE Risk Assessment Dec-19 99.0% 95.1% 97.4%

Caring Quality Indicators Overview
Key

Performance

Area

Indicator Period Threshold GHFT Movement NHCFT Movement NuTHFT Movement CNTWFT Movement NEASFT Movement

Friends and Family No Data Published @ 15 May 2021

Responsive and Well - Led Quality Indicators Overview

Key Performance Area Indicator Period Achievement

Well - Led CQUIN - Suspended to March 2021

Mortality

Quality Dashboard – Effective, Responsive and Well-Led 
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Health Care Acquired Infections (HCAI):  

 
C Difficile:  In March 2021 NuTHFT reported 14 (published) cases exceeding their monthly trajectory of 9 cases however has remained 
within their annual trajectory. 
 
MSSA:  In March 2021 NuTHFT reported 14 (published) cases and remains the highest reporter of MSSA in the region.  The Trust 
continues to show as an outlier on the NHS England & NHS Improvement Acute Quality Dashboard (April 2021).  The Trust is providing 
support for IV device management and hand hygiene in Critical Care.   
 
E. coli:  In March 2021 NuTHFT reported 26 (published) cases and was the third highest reporter of E.coli in the region. The Trust 
continues to show as an outlier on the NHS England & NHS Improvement Acute Quality Dashboard (April 2021).  Outside of the surgical 
directorates, the most significant theme is associated with central line contamination and subsequent infection among high-risk cancer 
patients.  Additional education and training, working in collaboration with the directorates who have high rates of line insertion and use, is 
planned.  Reducing the incidence of HCAI remains a quality priority for NuTHFT in 2021/22 with a focus on COVID-19, MSSA, gram-
negative blood stream infections and C. Difficile Infections.  
 
Serious Incidents:  
 
In April 2021: 
 
GHFT reported 8 SIs (2 HCAI COVID-19, 2 medication, 1 self-harm, 1 screening, 1 fall and 1 surgical).  6 related to NGCCG patients.  
This is an increase on the same period last year (n=3 reported).   
 
NuTHFT reported 17 SIs (5 pressure ulcers, 3 falls, 2 maternity, 2 diagnostics, 1 surgical (never event), 1 self-harm, 1 medical 
equipment, 1 treatment delay, 1 relating to multiple cases of post Phaco toxic anterior segment syndrome (TASS) identified in patients 
following cataract surgery).  10 related to NGCCG patients.  This is an increase on the same period last year (n=11 reported).   
 
CNTWFT reported 8 SIs (6 unexpected deaths, 2 self-harm), 1 related to a NGCCG patient.  This is an increase on the same period last 
year (n=6 reported).   
 
NEASFT reported no SIs.  This demonstrates no change on the same period last year (n=0 reported). 

Quality Exceptions: North ICP 
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Never Events:  NuTHFT reported 1 never event in April relating to the insertion of an incorrect lens during a cataract procedure.  The 
error was immediately rectified and there was no harm to the patient.  This related to a NTCCG patient and will be managed via their SI 
panel processes. 
 
Nosocomial COVID-19 Serious Incident Reporting: To date GHFT has reported 17 cases and NuTHFT has reported 13 cases.   This 
is in line with the COVID-19 reporting requirement which includes all patient deaths/severe harm due to probably hospital onset COVID-
19. These cases will be managed via the relevant CCG SI panel processes. 
 
Marie Curie Hospice reported 1 SI (fall) involving a NGCCG patient. 
 
NGCCG Serious Incident Panel:  In April 2021 the CCG SI panel considered 11 new cases, of which 8 were closed and 3 remain open 
pending additional assurance.  The panel also closed 2 cases from the action log as additional assurance was received.  
 
NHS Sickness Absence Rates:  GHFT, CNTWFT and NEASFT were above the England average for December 2020 (5.09%). 
 
NGCCG Complaints:  In April 2021 1 formal complaint relating to concerns regarding the private provision of an increasing percentage 
of NHS services and the complainant is seeking the views and future plans of the CCG.   This is a multi-agency complaint led by NGCCG 
and is ongoing. 2 concerns were received relating to the provision of obtaining NHS wigs and the process and outcome of a patient 
placement.   1 provider complaint and 2 provider concerns were also received are being managed via the relevant processes.   
 
NHS Family and Friends Test: Data submission and publication for the Friends and Family Test (FFT) restarted for acute and 
community providers from December 2020, following the pause during the response to COVID-19.  Data is expected to be published in 
April, at the time of writing no data has yet been published.   
 
Community Acquired Pressure Damage:  GHFT reports that in March 2021 there was special variation demonstrated for pressure 
damage reporting within community services.  The staff have been credited with vigilance regarding reporting and the Trust 
acknowledges that a number of patients have remained in their home environments due to prolonged lockdown requirements which may 
have affected their ability to mobilise.   The Trust said it is important not to view this data in isolation and increased awareness is 
necessary to ensure this data does not become an upward trend. 
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Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR): GHFT is showing as an outlier on the NHS England & NHS Improvement Acute 
Quality Dashboard (April 2021).  The Trust reported that for the most recent 12 months they demonstrated more deaths than expected.  
Analysis by NEQOS identified no specific cause for the high HSMR or cause for concern about quality of care.  Other quality of care 
indicators do not provide cause for concern.  The effect of COVID-19 on the mortality indicators is unclear at present, there appears to be 
more variation in the HSMR across trusts in England.  The Trust report that they are likely to continue to flag high for some time.  
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*Data publication paused due to Covid-19  

        

Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual

% patients spending 4 hrs or less in A&E or minor injury unit Apr-21 95.0% 92.7% 92.7% 94.8% 94.8% 95.1% 95.1% 85.4%

Category 1 Response times (7 Mins ave) 07:00 00:05:42 00:05:42 00:06:14 00:06:14 00:07:21 00:07:21 00:07:00

Category 2 Response times (18mins ave)
18:00 00:21:42 00:21:42 00:20:30 00:20:30 00:21:27 00:21:27 00:21:06

Category 1 Response times (90th centile) 15mins 00:09:28 00:09:28 00:10:15 00:10:15 00:13:13 00:13:13 00:12:26

Category 2 Response times (90th centile)
40mins 00:44:01 00:44:01 00:38:42 00:38:42 00:41:56 00:41:56 00:40:29

Category 3 Response times (90th centile) 2hrs 02:39:07 02:39:07 02:22:01 02:22:01 01:40:41 01:40:41 02:18:23

Category 4 Response times (90th centile) 3hrs 02:24:28 02:24:28 04:04:52 04:04:52 02:08:21 02:08:21 03:48:46

% patients waiting for initial treatment on incomplete pathways within 18 weeks 92.0% 71.2% 66.4% 75.4% 71.8% 74.6% 70.9% 64.4%

Number of patients waiting more than 52 weeks for treatment 0 3,226 14,392 1,190 5,210 1,667 7,019 436,127

MSA *Mixed Sex accommodation - number of unjustified breaches Feb-20 0 0 7 0 0 0 1 4,929

Diagnostics % patients waiting less than 6 weeks for the 15 diagnostics tests (including audiology) Mar-21 99.0% 78.4% 62.8% 94.8% 79.8% 92.7% 77.9% 75.7%

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent GP referral for suspected cancer 93.0% 75.5% 68.6% 83.6% 81.3% 87.8% 85.0% 91.2%

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent referral for breast symptoms 93.0% 28.8% 51.9% 77.8% 80.2% 86.5% 86.5% 76.9%

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP referral for suspected cancer 85.0% 80.2% 74.8% 84.5% 84.1% 78.5% 83.1% 73.9%

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP referral from an NHS Cancer Screening Service 90.0% 73.7% 66.1% 50.0% 41.5% 85.0% 78.2% 75.1%

% of patients treated for cancer within 62 days of consultant decision to upgrade status N/A 50.0% 65.0% 90.0% 73.9% 84.6% 78.0% 82.3%

% of patients treated within 31 days of a cancer diagnosis 96.0% 96.8% 94.8% 95.0% 93.8% 96.6% 95.9% 94.7%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - surgery 94.0% 87.1% 90.2% 76.5% 91.9% 87.7% 90.2% 86.4%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - drugs 98.0% 98.0% 97.0% 94.4% 97.0% 98.0% 97.7% 99.0%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - radiotherapy 94.0% 100.0% 98.9% 100.0% 98.9% 100.0% 98.5% 97.9%

6 Week wait IAPT treatment (People Completing Therapy)
Feb-21 75% 93.1% 93.1% 93.1% 93.1% 92.7% 92.7% 92.3%

18 Week wait IAPT treatment (People Completing Therapy) Feb-21 95% 100.0% 100.0% 96.6% 96.6% 97.6% 97.6% 98.7%

% people with anxiety  disorders and depression who access psychological therapies (IAPT) 
Feb-21 20.2% 1.15% 12.71% 0.67% 10.59% 0.95% 11.51%

% complete treatment who are moving to recovery 
Feb-21 50% 50.5% 48.3% 53.57% 55.96% 53.66% 54.42% 51.5%

Early intervention in psychosis - % with 1st episode treated within 2 weeks Mar-21 60% 100.0% 83.1% 100.0% 84.6% 100.0% 91.5%

Waiting times for routine referral to CYP Eating Disorder Services - Within 4 weeks 86.7% 86.7% 90.9% 90.9% 93.1% 93.1%

Waiting times for Urgent referrals to CYP Eating Disorder Services - within 1 week 93.3% 93.3% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Inappropriate OAPs active at period end
Feb-21 <0 5 5 5 5 5 5 775

Improve diagnosis rate for people with dementia 
Apr-21 70.0% 70.1% 70.1% 65.1% 65.1% 60.7% 60.7% 61.7%

RTT Mar-21

Q1 - Q4 2020-21

Cancer Mar-21

Mental Health

England 

Benchmark

 CCG Performance Indicators 2020/21 - Constitution

Ambulance Apr-21

North Tyneside CCG Northumberland CCG

Threshold

Indicators Indicator Description
Latest Data 

Period

Newcastle Gateshead CCG

Front Door

Performance Dashboard – NHS Constitution CCG View 
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Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk

% patients spending 4 hrs or less in A&E or minor injury unit 95.0% 92.4% 92.4% 93.5% 93.5% 95.6% 95.6%

Over 12 hour trolley waits <0 1 1 0 0 0 0

Turn around time - Arrive Hospital to Clear <= 30% 42.1% 47.7% 41.4%

Ambulance handovers 30 mins - 60 mins <0 96 96 8 8 183 183

Ambulance handovers => 60 mins <0 1 1 0 0 28 28

Ambulance handovers =>120mins <0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Category 1 Response times (7 Mins ave) 07:00 00:06:28 00:06:28

Category 2 Response times (18mins ave) 18:00 00:23:45 00:23:45

Category 1 Response times (90th centile) 15mins 00:11:08 00:11:08

Category 2 Response times (90th centile) 40mins 00:47:46 00:47:46

Category 3 Response times (90th centile) 2hrs 02:37:03 02:37:03

Category 4 Response times (90th centile) 3hrs 02:26:02 02:26:02

*Delayed Days - Acute 694 7,214 309 2,862 56 540

*Delayed Days - Non-Acute 207 1567 0 0 42 442

% patients waiting for initial treatment on incomplete pathways within 18 

weeks
92.0% 70.3% 65.9% 76.1% 69.0% 85.6% 81.5%

Number of patients waiting more than 52 weeks for treatment 0 6,795 29,825 166 952 178 577

Number of patients waiting >26 weeks on incomplete pathway
15,165 1,070 1,777

*Mixed Sex accommodation - number of unjustified breaches Feb-20 0 0 0 0 8 0 0

*Cancelled Ops Q3 2019/20 95.0% 95.8% 93.6% 91.4% 89.5% 94.8% 91.7%

Diagnostics
% patients waiting less than 6 weeks for the 15 diagnostics tests (including 

audiology)
Mar-21 99.0% 83.9% 67.6% 72.1% 56.0% 96.4% 83.5%

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent GP referral for suspected 

cancer
93.0% 60.8% 62.4% 97.0% 69.2% 96.7% 93.5%

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent referral for breast symptoms 93.0% 17.1% 50.9% 100.0% 91.5% 95.2% 89.9%

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP referral for suspected 

cancer
85.0% 76.0% 76.8% 74.8% 65.6% 84.7% 85.6%

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP referral from an NHS 

Cancer Screening Service
90.0% 80.7% 63.7% 84.9% 77.1% 60.0% 60.7%

% of patients treated for cancer within 62 days of consultant decision to 

upgrade status
N/A 78.9% 65.8% 42.9% 63.4% 93.1% 84.5%

% of patients treated within 31 days of a cancer diagnosis 96.0% 95.2% 93.0% 100.0% 97.8% 98.3% 97.9%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - 

surgery
94.0% 82.9% 89.7% 100.0% 95.3% 90.0% 91.1%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - 

drugs
98.0% 96.0% 96.9% 100.0% 99.2% 94.7% 97.4%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - 

radiotherapy
94.0% 99.1% 97.8% n/a n/a n/a n/a

***Non-clinically justifiable 104 day delays 0.0%

NHS Foundation Trusts Performance Indicators 2020/21

Front Door

Apr-21

Ambulance Apr-21

Indicators Indicator Description
Latest Data 

Period Threshold

Cancer Feb-21

NEAS

DTOC Feb-20

Newcastle Hospitals NHS FT Gateshead Health NHS FT Northumbria Healthcare NHS FT

RTT

Mar-21

Apr-21

Performance Dashboard – NHS Constitution NHS Foundation Trust View 



16 
 

 
 

Executive Summary Quality Performance ContractingContracting Finance Appendices

*Data publication paused due to Covid-19 ***Future data collection snapshot 

           

Performance Dashboard – NHS Foundation Trust Trends 
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GATESHEAD HEALTH NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Total Waits Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

0->18 5,995       5,078       4,616       4,557       5,774       6,458       7,014       7,156       7,116       6,597 6,585 6,860      

19->26 1,810       1,854       2,302       1,938       977           437           644           889           987           942 1,098 1,081      

27>40 641           1,151       1,561       1,790       1,858       1,573       937           673           640           758 801 734          

41>52 60             110           206           300           433           457           474           603           670           443 197 170          

52 plus 2               4               16             27             41             68             79             104           117           131 197 166          

Performance Dashboard – RTT Incomplete – Gateshead Health NHS FT 
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Performance Dashboard – RTT Incomplete – NuTH NHS FT 
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NORTHUMBRIA HEALTHCARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Total Waits Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

0->18 18,033 15,696 14,205 13,241 16,376 18,362  19,200 19,539 19,099 18,851 18,799 19,822

19->26 1,829    2,471    3,704    3,916    1,731    515        1,271    1,553    1,764    1,767 1,748 1,543

27>40 853       1,296    1,683    2,280    2,975    2,711     1,585    1,009    864       1,213 1,354 1,377

41>52 115       157       201       265       371       442        496       564       779       475 268 222

52 plus -        -        11         11         10         15          27         28         39         92 162 163

Performance Dashboard – RTT Incomplete Northumbria Healthcare NHS 

FT  
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Performance Dashboard – Provider Summary RTT Incomplete  
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CYP Access 

Rate

CYP Eating 

Disorder 

Waiting time - 

Urgent

CYP Eating 

Disorder 

Waiting time - 

Routine

IAPT access 

rate

IAPT recovery 

rate

IAPT waiting 

times - 6 

weeks

IAPT waiting 

times - 18 

weeks

EIP waiting 

times - 

MHSDS

Physical 

health checks 

for people 

with SMI

Out of area 

placement bed 

days 

(inappropriate)

Dementia 

diagnosis rate

Increase access  

to specialist 

perinatal MH 

care for women

Time period Monthly Quarterly Quarterly 

Rolling 

Quarter

Rolling 

Quarter Monthly Monthly 

Rolling 

Quarter

Rolling 12 

months Rolling Quarter Monthly 

Rolling 12 

months

Target 35.0% 95.0% 95.0% 5.88% 50.0% 75.0% 95.0% 60.0% 60.0% 66.7% 4.5%

Most recent data Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Dec-20

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 77.9% 93.3% 91.4% 3.3% 46.0% 91.0% 99.0% 75.0% 27.4% 290 69.5% 4.4%

NHS North Tyneside CCG 58.4% 100.0% 96.2% 2.2% 55.6% 96.0% 98.0% 78.0% 36.1% 90 63.8% 5.1%

NHS Northumberland CC 73.4% 90.0% 90.6% 3.3% 58.4% 95.0% 98.0% 92.0% 31.3% 185 60.7% 6.0%

CNE STP 84.0% 84.5% 3.3% 50.2% 94.6% 97.2% 78.3% 28.6% 1,710 65.0% 4.5%

North East & Yorkshire 48.7% 75.6% 83.1% 4.0% 51.8% 93.5% 98.4% 74.7% 27.2% 10,305 63.8% 4.3%

England 39.3% 72.7% 82.7% 4.4% 49.7% 92.7% 98.5% 67.8% 21.6% 60,775 61.4% 4.7%

Performance Dashboard - Mental Health  
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*Data publication paused due to Covid-19 

 

• A robust information system is in development at NUTH NHS FT to record accurate waiting times information for wheelchairs 

• Wheelchair data for Q3 has been submitted for Gateshead 

• A Task and finish group has been established and an action plan in place for the Learning Disabilities Clinical lead to work 

with practices in Newcastle and Gateshead and North Tyneside to increase the uptake of annual health checks. 

  

Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk

AHCs delivered by GPs for 

patients on the Learning 

Disability Register

Patients aged 14 or over on the GPs  Learning 

Disability Register receiving a health check within 

the quarter 

Q4 2020/21 1270 4460 552 2016 748 2587

*Personal Health budgets Number of PHBs in place Q3 2019/20 503 1099 124 250 430 614

*Children waiting more than 

18 weeks for a wheelchair

% of children whose episode of care was closed 

within the reporting period where equipment was 

delivered in 18 weeks or less of being referred to the 

service

Q3 2019/20 92.0% 100% 100% 92.0% 100.0% 95.1% 92.0% 76.2% 72.8%

 CCG Performance Indicators 2019/20 - Other Commitments

Indicators Indicator Description
Latest Data 

Period Threshold

Newcastle Gateshead CCG North Tyneside CCG Northumberland CCG

Threshold Threshold

CCG Performance Dashboard – Other Commitments 
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Data as of 26 November 2020 

Note there are some data issues with a new version of the SEND data. The data above relates to only Newcastle upon Tyne 

children. An updated version including all children for Newcastle Gateshead CCG will be available shortly.   

CCG Performance Dashboard – Special educational needs and disability 

(SEND) 

Children’s 

Occupational 

Therapy Children’s Physio

Speech & Language 

Therapy

Average wait from referral to treatment – Children receiving SEND Support 60 weeks 19 weeks 25 weeks

Percentage of children waiting more than 18 week between referral and 

treatment – Children receiving SEND Support 91% 29% 57%

Average wait from referral to treatment – Children with an EHCP. 32 weeks 10 weeks 15 weeks

Percentage of children waiting more than 18 week between referral and 

treatment – Children with an EHCP. 48% 0% 24%
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A&E: 95% 4 Hour standard – North ICP 

• Demand throughout the Covid 19 pandemic had decreased across the North ICP and performance subsequently improved.  

Demand has more recently significantly increased moving into the winter period, coupled with the increasing wave of Covid-

19 infections creating bed pressures, and more recent performance at Newcastle Hospitals NHS FT and Gateshead Health 

NHS FT has fallen below the standard. 

• Actions - Integrated A&E improvement plans which incorporate initiatives such as ED staffing, specialty assessment, early 

discharge and stranded patients, long length of stay audit, all which contribute to sustainable improvement, are in effect. 

• Action plans are in line with winter planning to factor in the operational challenges over the winter months.  

• A&E Delivery Boards are established which are working on transformation of urgent care in order to continue to deliver 

improvements in performance.   

 

Cancer Waiting times: North ICP 

• NUTH NHS FT and Gateshead Health are currently not meeting the Cancer 62 day standard due to continued pressures, 

particularly in relation to the Urology pathway and significant pressures in endoscopy.  Social distancing and isolation pre 

diagnostics and surgery has added significant days to the 62 day pathway.  Dermatology at NUTH is a particular pressure 

and the North ICP is implementing a digital dermatology pathway to help ease pressures as well as additional clinics of a 

weekend. 

 

• NGCCG is implementing work across the North ICP FTs to standardise the approach to endoscopy. All FTs in the ICP have 

had a recent strong focus on improving the endoscopy pressures, and urgent referrals have now improved through triage, 

increased outsourcing, DNA reminders, FIT testing triage, straight to test, and advice to GPs.  This has been further 

extended throughout the pandemic. 

 

Performance Exceptions: North ICP  
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• A North ICP improvement programme led by the Northern Cancer Alliance is underway to streamline pathways and embed 

rapid diagnostics initiatives.  National funding has been distributed to ICPs to compliment this process as well as assist with 

recovery backlogs. 

 

• There are currently significant pressures facing Breast services across the North East, with Durham, Newcastle and 

Northumbria all expressing concern about the sustainability of their capacity. Planning work is underway through a managed 

clinical network to develop options for future expansion of breast capacity to meet this future growth, but this is against an 

acute shortage of breast radiologists.  Gateshead Health NHS FT are currently providing support to Durham with additional 

weekend sessions to clear the backlog.  

 

Referral to Treatment (RTT) – North ICP 

• All Trusts are underway with the recovery following the suspension of all routine surgery and diagnostics which have 
significantly impacted RTT pathways.  Recovery is however being impacted by the current wave and increase in Covid-19 
infections and progress made so far is now plateauing.  The planned activity is being reviewed on a daily basis in 
consideration of prioritising urgent and cancer surgery. 
 

• There has been a significant increase in long waiters across the patch, including over 52 week waiters particularly in spinal 

surgery, Ophthalmology and vascular surgery at NUTH.  Ophthalmology waiting times have increased significantly. Trusts 

are now being monitored on 78-103 week waiters, with particular pressures at NUTH in spinal surgery.   Provision is being 

made at NUTH NHS FT from the end of March in relation to cataracts, where a large proportion of 52 week waiters fall.  

 

• A North ICP RTT meeting between FTs and CCGs continues on a bi-monthly basis to consider pressures and patient flows 
across the North ICP.  Action plans are being developed across pressured specialties in relation to waiting times and waiting 
list growth. 
 

• Ophthalmology at NUTH presents a particular pressure in relation to long waiting times across the North ICP.  A working 
group has been convened and the following actions are noted:  Newcastle Westgate Cataract Centre service is now open at 

Performance Exceptions: North ICP continued 
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the beginning of April following a slight building related delay. Facilities consist of three theatres which will operate Monday 
to Friday, 8 patients per list. It is hoped that by streamlining the pathway throughput time can be reduced from 2-4 hours to 
between 45 minutes and an hour. The hope is that this will increase capacity by approximately 1,000 patients per month 
once at capacity by June. 

• Other initiatives to facilitate recovery: Converting Ward 21 to a high-volume imaging clinic for MR and glaucoma. This will be 
online mid-April and will assist in tackling the backlog of review patients. Additionally, capital has been used to make 
adaptations to the emergency unit to provide two more procedure rooms for MR injections. The service is also undertaking 
more virtual follow ups. Harm reviews are being undertaken for long waiters 
 

• Utilisation of the Independent Sector 
 

• A national programme for the clinical validation of waiting lists is underway to keep the patients informed throughout the 
pandemic.  
 

• An inequalities plan has been developed to ensure services are restored inclusively. 
 
 

NEAS Response times  

• Response times remain a pressure across the ICP, vehicle configuration and increased demand the main issues affecting 
performance. 

• CCGs across CNE agreed 4 year investment plan from 2018/19 in response to the Operational Research in Health (ORH) 
report which will see significant investment in NEAS over the coming years and significant changes which will lead to 
performance improvements and delivery of the standards.   

• Specific actions include: Additional recruitment of paramedics; Re-rostering of shifts to match the demands of the service; 
Change in front line skill mix to 60:40 paramedics to emergency care assistants 

• Risk to performance remains as the 4 year investment plan is rolled out. 
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Diagnostics 99% Standard 

 

 

• Trust frameworks developed for OP, RTT and Diagnostics 

• Utilisation of the Independent sector 

• Work to increase diagnostics capacity with the FTs is underway with a particular focus on endoscopy at all Trusts which has 

been impacted particularly by social distancing.  

 

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)  

• Pressures continue within the Newcastle service and moving to recovery rates and access rates have dropped below the 
standard.  Both the Newcastle, North Tyneside and Northumberland services are not meeting the 2018/19 requirement for 
19% access which remains a challenge, although North Tyneside and Northumberland CCGs are meeting the 50% moving 
to recovery standard.   
  

• The North Tyneside service is linking in with Universities and Colleges, looking to provide wellbeing courses for students and 
targeting companies at Cobalt Business Park in order to maximise access.   

 

• Following an unsatisfactory procurement process the NGCCG is working in partnership with the current providers to develop 

a new model of delivery to ensure improvement of future KPI’s. The current waiting list is to be managed separately outside 

of the main contract.  

• Work is underway in Newcastle to review risks and actions through Collaborative Newcastle 

 

Performance Exceptions: North ICP continued 
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Better Care Fund  

An update on Better Care Fund will be provided in due course given national guidance is still awaited.  

System Performance Exceptions  
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Contracting 
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Note: Thresholds for A&E type 1 attendances are based on 2020/21 demand plan data.They have not been signed off by the CCGs or the FTs. They are 

included for illustrative purposes only. Incomplete wating lists thresholds are based on March 19 position. 

 

• A&E Attendances are significantly below anticipated levels due to the impact of the pandemic.    
• Waiting list volumes are compared against the March 2019 actual position for illustrative purposes only. Whilst this reflects 

a positive position at present, this is entirely due to the significant reduction in referrals during March to June 2020 as a 
result of the significant reduction in the number of referrals due to the pandemic. With referrals now increasing and provider 
capacity reduced due to the impact of social distancing requirements, significant pressures (already being experienced in 
over 52 week waiters) are likely to be encountered in relation to waiting list volumes.  

• The North ICP RTT meeting involving providers and Commissioners continues to review waiting list pressures and patient 

flows across the North ICP and seek assurance on actions to mitigate pressures although this is in the context of Covid 

recovery and the reinstatement of services.  

Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk

Type 1 A&E attendance 171,530 8,238 81,070 63,520 4,065 43,431 78,994 5,285 57,600

Non elective admissions with zero length of stay comapred to plan 25,371 2,065 19,495 19,780 1,429 14,482 25,222 2,077 21,365

Non elective admissions with length of stay of 1 day or more compared to plan 43,821 3,491 33,906 19,291 1,409 15,032 27,508 2,096 22,691

Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk

Type 1 A&E attendance Mar-21 120,575 9,946 98,236 85,291 4,846 62,273 117,291 7,329 82,664

Incomplete waiting list (Threshold March 2019) Mar-21 71,972 77,152 77,152 8,542 9,011 9,011 22,395 23,142 23,142

Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk Actual YTD Risk

Incomplete waiting list (Threshold March 2019) 39,693 40,567 40,567 17,133 19,356 19,356 24,485 27,173 27,173

Number of patients waiting >26 weeks on incomplete pathway 7,478 7,478 3,088 3,088 4,413 4,413
Mar-21

Northumbria Healthcare NHS 

FT

Latest Data 

Period
Threshold

Newcastle Gateshead CCG

Threshold

North Tyneside CCG

Threshold

Northumberland CCG

YTD 

Threshold

Northumberland CCG

Latest Data 

Period
Threshold

Newcastle Hospitals NHS FT

Threshold

Gateshead Health NHS FT

Threshold

North Tyneside CCG

Mar-21

Latest Data 

Period
YTD 

Threshold

Newcastle Gateshead CCG YTD 

Threshold

CCG Contracting Dashboard Contracting KPI Dashboard 
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As a result of the covid-19 pandemic, NHSE/I issued guidance which suspended all usual contracting arrangements and set out 

that NHS commissioners did not need to put in place written, signed contracts with Trusts; instead, block payments would be made 

to Trusts, at levels set nationally by NHSE/I. The operation of CQUIN was also suspended for all providers. This arrangement  

continued until the 31st March and has been carried over into the first half of 2021/22.   

Therefore, the above contract information is included for illustrative purposes only and gives an indication of the impact of the 

pandemic on activity levels at our three major acute providers. Planned activity levels are those which we would have expected to 

have agreed in 2020/21 and which were under discussion with providers in March 2020.  

One of the impacts of the pandemic, particularly during the recovery stage, has been the increased use of technology as a result of 

the need for social distancing. The implementation of block contracts and the removal of the link between activity and finance has 

also supported a material change in the way outpatient services are delivered.  

POD Group

Activity 

Plan

20/21

Activity 

Actual

20/21

Activity 

Variance

20/21

Variance 

%

Activity 

Actual

19/20

Activity 

as % of 

last year

Activity 

Plan

20/21

Activity 

Actual

20/21

Activity 

Variance

20/21

Variance %

Activity 

Actual

19/20

Activity 

as % of 

last year

Activity 

Plan

20/21

Activity 

Actual

20/21

Activity 

Variance

20/21

Variance 

%

Activity 

Actual

19/20

Activity 

as % of 

last year

AandE 6,195 4,600 (1,595) -26% 5,748 80% 113,439 80,693 (32,746) -29% 107,038 75% 101,109 56,571 (44,538) -44% 94,859 60%

Ambulatory Care 754 719 (35) -5% 799 90% 5,254 7,043 1,789 34% 5,384 131% 6,469 4,557 (1,912) -30% 6,317 72%

Critical Care 118 111 (7) -6% 118 94% 5,907 7,353 1,446 24% 5,908 124% 3,311 2,725 (586) -18% 3,064 89%

Elective 666 368 (298) -45% 621 59% 42,375 25,885 (16,490) -39% 42,008 62% 20,016 13,141 (6,875) -34% 19,337 68%

Excess Beddays 84 85 1 1% 129 66% 13,901 4,351 (9,550) -69% 12,750 34% 3,764 2,688 (1,076) -29% 3,971 68%

Maternity Pathways 392 507 115 29% 339 150% 6,065 9,251 3,186 53% 6,119 151% 3,850 5,081 1,231 32% 3,814 133%

Mental Health 37 66 29 77% 0 0% 0 2,416 2,416 0% 1,719 141% 0 5,532 5,532 0% 3,840 144%

Non Elective 579 547 (32) -6% 604 91% 44,520 28,487 (16,033) -36% 42,297 67% 21,168 16,983 (4,185) -20% 20,947 81%

Other Services 436 532 96 22% 459 116% 2,263,541 1,789,869 (473,672) -21% 2,224,451 80% 152,194 96,642 (55,552) -37% 135,874 71%

Outpatient Diagnostics 658 420 (238) -36% 626 67% 44,816 35,531 (9,285) -21% 43,366 82% 28,992 20,913 (8,079) -28% 28,621 73%

Outpatient First 1,216 760 (456) -38% 1,048 73% 91,828 72,801 (19,027) -21% 90,821 80% 34,836 31,904 (2,932) -8% 32,221 99%

Outpatient First NF2F 408 677 269 66% 390 174% 767 9,730 8,963 1168% 543 1792% 968 10,450 9,482 980% 1,105 946%

Outpatient Follow Up 4,034 1,256 (2,778) -69% 3,490 36% 184,110 140,245 (43,865) -24% 175,775 80% 91,325 50,535 (40,790) -45% 85,132 59%

Outpatient Follow Up NF2F 124 1,396 1,272 1024% 156 895% 4,387 25,765 21,378 487% 4,991 516% 291 36,307 36,016 12387% 1,015 3577%

Outpatient Procedures 278 183 (95) -34% 283 65% 78,602 41,337 (37,265) -47% 75,788 55% 9,417 4,588 (4,829) -51% 8,174 56%

Grand Total 15,981 12,227 (3,754) -23% 14,810 83% 2,899,512 2,280,757 (618,755) -21% 2,838,958 80% 477,708 358,617 (119,091) -25% 448,291 80%

Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust Newcastle Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG - Month 12 YTD

CCG Contract Finance & Activity Dashboard – Newcastle Gateshead 

CCG CCGCCGCCCCCCCGCCG 
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This has resulted in a significant increase in the number of non-face to face contacts (both telephone and video) during the financial 

year. At NuTH there has been an increase of 30,341 over the previous year whilst at GHNHSFT the increase has been 45,498, the 

majority being in relation to follow ups.  

Whilst not every non face to face contact will lead to an avoided outpatient attendance, this will undoubtedly have a positive impact 

on creating capacity and improving patient experience.  

NHSEI withdrew the proposed activity recovery incentive scheme which was aimed at rewarding systems for delivering increased 

outpatient, diagnostic and elective activity as compared to pre-pandemic levels. However, the following table does illustrate the 

extent to which our North of Tyne and Gateshead ICP providers are delivering activity as compared to last year. The “current month 

target” relates to the expectations previously included in the incentive scheme. 

Ambition 
Activity 
Actual 
20/21 

Activity 
Actual 
19/20 

Activity 
Variance 

Year on Year 

Activity as 
% of last 

year 

Current 
mth Target 

Electives & Outpatient Procedures 24,226  21,491  2,735  113% 90% 

MRI 2,348  1,703  645  138% 100% 

CT 4,385  3,349  1,036  131% 100% 

Endoscopy 1,663  1,459  204  114% 100% 

Outpatient activity (FA &FUP total) 93,024  69,999  23,025  133% 100% 

Outpatient NF2F total % 26% 
  National benchmark is 25% including 60% of all follow 
ups 

Note: this is the contract data set (CDS) and nationally the TNR dataset will be used to monitor performance  
at 

provider level including all commissioners         

 
As part of the 2021/22 planning round NHSEI have announced an Elective Recovery Fund which will reward systems for delivering 
activity valued in excess of the same period in 2019/20. For April 2021 the threshold will be set at 70%, rising by 5 percentage 
points in subsequent months to 85% from July.  Additional criteria will also need to be met by systems in order to qualify for the 
fund which includes a requirement to ensure at least 25% of outpatient appointments are held remotely either by telephone or 
video.
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Finance 
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No financial reporting is required at Month 1 of 2021/22. Reporting of the financial position as at Month 2 will resume in the next 

report.                               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

CCG Finance Dashboard – Executive Summary 
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No financial reporting is required at Month 1 of 2021/22. Reporting of the financial position as at Month 2 will resume in the next 
report. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

  

CCG Finance Dashboard – Overview of Financial Position 
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No financial reporting is required at Month 1 of 2021/22. Reporting of the financial position as at Month 2 will resume in the next 
report. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

CCG Finance Dashboard – Allocations 
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No financial reporting is required at Month 1 of 2021/22. Reporting of the financial position as at Month 2 will resume in the next 
report. 

CCG Finance Dashboard – Financial Position and Risk  
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No financial reporting is required at Month 1 of 2021/22. Reporting of the financial position as at Month 2 will resume in the next 
report. 
 

  

CCG Finance Dashboard – QIPP 
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No financial reporting is required at Month 1 of 2021/22. Reporting of the financial position as at Month 2 will resume in the next 
report. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CCG Finance Dashboard – Risks and Mitigations 
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No financial reporting is required at Month 1 of 2021/22. Reporting of the financial position as at Month 2 will resume in the next 
report. 

 

CCG Finance Dashboard – Balance sheet 



42 
 

 
Executive Summary Quality Performance ContractingContracting Finance Appendices

 

 

 

 

 

Appendices 

 

 

 



43 
 

 
Executive Summary Quality Performance ContractingContracting Finance Appendices

 

• Appendix 1a CCG Benchmarking Information – Benchmarking of key constitution standards for CNE CCGs 

• Appendix 1b FT Benchmarking Information – Benchmarking of key constitution standards for CNE FTs 

• Appendix 2 – Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF) – The IAF outlines the metrics that inform NHS England’s 

assessment of CCGs in 2019/20. 

 
  

Appendices 
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* Data publication paused due to Covid-19  
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Mar-21 75.5% 83.6% 87.8% 86.5% 92.8% 86.9% 92.3% 94.4%

YTD 68.6% 81.3% 85.0% 74.7% 84.9% 82.9% 84.9% 84.9%

Mar-21 28.8% 77.8% 86.5% 87.5% 80.0% 78.2% 92.1% 90.9%

YTD 51.9% 80.2% 86.5% 73.3% 64.5% 62.2% 82.1% 85.1%

Mar-21 80.2% 84.5% 78.5% 77.8% 86.2% 75.2% 64.0% 75.6%

YTD 74.8% 84.1% 83.1% 81.3% 82.1% 73.5% 63.4% 75.0%

Mar-21 73.7% 50.0% 85.0% 83.3% 80.0% 72.7% 66.7% 68.6%

YTD 66.1% 41.5% 78.2% 70.6% 80.2% 72.4% 47.6% 79.8%

Mar-21 50.0% 90.0% 84.6% 80.0% 85.0% 50.0% 87.5% 82.1%

YTD 65.0% 73.9% 78.0% 89.0% 91.2% 80.5% 80.0% 82.5%

Mar-21 96.8% 95.0% 96.6% 97.8% 99.4% 99.6% 89.8% 94.9%

YTD 94.8% 93.8% 95.9% 97.5% 99.0% 96.7% 90.6% 95.6%

Mar-21 87.1% 76.5% 87.7% 95.0% 100.0% 93.5% 81.6% 89.7%

YTD 90.2% 91.9% 90.2% 93.5% 94.4% 92.2% 85.1% 90.0%

Mar-21 98.0% 94.4% 98.0% 98.0% 100.0% 96.5% 100.0% 99.1%

YTD 97.0% 97.0% 97.7% 99.0% 99.6% 98.2% 94.8% 98.6%

Mar-21 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 96.9% 94.9% 99.2%

YTD 98.9% 98.9% 98.5% 96.7% 96.1% 96.2% 98.1% 95.9%

RTT Period Target

% patients waiting for initial treatment on incomplete 

pathways within 18 weeks
Mar-21

92.0%
66.4% 71.8% 70.9% 75.5% 76.0% 66.6% 56.2% 68.1%

Mar-21 3,226 1,190 1,667 363 678 2,847 3,370 3,413

YTD 14,392 5,210 7,019 1,971 4,173 15,240 21,456 18,135

Feb-20 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0

YTD 7 0 1 0 9 12 18 7

Diagnostics Period Target

% patients waiting less than 6 weeks for the 15 

diagnostics tests (including audiology)
Mar-21 99.0% 78.4% 94.8% 92.7% 65.9% 62.5% 90.1% 52.0% 91.1%

Dementia Period Target

Improve diagnosis rate for people with dementia Apr-21 70.0% 70.1% 65.1% 60.7% 64.2% 61.7% 64.6% 56.7% 71.5%

A&E Period Target

% patients spending 4 hrs or less in A&E or minor 

injury unit
Apr-21 95.0% 92.7% 94.8% 95.1% 90.8% 90.8% 88.6% 84.6% 92.6%

98.0%

Number of patients waiting more than 52 weeks for 

treatment

*Mixed Sex accommodation - number of unjustified 

breaches

0

0

94.0%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for 

cancer within 31 days - surgery

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for 

cancer within 31 days - drugs

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for 

cancer within 31 days - radiotherapy

93.0%

93.0%

85.0%

90.0%

N/A

96.0%

94.0%

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent GP 

referral for suspected cancer

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent referral 

for breast symptoms

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP 

referral for suspected cancer

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP 

referral from an NHS Cancer Screening Service

% of patients treated for cancer within 62 days of 

consultant decision to upgrade status

% of patients treated within 31 days of a cancer 

diagnosis

Appendix 1a CCG Benchmarking Information Constitution Standards 
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*Data publication paused due to Covid-19  ***Future data collection snapshot 
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Mar-21 97.0% 60.8% 96.7% 93.0% 85.5% 92.6% 83.8% 95.7% 96.9%

YTD 69.2% 62.4% 93.5% 94.6% 81.7% 85.2% 71.0% 80.0% 92.7%

Mar-21 100.0% 17.1% 95.2% n/a 73.3% 92.1% 22.0% 88.9% 93.9%

YTD 91.5% 50.9% 89.9% n/a 55.1% 82.3% 11.4% 93.4% 90.9%

Mar-21 74.8% 76.0% 84.7% 89.1% 72.9% 65.6% 58.5% 78.9% 78.1%

YTD 65.6% 76.8% 85.6% 84.7% 76.0% 65.0% 66.6% 75.4% 77.3%

Mar-21 84.9% 80.7% 60.0% 50.0% 40.0% 60.0% 63.6% 38.5% 76.5%

YTD 77.1% 63.7% 60.7% 80.0% 46.6% 47.8% 65.9% 62.8% 83.1%

Mar-21 42.9% 78.9% 93.1% 78.9% 50.0% 83.3% 90.2% 88.7% 73.3%

YTD 63.4% 65.8% 84.5% 92.4% 71.7% 83.9% 87.1% 80.4% 89.2%

Mar-21 100.0% 95.2% 98.3% 100.0% 97.4% 88.5% 91.8% 97.1% 94.5%

YTD 97.8% 93.0% 97.9% 99.5% 97.3% 90.5% 93.8% 95.5% 95.9%

Mar-21 100.0% 82.9% 90.0% 100.0% 89.3% 87.5% 71.4% 100.0% 87.5%

YTD 95.3% 89.7% 91.1% 96.9% 89.0% 80.8% 83.9% 91.4% 91.1%

Mar-21 100.0% 96.0% 94.7% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 98.7% 100.0%

YTD 99.2% 96.9% 97.4% 99.7% 98.0% 94.1% 99.3% 97.7% 99.2%

Mar-21 n/a 99.1% n/a n/a n/a 96.0% n/a 98.4% n/a

YTD n/a 97.8% n/a n/a n/a 98.5% n/a 95.2% n/a

N/A

N/A

RTT Period Target

% patients waiting for initial treatment on incomplete pathways within 18 weeks Mar-21 92.0% 69.0% 65.9% 81.5% 78.6% 61.0% 55.7% 56.9% 54.9% 85.1%

Mar-21 166 6,795 178 523 2,603 3,101 2,496 4,258 241

YTD 952 29,825 577 3,685 14,210 20,128 14,326 23,308 958

Feb-20 0 0 0 0 0 3 26 0 0

YTD 8 0 0 10 7 4 305 3 0

Diagnostics Period Target

% patients waiting less than 6 weeks for the 15 diagnostics tests (including audiology) Mar-21 99.0% 72.1% 83.9% 96.4% 60.5% 96.4% 50.8% 96.8% 85.9% 96.3%

A&E Period Target

% patients spending 4 hrs or less in A&E or minor injury unit Apr-21 95.0% 93.5% 92.4% 95.6% 90.8% 88.0% 84.6% 86.5% 86.4% 100.0%

Number of patients waiting more than 52 weeks for treatment
0

*Mixed Sex accommodation - number of unjustified breaches
0

0.0%
***Non-clinically justifiable 104 day delays

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP referral from an NHS Cancer Screening 

Service 90.0%

% of patients treated for cancer within 62 days of consultant decision to upgrade status
N/A

% of patients treated within 31 days of a cancer diagnosis
96.0%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - surgery
94.0%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - drugs
98.0%

% of patients receiving subsequent treatment for cancer within 31 days - radiotherapy
94.0%

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent GP referral for suspected cancer
93.0%

% of patients seen within 2 weeks of an urgent referral for breast symptoms
93.0%

% of patients treated within 62 days of an urgent GP referral for suspected cancer
85.0%

Appendix 1b: FT Benchmarking Information Constitution Standards 
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Appendix 2: NHSE Oversight Framework (Quarterly) 

Domain Area No Ref Indicator Name Latest period Target NHS Northumberland CCG

NHS Newcastle Gateshead 

CCG NHS North Tyneside CCG

Preventing ill health and reducing inequalitiesObesity 1 102a Percentage of children aged 10-11 classified as overweight or obese 2015-16 to 2017-18 34.71% 38.40% 34.53%

2 103a

Diabetes patients that have achieved all the NICE recommended treatment targets: three (HbA1c, 

cholesterol and blood pressure) for adults and one (HbA1c) for children 2018-19 38.10% 38.76% 37.40%

3 103b People with diabetes diagnosed less than a year who attend a structured education course 2017-18 (2016 cohort) 11.30% 16.02% 8.72%

Preventing ill health and reducing inequalitiesFalls 4 104a Injuries from falls in people aged 65 and over 19-20 Q4 2,666 2,672 3,127

New Service Models Personalisation and patient choice 5 105b Personal health budgets 19-20 Q3 157 114 74

Quality of care and outcomes People with long term conditions and complex needs6 105c Percentage of deaths with three or more emergency admissions in last three months of life 2017 8.55% 8.01% 9.41%
Health inequalities

7 106a

Inequality in unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive and urgent care 

sensitive conditions 19-20 Q4 3,467 3,053 2,777

8 107a Antimicrobial resistance: appropriate prescribing of antibiotics in primary care 2020 03 0.965 1.104 1.051 1.087

9 107b Antimicrobial resistance: appropriate prescribing of broad spectrum antibiotics in primary care 2020 03 10% 7.12% 7.22% 7.49%

Quality of care and outcomes People with long term conditions and complex needs10 108a The proportion of carers with a long term condition who feel supported to manage their condition 2019 100% 58.5% 56.9% 60.6%

Finance and use of resources Finance and use of resources 11 109a Reducing the rate of low priority prescribing 19-20 Q4 Green Green Star Green

12 121a Provision of high quality care: hospital 19-20 Q3 69 68 72

13 121b Provision of high quality care: primary medical services 19-20 Q3 71 68 68

121c Provision of high quality care: adult social care 19-20 Q3 65 65 67

14 122a Cancers diagnosed at early stage 2018

15 122b People with urgent GP referral having first definitive treatment for cancer within 62 days of referral 19-20 Q2 85% 84.31% 76.15% 85.97%

16 122c One-year survival from all cancers 2017 75% 72.80% 72.40% 71.60%

17 122d Cancer patient experience 2018 9.0 9.0 9.0

18 123a Improving Access to Psychological Therapies – recovery 19-20 Q3 50% 56.02% 46.65% 52.11%

19 123b Improving Access to Psychological Therapies – access 19-20 Q3 3.60% 4.09% 3.39%

20 123c

People with first episode of psychosis starting treatment with a NICE-recommended package of care 

treated within 2 weeks of referral 2020 03 56% 90.00% 73.33% 87.50%

123d Children and young people's health services transformation 2020 03 59.38% 64.29% 52.68%

22 123f Mental health out of area placements 2019 12 76 37 56

Preventing ill health and reducing inequalitiesHealth inequalities 23 123g Proportion of people on GP severe mental illness register receiving physical health checks 19-20 Q4 60% 45.6% 40.0% 47.1%

Finance and use of resources Finance and use of resources 24 123i Delivery of the mental health investment standard 19-20 Q4 Green Green Green

Quality of care and outcomes Diabetes

Preventing ill health and reducing 

inequalities

Antimicrobial resistance

General

Mental health

Quality of care and outcomes

Cancer services
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 Highest Performing quartile Interquartile range Lowest Performing quartile

Appendix 3: NHSE Oversight Framework (Quarterly) 

00L 13T 99C

Domain Area No Ref Name Latest period Target NHS Northumberland CCG

NHS Newcastle Gateshead 

CCG NHS North Tyneside CCG

Mental Health 25 123j Ensuring the quality of mental health data submitted to NHS Digital is robust (DQMI) 2020 02 90.73% 89.40% 90.55%

Learning disability and autism
27 124a Reliance on specialist inpatient care for people with a learning disability and/or autism 19-20 Q4 54 54 54

28 124b Proportion of people with a learning disability on the GP register receiving an annual health check 2019-20 53.59% 46.67% 53.20%

29 124c Completeness of the GP learning disability register 2018-19 0.67% 0.64% 0.71%

31 125a Neonatal mortality and stillbirths 2017 4.69 3.54 4.04

32 125b Women’s experience of maternity services 2019 83.4 87.1 85.1

33 125c Choices in maternity services 2019 66.8 67.1 66.2

Smoking 34 125d Maternal smoking at delivery 19-20 Q4 6% 13.33% 12.62% 13.27%

35 126a Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia 2020 03 67% 67.14% 75.85% 69.83%

36 126b Dementia care planning and post-diagnostic support 2018-19 77.45% 79.81% 78.70%

Integrated primary care and community 

health services 37 127b Emergency admissions for urgent care sensitive conditions 19-20 Q4 3,485 3,329 3,775

38 127c Percentage of patients admitted, transferred or discharged from A&E within 4 hours 2019 03 95% 95.26% 95.18% 95.47%

39 127e Delayed transfers of care per 100,000 population 2020 02 3.3 7.7 2.2

40 127f Population use of hospital beds following emergency admission 19-20 Q4 943 1215 1001

Integrated primary care and community 

health services 41 128b Patient experience of GP services 2019 84.36% 84.37% 86.37%

Leadership and workforce Leadership and workforce 42 128d Primary care workforce 2019 09 1.16 0.99 1.04

44 129a Patients waiting 18 weeks or less from referral to hospital treatment 2019 12 92% 89.28% 89.28% 89.61%

45 129b Overall size of the waiting list 2020 03 24,523 34,206 17,436

46 129c Patients waiting over 52 weeks for treatment 2020 03 5 7 1

47 130a Achievement of clinical standards in the delivery of 7 day services 2017-18 3 2 3

48 131a Percentage of NHS Continuing Healthcare full assessments taking place in an acute hospital setting 19-20 Q4 15% 0.95% 0.55% 0.00%

General 49 132a

Evidence that sepsis awareness raising amongst healthcare professionals has been prioritised by 
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1. Introduction  

For purpose of clarity children and young people in care are referred to as Children in Care (CIC) in 

Newcastle and Looked After Children (LAC) in Gateshead. Designated professional roles remain as 

LAC as per statutory requirement. 

As commissioners of health services Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning 

Group (CCG) continues to fulfil its role in meeting the statutory health needs of 

looked after children (DoH / DfE 2015) by having appropriate arrangements and 

resources in place.  

 

Newcastle Gateshead CCG has an updated 3 year Looked After Children (LAC) 

Strategy 2019-2022 which drives the broader health agenda for Newcastle and 

Gateshead CIC/ LAC and care leaver populations, across the wider health economy. 

 

The Designated Professional LAC resource for Newcastle Gateshead continued at 

full complement until January 2021, these are statutory roles. In January the 

Designated nurse capacity reduced from I WTE to 0.6WTE due to extended leave by 

one of the post holders. 

 

2020-21 has seen a continued rise in the combined number of CIC/LAC across 

Newcastle Gateshead, this reflects the regional and national trend. A peak was 

reached in the summer following the easing of the first Covid 19 related lockdown   

 

The commissioned LAC health teams have worked effectively in delivering the health 

interventions required. During the Covid 19 pandemic innovative ways of working 

have been introduced to ensure that the statutory work continued following 

Government guidance on best practice. The 2019-20 Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs), relating to physical health, when reported in December 2020, showed the 

measured outcomes in both areas were, in the main, above the regional and national 

averages. The measured outcomes for emotional and mental health demonstrate 

improvement in both areas, we believe this is a result of the improved access to 

services and the additional measures put in place for CIC/LAC.  

 

Themes for development, as outlined in the CCG LAC Strategy 2019-2022, were 

interrupted due to the pandemic but we have latterly started to pick up our ambitious 

agenda. CGG Strategic LAC meeting has been maintained and the LAC Action Plan 

continually reviewed, the themes relating to service provision feed into the provider 

teams' work plans and have been incorporated into both Local Authorities’ individual 

Corporate Parenting Plans.  

 

Achievements and challenges, including the impact of Covid 19 Pandemic, during 

this period are reported on in the body of this report.  
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      2.   Specialist Commissioned LAC/CiC Health Services 

The specialist commissioned LAC/CIC Health Teams continue to sit in NHS 

Foundation Trusts in each area. In Newcastle the team is aligned to the Paediatric 

Directorate and in Gateshead they are part of the Safeguarding Team.  

Newcastle Gateshead CCG continues to commission the roles of the Designated 

Doctor and Nurse LAC, Named Nurse LAC/ Specialist Lead Nurse CiC, Specialist 

Nurses LAC /CiC and 1.5 WTE admin in each team.  

A request for additional resources from Newcastle to meet the increasing demands 

is currently being considered. 

 

       2.1 Looked After Children/ Children in Care population 

The number of LAC/CiC continues to increase (Figure 1) the ratio per 10,000 

children in both areas remains high, above the figure for England. Figures published 

December 2020 indicated a reduction in the Newcastle ratio and an increase in the 

Gateshead ratio for the year end 31.03.2020. (Figure 2) 

 

Figure 1- Graph demonstrating the increase in the total number of children and 

young people looked after by Newcastle and Gateshead local authorities 2017-2021 

 

 
 

 

 

Figure 2-Table demonstrating the ratio of LAC per 10,000 children 

Ratio per 10,000 
children 

31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.19 31.03.20 

England 62 64 65 67 

North East 92 95 101 108 

Newcastle  94 98 118 113 

Gateshead 95 99 96 105 

Source- https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/children-looked-after-in-england-including-adoption-2019-to-2020 
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Covid 19 impact on numbers: a sharp increase in children being admitted to care can 

be seen in July and a peak in discharges evident in September & October (Figure 3) 

This correlates to the first lockdown ending with hidden children emerging and the 

recovery of services including safe discharge from care and progress with adoptions.  

Figure 3 Graph demonstrating the fluidity of the LAC/CiC population; admissions to 

care and discharges - each event has potential to generate significant activity for the 

commissioned health teams. 

 

The provisional year end data suggested that during this 12-month period the 

combined number of children and young people looked after by Newcastle and 

Gateshead local authorities has risen by 3.6%, this is a double the rate of the 

previous year (1.8%) (2020-21: Gateshead increased by 5.8% and Newcastle 

increased by 2.3%) 

As the annual increase in numbers is constant the resources within both teams are 

continually reviewed against numbers and activity. 

 

      2.2 Activity 2020-21 

Information is provided on quarterly dashboards by provider CIC/LAC health teams. 

Activity increased in all areas for 2020-21 other than Initial health assessments in 

Gateshead which saw a slight reduction. (Figure 4) 

Figure 4 Table demonstrating health assessment activity.  
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2.3 Performance data 2019-20 published December 2020 

Most physical health Key Performance Indicators (KPI) demonstrated returns in both 

areas that were above or equitable to the regional and national figures. (Figure 5) 

 

Figure 5 Table of 2019-20 Physical Health KPIs reported by Local authorities. 

Source- https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/children-looked-after-in-england-including-adoption-2019-to-2020  

 

The process for measuring and reporting the emotional/ mental health needs for the 

purpose of the statistical return is undertaken by the local authorities in each area 

using the Strength & difficulty questionnaire (SDQ). The reported average score has 

reduced in Newcastle and Gateshead which is a positive outcome although remains 

above the Regional and England average in both areas. (Figure 6) 

 

Figure 6 Table of 2019-20 Emotional/Mental health KPIs 

Source- https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/children-looked-after-in-england-including-adoption-2018-to-2019  

 

Improvements to the average score and a significant increase in those children 

achieving a normal score are thought to be a measure of improved access to mental 

health services with the implementation of the Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne & 

Wear (CNTW) single point of access and the ongoing commitment to offer a 

consultation service for early review and advice for CIC/LAC.  
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3.1 CCG Progress and achievements 2020-21 

 

3.1.1 Impact of Covid 19 Pandemic.  

The prolonged Covid 19 pandemic has impacted on delivery of services and 

progress with priorities. Key areas, impact and recovery are outlined below. 

Virtual appointments were used to undertake Health Assessments during the first 

lockdown. Where risk assessments identified a need to be seen appropriate safety 

measures were put in place including the use of PPE.  IHAs were quick to recover to 

face to face appointments within the clinical setting. Risk assessments continued to 

be utilised with virtual appointments and appropriate follow ups planned when 

indicated. RHAs had a slower recovery; with home visiting being the usual 

mechanism of recovery local trust guidelines were followed, risk assessments 

completed and a blended model of face to face and virtual appointments have 

continued. Data collected demonstrates a steady increase of return to face to face as 

Covid vaccination is rolled out and risks diminish.  

Nationally access to other health services have also been impacted on by the 

pandemic. Locally access to dental services for CIC/LAC was raised by Children's 

Social Care. These services have been severely limited and recovery slow due to 

the heightened risks within their practices and procedures. We ensured that locally 

CIC/LAC were seen as priority as services recovered and gave appropriate advice to 

social care and carers on requesting appointments.  

Covid 19 has impacted on the provision of face-to-face appointments within Primary 

Care. This impacted on the provision of appointments for Adult health assessments 

as part of the fostering and adoption recruitment and review process. Nationally 

amendments to the regulations were circulated including adult health assessments. 

Working with the named GPs we were able to provide advice to all practices within 

Newcastle Gateshead, with effect, to ensure this vital work continued. These 

amendments are in place until September 2021.  

A report expected in Autumn 2020 on the outcome of the mental health pilots linked 

to the SCIE (2017) has been delayed with many of the project stalled. An update is 

expected soon. We will review any recommendations when available. 

 

3.1.2 Initial and review health assessment time frames: 

CIC /LAC populations have increased in both areas and due to Covid 19 the pattern 

of admissions has seen significant peaks during the year. Following national 

guidance and amendments to regulations different mechanisms have been utilised to 

maintain the statutory requirements including timeframes for health assessments. 

Overall timeframes for Initial Health Assessments (IHA’s) have been maintained in 

Newcastle area whilst Gateshead have seen a dip, neither has yet achieved the 
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CCG target of 95%.  The target of 95% being offered a health appointment within 20 

working days of consents received has been exceeded by Gateshead but Newcastle 

have seen a dip. Having implemented our performance management tools we are 

able to identify the element of the process which is key to the delays. Late consents 

continue to be the top cause. We have also identified a reduction in clinical capacity, 

in Quarter 4, as all paediatric services recover from previous restrictions, we will 

continue to closely monitor this element.  The teams continue to work closely with 

their local authorities to improve consents.  

Newcastle IHA activity increased by 19% and Gateshead activity reduced by 11%. 

Review Health Assessments (RHA’s) continued during the pandemic utilising 

innovative and safe ways of working. Both areas improved on completion within the 

month due, just falling short of the 95% target.  The team completed many of the out 

of area assessments that in previous years would have been sent out for completion 

by locality teams.  

Newcastle RHA activity increased by 7% and Gateshead increased by 12.5%. 

 

3.1.3 Health Needs Assessment and data collection:  

Data collected 2020-21 has continued and new elements should give an improved 

outline of children with additional health needs including those linked to Special 

Education Needs and Disability (SEND) once reviewed. It is hoped this data can be 

fed into both areas place based agenda for children and young people whilst also 

supporting CCG planned service developments.  

 

3.1.4 Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing:  

Mental health and emotional wellbeing is now seen as a comparative with physical 

health needs. Data collection, training, and service provision our key areas of focus. 

Cumbria Northumberland Tyne and Wear (CNTW) have continued to offer 

consultation sessions throughout the pandemic utilising innovative ways of safe 

working. Data from these sessions will be shared once compiled and analysed.  

The enhanced model of support (jointly funded) in Newcastle continues to support 

our most complex young people in residential provision. A Clinical Psychologist, 

Occupational Therapist and Speech and Language Therapist support and advise 

staff and offer direct intervention, as appropriate, to those young people. I 

understand the project has evaluated well and am awaiting sight of the report. A 

similar model is under discussion for Gateshead. 

Those most complex CIC /LAC including those requiring impatient beds are tracked 

using our anonymised database. Progress and plans are shared with the Designated 

Nurse LAC by NGCCG Mental health Coordinator who has oversight of these young 

people and their plans for discharge. It is recognised nationally that there is a lack of 
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appropriate step-down placements therefore robust multi agency discussion is 

required to ensure required support is provided and safety maintained.  

 

3.1.5 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):  

Designated health professionals have continued to work on the LAC health 

improvements within the Written Statement of Action in Newcastle, as required 

following the 2018 SEND inspection. Primarily these relate to improvements being 

made in the timescales of initial health assessments and the interface between LAC 

health assessments and the Educational and Health Care Plan process. A revisit by 

OFSTED is expected.  

 

3.1.6 Health needs of care leavers 16-25 years 

Funding was secured from NHS England to carry out a piece of work on the health 

needs of our care leavers in Newcastle and Gateshead. Currently the health offer for 

CIC/LAC ends at age 18. The project was planned to start April 2020, due to Covid 

19 all plans were put on hold. We resurrected this piece of work in January 2021 and 

the commissioned media service has almost completed the compilation of young 

people's views. Young people undertook their own recordings and designed their 

'Avatars' for the video.  

  

3.1.7 FASD:  

The review of LAC with this diagnosis in Gateshead is complete. The report is to be 

presented to Gateshead Overview and Scrutiny Committee for LAC then will be 

shared wider.  

 

3.1.8 Coding of Learning Disability for LAC/CiC in Primary care 

Previously a small-scale scoping exercise identified only 40% of CIC/LAC with a 

learning disability diagnosis were correctly coded in Primary Care. Progress on this 

issue was put on hold as during this period there was a national push to improve 

coding for Learning Disability in which both areas met the set target.  

 

3.2 National Development & Progress 

The designated nurses LAC continue as North East & Cumbria representatives on 

the NHS England North Region LAC sub group. Funding for the care leavers project 

was secured via this route. At this forum we have raised the safeguarding issue 

relating to children placed in area where there are safeguarding risks and this 
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placement and information not being shared at CCG level. This is now being 

considered at a regional and national level.  

The designated nurses LAC continue as representatives on the North East Migration 

Partnership Meetings, in our locality there has been no increase in the number of 

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) in this period. We are awaiting 

the outline of a new National referral mechanism which will aim to disperse UASC 

fairly. It is unclear what impact this may have on our local populations.  

December 2020 saw the updated Intercollegiate guidance (RCPCH/RCN) circulated. 

This recognised the increase in numbers and advised on clearer definition and case 

load ratio for named and designated roles.  

In January 2021 the Government launched The Care Review – an independent 

review of Children's Social Care. The focus is on stability, including placements and 

those placed out of area. There was little reference to health but this has been 

addressed through a combined submission via the National Network of Designated 

health Professionals (NNDHP) 

 

3.3 CCG Assurance Arrangement 

Designated LAC professionals attend the Local Authorities strategic LAC meetings in 

both areas: Corporate Parenting Partnership (CPP) in Gateshead and Children in 

Care Multiagency Partnership (CiCMAP) in Newcastle. They also chair the health 

subgroup of these meetings. Themes relating to the health needs of looked after 

children run through these strategic meetings, through the health sub group agendas 

and correspond with the priority areas identified by the CCG.  

Quarterly dashboards from the Provider LAC health teams give assurance and 

updates against the statutory and contractual requirements. The dashboard has 

been updated into an electronic document to improve data collection.   

The quarterly CCG LAC Strategic meeting brings all designated professionals, 

provider LAC health team representation, CNTW Children Young Peoples service 

(CYPS) LAC specialists and CCG safeguarding representation together. An agreed 

action plan is used as a framework to identify priorities and to track progress made.  

Designated LAC professionals have also attended the  

• CCG Safeguarding Committee & Forum  

• NHSE Sub regional Safeguarding Forum  

• North East & Cumbria LAC & Adoption forum.  

• Named & Designated Professional meeting 

• Additional local authority or provider meetings /committees when CIC/LAC is 

an agenda item 
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Reporting mechanisms for safeguarding, including CIC/LAC, within the CCG are 

scheduled 3 times a year for the Quality Safety & Risk Committee. Reports will be 

provided as required or requested to additional meetings and /or committees. 

Designated professionals LAC have arrangements in place to meet their own 

supervision needs and offer supervision to those with CIC/LAC roles in the provider 

teams.  

 

3.4 Inspection:  

There have been no focused inspections for CIC/LAC in either area during this 

period. The Designated Nurse and Designated Doctor for Newcastle continue to 

support the Written Statement of Action in Newcastle, an improvement framework 

from the 2018 SEND inspection. (See 3.1.5) Inspections are expected to resume 

imminently.  

 

3.5 Serious case review 

The CCG is aware of 1 case relating to LAC, in Gateshead, which continues to be on 

hold whilst awaiting progress in the judicial arena from the Crown Prosecution 

Service. 

The death of a care leaver is being scoped as a single agency review, the outcome 

will inform on the requirement of any additional review. 

 

4. 2021-22 Priorities 

4.1 Covid 19, impact management and recovery.  

Designated professionals will work alongside all services within the wider health 

economy to support recovery of services for CIC/LAC 

 

4.2 Timeframes 

Targets for 2021-22 remain at 95% for initial health assessments within 20 days of 

admission and review health assessments being complete in the month due. 

CIC/LAC health teams will be asked to develop action plans which, alongside the 

established performance management tools, will support progress towards these 

targets. 

 

4.3 Health needs assessment & data collection 

Data collection 2020-21, once analysed, will further inform us of the health profile of 

our CiC/LAC populations. We will continue to engage with place based colleagues to 
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use this data to identify trends, additional needs and inform the local health needs 

assessment.  

 

4.4 Emotional and mental health 

We will continue to monitor the CiC/LAC population needs with the provision of 

quarterly data from consultation sessions. We will continue to promote and support 

innovative ways of working and service development.  

 

4.5 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 

We will continue to support Newcastle local authority with the CiC health elements of 

the WSoA.  

We will re audit coding of CIC/LAC with diagnosis of learning disability within primary 

care records now that local improvements have been achieved (see 3.1.8) and 

strengthen the process of those CiC/LAC with a learning disability being invited for 

an annual assessment with the GP.  

 

4.6 Care Leavers 

Further work is planned to share the video output from the (NHSE funded) care 

leavers project and ensure their views on health services inform changes and 

service improvements which will ultimately better meet their needs and support 

healthy lives now and in the future.  

 

4.7 Dental care 

Due to service pressures the proposal to enhance the dental pathway for CIC in 

Newcastle jointly with the provider team has been put on hold. We plan to review 

and hopefully progress during Quarter 4 2021-22. 

 

4.8 Speech and language 

The Speech and Language Service in Gateshead is currently under review, initial 

contact has been made requesting an enhanced pathway for LAC. We expect further 

progress with this development.  

 

4.9 Sexual health  

The Specialist Nurse LAC in Gateshead, following on from her recent Master's 

dissertation, is developing a focus group with Sexual health services and partners to 
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enhance advice and support for LAC and those who care for them with an aim to 

reduce / delay pregnancy within the LAC population.  

 

4.10 Named Doctor CIC/LAC 

We will continue to press for recruitment to these posts with both Foundation Trusts. 

Both are considering within their paediatric recruitment plans and have been 

requested to add to their risk register.  

  

4.11 Response to national documents:  

We are aware of delayed review of 2 relevant documents:  

• NICE, Looked After Children and young people, Public health guidance note 
28, (NICE 2010 updated 2015), Review & consultation expected. 

• Promoting the health and emotional wellbeing of LAC (DFE/DoH 2015) was 
due review 2020.  

We will respond when consultations open. 
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Benefits to patients 
& the public / link to 
strategic objectives 

• Demonstrates that the CCG are fulfilling their safeguarding children 
statutory responsibilities 

• Demonstrates joint working with partner agencies to learn from 
practice and prevent future occurrences 



 
 

2 

• Provides assurance that commissioned services are safe and 
effective 

 
  

Resource 
implications 
(finance; HR) 

N/A 

  

Legal / equality & 
diversity / 
sustainability 
implications 

N/A 

  

Report history Sixth annual report 
  

Next steps Contents of this report should be noted 
  

Appendices  
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1.0 Introduction 

1.1 This is the sixth safeguarding children annual report produced by Newcastle 

Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group; and will describe some of the 

national safeguarding issues and local safeguarding priority areas which have 

arisen during the reporting period. The report will provide the detail of activity 

across Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group (NGCCG) in 

relation to our statutory responsibilities. It will reflect on the breadth of 

partnership working and focus on safeguarding activity, child safeguarding 

practice reviews and learning reviews, inspection feedback and safeguarding 

assurance. It will consider progress based on the areas for development 

identified in the last report, areas of risk and how these have been addressed, 

while considering the key challenges for this period and future 

recommendations. 

 

1.2 During this reporting period (April 2020 - March 2021) the country has 

endured three lockdowns due to the global corona virus pandemic. Necessary 

restrictions to control the virus were imposed over several months. These are 

likely to have impacted upon the health and safety of many children and their 

families. Children will have suffered abuse and neglect during this time and 

with limited, if any, contact with schools and other statutory and non-statutory 

health and social care services’, the impact of this is expected for some to be 

detrimental to their health and well-being.  

 

2.0 Safeguarding Children Statutory Responsibilities 

2.1.1 The Children Acts of 1989 and 2004 set out specific duties for organisations 

to fulfil their responsibilities to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 

 

2.1.2 Section 11 of the Children Act 2004 places duties on a range of organisations, 

agencies and individuals to “ensure their functions, and any services that they 

contract out to others, are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard 

and promote the welfare of children. This includes NHS organisations and 

agencies and the independent sector, including NHS England and clinical 

commissioning groups, NHS Trusts, NHS Foundation Trusts and General 

Practitioners” (HM Gov 2018, p.55). 
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2.1.3 Following amendments of the Children and Social Work Act 2017, Clinical 

Commissioning Groups have a duty to make arrangements to work together, 

and with other local partners, to safeguard and promote the welfare of all 

children in their area. The Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Patient 

Safety, the Designated Nurse and safeguarding team have worked with the 

other statutory partners and relevant agencies to embed the new 

safeguarding children arrangements through the local safeguarding children 

partnerships (LSCPs), formerly known as local safeguarding children boards 

(LSCBs).  

 

2.1.4 As part of the new arrangements the Tyne, Wear and Northumberland 

Strategic Partnership (originally named the North and South of Tyne 

Safeguarding Strategic Partnership) has continued in its development which 

the Executive Director of Nursing, Patient Safety and Quality and the 

Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children attends. The purpose of this forum 

is to explore what work can be undertaken on a wider geographical footprint, 

sharing best practice and avoiding duplication where possible, whilst 

recognising the need to continue to deliver services locally. This work 

progressed with a set of regional procedures and training frameworks being 

developed however there has been some delay due to the impact of Covid 19. 

This partnership initiated from the successful bid to become an early adopter 

for the new safeguarding arrangements and underwent an evaluation in 2020. 

The outcome of the evaluation resulted in the discontinuation of the initially 

funded and appointed Chair and project manager however the partnership will 

continue to run with existing members with no additional funding.   

 

3.0 Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews (CSPRs), formerly serious case 

reviews (SCRs) 

3.1 Under the new legislation, the responsibility for how the system learns from 

serious child safeguarding incidents lies with the National Child Safeguarding 

Practice Review Panel (the Panel). The Panel will commission and publish 

reviews of serious child safeguarding cases which it thinks raise issues that 

are complex or of national importance. There is still a requirement for 
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safeguarding partners to complete local reviews where they believe there are 

lessons to be learned. This is likely to result in more proportionate local 

learning reviews over a shorter period of time. An analysis of serious incident 

notifications and rapid reviews to the national panel found that the COVID-19 

outbreak continues to present a situational risk for vulnerable children and 

families, with the potential to exacerbate pre-existing safeguarding risks and 

bring about new ones. Notifications in the period April to September 2020 

were 27% higher than the same period in 2019, although the increase in 

notifications was less significant when compared to the 2018 data. (Child 

safeguarding national review panel annual report 2020).  

3.2  There continues to be one Gateshead SCR (initiated prior to statute changes) 

which falls out of this timeframe and has not been published due to ongoing 

delays in the criminal prosecution service.  

4.0  Child Death Reviews 

4.1  Child death review partners are local authorities and clinical commissioning 

groups for the local area (Children Act 2004). Funding for this process is the 

shared responsibility of the CCGs and Local Authorities (formerly this came 

out of the LSCB budget). The revised child death review arrangements (2018) 

stipulate a geographical footprint for undertaking child death reviews should 

cover at least 60 child deaths per year to allow for thematic learning across a 

wider area. This led to the combining of the North and South of Tyne child 

death overview panel (CDOP) with the first combined panel commencing 

virtually in April 2020. NG CCG Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children is a 

panel member attending on behalf of NG CCG and also represents the South 

of Tyne CCGs together with the Designated Doctors.  

 

4.2  The number of child deaths across the combined area during 2020-2021 was 

82 (2019-20 was 81). The panel reviews the death of every child who 

normally resides in each of the areas (5 CCGs and 6 LAs), regardless of 

where the death occurs. In each case the panel will classify the cause of 

death, identify contributory factors, identify any modifiable factors (those 

which can be changed through national or local interventions) and make 

recommendations to prevent future similar deaths, or improve the safety and 
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welfare of children in the local area and further afield. The panel has met 

virtually 8 times during this reporting period.  

 

4.3  The National Child Mortality Database (NCMD) became operational in 2019 

which uses local data from eCDOP, a cloud-based information management 

system commissioned by the CDR partners for use across our footprint. The 

NCMD is maturing and beginning to produce information to further inform 

contributory factors of child deaths. This includes significant findings in 

relation to child deaths and levels of deprivation. "There was a clear 

association between the risk of death and the level of deprivation for children 

who died in England between April 2019 and March 2020. This association 

appeared to exist for all categories of death except malignancy.  Over a fifth of 

all child deaths might be avoided if children living in the most deprived areas 

had the same mortality risk as those living in the least deprived. This 

translates to over 700 fewer children dying per year" (HQIP May 2021, p. 5). 

CDOP are continually reviewing local and national learning to inform and 

make recommendations to prevent future similar deaths. 

 

5.0      National Guidance 

5.1 During this reporting period there has been no specific national safeguarding 

children guidance published however the Government issued a range of 

guidance to direct and support practitioners on the delivery of services during 

the Covid pandemic. Flexibility was required to continue to meet the needs of 

children and families through virtual means based on risk assessment. Where 

risks were deemed high face to face contact continued with staff using 

Personal Protective Equipment.  

 

6.0      Safeguarding Activity 

6.1 It is acknowledged that many children and families will have been hidden 

during the periods of lockdown particularly with the closure of schools and the 

requirement to work from home which reduced the opportunities for victims of 

abuse and domestic violence to escape from their perpetrators and seek 

additional support. The culmination of these events together with financial 

hardship, job losses, bereavement, lack of contact and support from family 
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and friends has been described as the pressure cooker effect and it is 

expected the legacy effect from Covid on children's health and well-being will 

be significant.    

 

6.2 In April 2020 the Designated Nurse initiated regular information sharing 

meetings with provider organisations including both Local Authorities, Police, 

Foundation Trusts, 0-19 years' service and education. This provided an 

opportunity to discuss how services were being delivered locally, what was 

happening on the ground and facilitated the escalation of issues at an early 

stage. This meeting also acted as a support mechanism for staff to share what 

it felt like for them.  

 

6.3 Practitioners were reporting that there appeared to be an increase of children 

presenting with mental health issues, some from a very young age. When 

comparisons were made from the previous year there was no increase in 

numbers however staff felt they were seeing more children due to the reduced 

footfall and attendance to Emergency Departments generally during the 

pandemic. There were concerns about the presentation of younger aged 

children and this was further explored by the Designated Nurse who met with 

colleagues from CNTW. It was acknowledged that children were experiencing 

heightened anxieties for several reasons and parental mental health was 

impacting on the children particularly with the imposed lockdown measures 

leading to some services offering alternate and reduced provision. Assurance 

was gained from CNTW that robust processes were in place to effectively 

manage these children and families.  

 

6.4 A recent study undertaken in 2020 found that clinically significant mental 

health conditions amongst children had risen by 50% compared to three years 

earlier. A staggering 1 in 6 children now have a probable mental health 

condition. It is unknown how far this spike will have long term consequences 

on children’s mental health, nor do we know the impact of further lockdowns, 

but it is highly likely that the level of underlying mental health problems will 

remain significantly higher because of the pandemic. (Children's 

Commissioner 2021). 
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6.5 The safeguarding team realised at an early stage in the pandemic that the 

reduced provision of face-to-face services would inhibit the opportunities for 

abuse to be detected and reported and worked with NHSE to arrange for 

banners to be displayed at Covid testing sites, to raise awareness of where 

the public could get help. Additional resources were also provided to the staff 

manning these sites. Quick guides for GPs were developed and placed on 

GPTeam net for a range of potential safeguarding concerns from child 

exploitation to domestic abuse and parental mental health and well-being to 

name a few.  

 

6.6 Regular calls were held with NHSE to discuss 'hot spots' across the area and 

nationally it was recognised the incidents of domestic abuse were increasing. 

Locally we did not see an increase in the reporting of domestic abuse (as this 

may have been inhibited) but an increase in the severity of the incidents. The 

numbers of shaken babies nationally were also on the rise, one incident 

occurring in Gateshead which has resulted in long term damage to a 6-week-

old baby.  

 

6.7 The safeguarding team has facilitated the roll out of ICON a programme 

supporting parents to cope with a crying baby, aimed to reduce the incidence 

of abusive head trauma. This has now been implemented in the Foundation 

Trusts and is being rolled out in primary care. We have liaised with our 

colleagues in the Local Authorities who can facilitate roll out in their own 

organisations to foster carers and social workers.  

 

6.8 As child safeguarding meetings were being held virtually this provided an 

opportunity for GPs to dial in to child protection conferences and child death 

review meetings to offer their contribution via MSTeams. A process was 

developed with LA colleagues to facilitate this and information is being 

collated to evaluate the effectiveness of this with ad-hoc reports that this has 

been useful. Further work is planned to support primary care with 

safeguarding reports and activity through both a financial payment and 

support from the team.   
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6.9 The lack of face-to-face contact has resulted in safeguarding training being 

delivered virtually and this has continued throughout the pandemic and will be 

evaluated and adapted accordingly. The team has delivered an overview of 

the impact of Covid on safeguarding children and adults at CCG team 

meetings and has continued to deliver sessions to primary care on domestic 

abuse, child exploitation, county lines and gangs, as children have been 

exposed to increased on-line abuse via virtual means.  

 

6.10 During this reporting period the Designated Nurse was involved in a review of 

the North and South exploitation hubs led by the Police. The review concluded 

the termination of the South hub due to reduced capacity and little use of the 

site and the continuation of the North hub. The exploitation hub is deemed as 

an example of good practice. The CCG exploitation nurse continues to lead in 

this area and is a vital source for other advisors who are now acting as single 

points of contact across the region. 

7.0  Child Protection Data  

7.1  Children subject to child protection plans under each category of abuse as of 

the end of March 2021 (NB: at the time of writing the figures for Newcastle and 

Gateshead have yet to be submitted and validated by the Department for Education 

and are therefore provisional and may change very slightly following validation). 

 

165

3

153

1 32
18

Newcastle  Children subject to CP plans at end March 2021 

Emotional abuse Emotional & Physical Abuse Neglect

Emotional & Neglect Physical Abuse Sexual Abuse
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7.2 Table 1: Number of Children subject to Child protection plans 

Newcastle, Gateshead and Nationally April 2015-March 2021 

 

7.3  In Newcastle and Gateshead the largest category of abuse for children on 

plans is emotional abuse. Previously neglect and emotional abuse have been 

on par however the emotional abuse is demonstrable of the levels of domestic 

abuse present in a large number of cases.  Newcastle has seen a significant 

decrease in CP figures due to their new way of working 'Right child, right care' 

focusing on preliminary enquiries with agencies before progressing to section 

47 enquiries and subsequent case conferences and supporting those children 

on the edge of care. Both areas have also had a continued focus on early 

help. The number of children in care/looked after in both areas remains high 

particularly in this reporting period as there has been limited opportunity for 

early intervention and families have reached crisis point resulting in some 

111

69

12

18

Gateshead Children Subject to CP plans at end March 2021 

Emotional Abuse Neglect Sexual Abuse Physical Abuse

 Number and rate per 10,000 children subject to CP plans 2015-2021 

Newcastle Gateshead National 

2017-2018 495 295 53,790 

2018-2019 587 (rate: 101.1) 262 (rate: 66.5) 52,260 (rate: 43.7) 

2019-2020 585 (rate: 99.4) 273 (rate: 69.3) 51,510 (rate: 42.8) 

2020-2021 372 (rate: 63.6) 211 (rate: 53.5) Not yet published 
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children going into care.  There have also been significant delays in court 

processes preventing discharges of children from care.  

7.4 Information from both areas is analysed and monitored at the respective 

Learning Improvement Groups which the Designated Nurse Safeguarding 

Children Chairs.   

 

8.0  Safeguarding Children Workforce  

8.1 The Executive Director of Nursing, Patient Safety and Quality has continued 

to drive forward the Safeguarding Children agenda supported by the 

safeguarding team. The Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children has 

continued to work across Newcastle and Gateshead Local Authority areas. 

There have been some changes to the safeguarding children workforce during 

this reporting period. A safeguarding nurse advisor covering both adults and 

children was appointed and one member of staff left the team, the funding for 

this post was redistributed within the CCG.  

 

8.2     A safeguarding team administrator has been successfully appointed. 

 

8.3  The Safeguarding Nurse advisors (children, adults and children and 

exploitation nurse) have continued to support the safeguarding agenda 

working closely with the Designated Nurse and Named GPs in a number of 

ways e.g. the work generated from the LSCPs sub-groups and associated 

task and finish groups, development and delivery of level 2 training to Primary 

Care and the delivery of exploitation sessions to a variety of workforces. The 

provision of safeguarding supervision to the Children’s Continuing Care 

Nurses and School Nurses employed by Academies and Private institutions, 

and participation in multi-agency audits. Leading the facilitation of the roll out 

of ICON, providing respective challenge and scrutiny in complex meetings, 

advocating for the voice of the child, whilst continuing to deal with the day-to-

day emotive work that safeguarding generates.  

  

8.4 The Named GPs for Newcastle and Gateshead actively support safeguarding 

children arrangements and provide advice and support to colleagues. They 
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continue to review and adapt to virtual delivery of safeguarding children level 

3 training and participate in learning reviews. Work is ongoing to ensure 

robust processes and evaluation is in place to evidence the impact of training 

in general practice.  

 

8.5  An ongoing issue of payments to primary care for safeguarding activity has 

been resolved with an agreement of costs allocated to each practice weighted 

on levels of deprivation. This is in its early infancy and the work will be quality 

assured and evaluated accordingly.  

 

8.6 The Named GPs continue to promote the inclusion and invitation of the 0-19 

years’ service and the maternity service to primary care practice meetings. 

This facilitates the sharing of information on families where there may be 

some concerns which require interventions from health and/or partner 

agencies.  

 

8.7 The Named GP role for Newcastle is shared equally between two GPs and 

there is one Named GP for Gateshead.  

 

8.8 The Designated and Named professionals have been working to a combined 

(Newcastle Gateshead) strategic safeguarding child work plan which will be 

revised with outstanding actions from 2020-21 being incorporated into the 

priority areas for 2021-2022. Due to the demands of Covid there has been 

some drift however a quarterly meeting between the CCG Designated Doctors 

safeguarding children, Designated Nurse and Named GPs commenced during 

this reporting period to facilitate and strengthen learning between primary and 

secondary care and learning from child deaths. It is hoped this group will 

develop further to progress the CCG priorities across a wider range of topics.  

 The Named and Designated professionals' meetings (FTs and CCG) which 

merged across Newcastle and Gateshead has continued virtually and are 

useful in promoting the learning across the two areas.  

 

9.0  Inspection/Review Arrangements/Audits April 2020 - March 2021 
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9.1 CQC announced it would be stopping routine inspections to focus on 

supporting providers during the pandemic.  

9.2 An outstanding action for the CCG in relation to the previous years' section 11 

audit (a requirement of the Children Act 2004), to develop an internal process 

for disseminating information across partner agencies is complete.  

9.3  A bespoke audit designed by one of the Named GPs and implemented within 

primary care in 2019 to fulfil the requirements of the section 11 audit was 

planned to be undertaken annually. However due to the significant demands 

placed upon primary care during the pandemic this will be delayed until 2021.  

 

9.4  Newcastle Safeguarding Children Partnership commissioned an independent 

review of the new arrangements (August -October 2020) which resulted in 14 

recommendations which will be addressed by the partnership going forward.  

 

10.0  NG CCG mandatory safeguarding children training as of end March 2021 

Safeguarding Children Training:  

Level 1: 77% (previous year 77%) 

Level 2: 83% (previous year 72%). 

 

10.1  The level 1 training compliance within the CCG has remained at 77% 

compared to the previous year and the level 2 compliance has increased by 

11%. All staff are encouraged to complete safeguarding children training as it 

is a mandatory requirement. 

 

10.2 In March 2021 the designated nurses (adults and children) delivered 

safeguarding training to a governing body development session highlighting 

the CCG statutory responsibilities, current activity and the impact of Covid 19.  

 

11.0  Assurance Arrangements  

11.1  The Designated Nurse has provided brief reports as directed to the CCG 

through the Quality, Safety & Risk Committee. During this reporting period the 

issues raised have been dominated by the measures instigated to continue to 
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gain assurance of service provision in safeguarding children during the 

pandemic. This included: 

• The designated nurse holding weekly information sharing meetings with 

partner agencies to obtain oversight of service provision for safeguarding 

children and families 

• highlighting areas of concerns particularly in relation to parental mental 

health and the impact on child mental health and how we were addressing 

this with partner agencies 

• The national rise in non-accidental injuries in babies and the incidents in 

our local area and the roll out of ICON 

• Ensuring the committee is aware of the progress made against the 

Newcastle and Gateshead learning reviews 

• The introduction of the pilot for GPs to dial into safeguarding meetings  

• Our plans for continuing the delivery of training via virtual methods and our 

commitment to fulfil our statutory responsibilities through attendance at 

internal and external partnership meetings  

• Acknowledgement by NHSE of good practice in arranging for banners and 

posters to be displayed at testing centres to raise awareness of reporting 

of abuse 

11.2  The Executive Director of Nursing, Patient Safety & Quality attends and 

provides safeguarding developments and updates to all internal strategic 

committees. The Strategic Safeguarding Committee was disbanded as 

provider organisations were unable to attend due to the demands placed upon 

their services and it was agreed by members that the existing safeguarding 

meetings fulfilled the criteria for gaining assurance and sharing good practice.  

11.4  The CCG has been unable to carry out a programme of quality assurance 

visits to Provider organisations due to the restrictions imposed by the 

pandemic  

11.5  The Designated Nurse has continued to undertake 1-1 sessions with the 

identified Named Safeguarding Children leads for each NHS provider 

organisation. These sessions provide an opportunity for the CCG to seek 
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further assurance on any areas of concern and to share any issues/risks 

between the provider and CCG at the earliest convenience in order to find a 

resolution as swiftly as possible. The Designated Nurse continues to be 

invited to and attends the NHS provider safeguarding committee meetings 

and Chairs a joint Designated and Named professionals group in Newcastle 

and Gateshead. This group share emerging safeguarding issues locally and 

nationally, provide feedback from multi-agency working and share good 

practice across the geographical footprint.   

12.0 Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews (formerly SCRs) and 

learning reviews 

 Although the terminology for the serious case reviews has changed to child 

safeguarding practice reviews, there continues to be outstanding SCRs which 

will be referred to as such. During this reporting period there has been one 

child safeguarding practice review (Gateshead), and one learning lesson 

review identified (Newcastle).  

12.1 Newcastle  
 

• Laura SCR released April 2020. A young girl with a learning disability 

was sexually abused by her mother's boyfriend who was a known sex 

offender and was known to MAPPA (Multi-Agency Public Protection 

Arrangements). The themes identified from this review include the 

need to consider sexual abuse in children with disabilities, to obtain the 

voice of the child, to understand who is significant in the child's life 

(male figures) and what their level of contact is with the child.  

Document who the child attends appointments with and their 

relationship. Progression of an action plan for primary care (and 

partner agencies) will be monitored to evidence what has changed in 

practice.  Laura-Report 

• Baby D serious case review was published October 2020. This case 

involved a mother who concealed her pregnancy and gave birth to a 

baby at home, wrapped the baby in a towel and placed the baby in a 

drawer, sadly the baby did not survive. There was limited learning as 

https://www.newcastlesafeguarding.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/SCR-Laura-Report-08.03.2020-FINAL.pdf
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mother was not known to any services until 36 weeks gestation. Baby-

D report 

• A learning review is in progress however has been delayed as the 

author faced demands within secondary care during the pandemic. 

This learning review related to an adult murdered by a young person 

known to services.  

• Three historical learning reviews were due to be undertaken however 

given the significant delays an overview of each case decided that 

practice had improved, and it was unlikely that the same issues could 

reoccur in two of the cases. The third review has been reassigned to a 

different author and will continue to be progressed in 2021.   

• Following the non-fatal stabbing of a teenager of which the perpetrators 

were also children a case was considered for a LCSPR, however it was 

decided the learning from a national review involving county lines and 

gangs will be used to inform local learning. 

12.2  Gateshead  

• A LCSPR will be undertaken following the shaking of a 6-week-old 

baby who suffered significant injuries.  

• A SCR is awaiting publication, a young female who was looked after 

disclosed to her current foster carer that she had been sexually abused 

by her previous foster carer. This review was initially delayed due to the 

crown prosecution service processes; and has been further delayed 

due to Covid and the backlog of cases awaiting court hearings.  

• A learning review was undertaken following a baby suffering non-

accidental injuries. The mother was a child who had been looked after 

and was a care leaver. She had successfully parented her first child 

however this was whilst in a supported placement. The learning from 

this review highlighted the need for agencies to consider additional 

vulnerabilities of care leavers, primary care should be included in any 

multi agency correspondence relating to LAC and Care Leavers, and 

unborn babies require their own pre-birth assessment. The Designated 

Nurse LAC produced a 7-minute briefing to raise awareness of LAC 

https://www.newcastlesafeguarding.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Baby-D-SCR-September-2020.pdf
https://www.newcastlesafeguarding.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Baby-D-SCR-September-2020.pdf
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and care leavers which was circulated to primary care.                             

7 Minute Briefing 

LAC  Care Leavers.pdf
 

 

13.0  Safeguarding Key Achievements:  

• The Executive Director of Nursing, Patient Safety and Quality and Designated 

Nurse continues to fulfil the role as a statutory partner in the safeguarding 

children arrangements across Newcastle and Gateshead and participate in 

reviews and recommendations in relation to this 

• A range of safeguarding training including mandatory training, exploitation, 

staff briefings to safeguarding leads and governing body members has 

continued to be delivered via virtual methods 

• Pilot to allow GPs to dial in to safeguarding meetings has commenced 

• The merger of the North and South of Tyne CDOP is complete, and the first 

joint meeting commenced April 2020 

• Banners and posters developed and displayed at testing sites to raise 

awareness of how to report abuse 

• Significant piece of work undertaken to agree payments to GPs for 

safeguarding activity weighted on levels of deprivation 

• Roll out of ICON programme  

14.0 Priorities 2021-2022 

• Continue to fulfil strategic responsibilities in line with the safeguarding 

accountability and assurance framework, safeguarding partnership 

arrangements, learning reviews and the child death review process 

• To ensure safeguarding is present and represented throughout the ICS 

developments 

• Work with primary care and provider organisations to develop clear pathways 

for the roll out of FGM-IS in primary care and pilot a process of identifying 

safeguarding risks of prospective fathers from GP held information  

• Evaluate pilot of GPs dialling in to safeguarding meetings via a virtual platform 
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• Revise and strengthen the strategic safeguarding children work plan 

• Implement the requirements of the Domestic Abuse Act (2020) and 

associated strategic and statutory guidance once this is published 

• Continue to work in partnership with the NGCCG Safeguarding Adult team 

and Looked After Children team across a range of safeguarding issues which 

have both a child and adult agenda and require a ‘think family’ approach e.g. 

Domestic Abuse/MARAC, PREVENT, MAPPA, Modern Slavery, Exploitation, 

Trafficking and Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) 

• To collate findings from the National child mortality database and child 

safeguarding practice review panel to inform future learning 

• Manage capacity in relation to increased safeguarding activity during and post 

covid to ensure that key areas of risk are appropriately managed 

15.0 COVID-19 

The legacy of the COVID-19 pandemic is likely to be detrimental to many 

children affecting their health and emotional well-being as well as their 

educational attainment. Children will have suffered abuse and neglect, the 

effects of which may manifest in different ways over time. The safeguarding 

children team will continue to work together with partner agencies to reduce 

the risk of abuse and neglect and improve the life chances of the children and 

young people in Newcastle and Gateshead. 

16.0  Recommendation 

16.1  For NGCCG Executive Committee and Governing Body to note and discuss 

contents of this report. 
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1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The 2020-2021 safeguarding adult annual report will provide the detail of activity 

across Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group (NGCCG) in relation to 
the CCG’s statutory responsibilities. It will include the key priority areas, breadth of 
partnership working and focus on safeguarding activity, Safeguarding Adult Reviews 
(SARs) Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) and safeguarding assurance. It will also 
outline the key challenges for the period, views on risks and future recommendations.  

 
1.2 The report provides: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 Legislation, Guidance and Policy 
 
1.3.1 Newcastle Gateshead CCG has a statutory duty to make arrangements to safeguard 

and promote the welfare of children and a statutory duty to safeguard adults based 
upon current safeguarding guidance and legislation.  The main statutory 
requirements that CCGs and NHS Trusts must comply with in respect to safeguarding 
adults legislation are: 
 

• The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and subsequent amendments require CCGs to 
actively engage with multi agency Community Safety Partnerships to address 
issues linked with crime and disorder. This includes a statutory duty to actively 
contribute to the completion of Domestic Homicide Reviews. 
 

Overview 
The CCG’s statutory responsibilities for 
safeguarding adults 
 
Details the work undertaken in the last year in 
response to local and national drivers for 

learning and improvement. 
 
 

 

Key Priorities 
Sets out progress against the CCG Safeguarding 
Team’s key priorities for 2020 -21 as outlined in last 
year’s annual safeguarding report and identifies 
further key priorities for 2021 - 22 

 

 

Assurance  
CCG is compliant with its statutory safeguarding 
adults' responsibilities, and that the CCG continues 
to be assured of the compliance of our providers. 
 
That all health agencies, have contributed to the 
work of Safeguarding Boards and Safer Partnerships 

 

Commitment  
From all health agencies to promote 
safeguarding practice by collaboratively 
supporting the work of the Safeguarding Adults 
Boards (SABs).   
 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/37/contents
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• Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) (FGM Act 2003). Section B of the 2003 Act 
introduced a mandatory duty (from October 2015) requiring regulated health and 
social care professionals and teachers to report to the police any cases of FGM 
in girls under 18 that identify in the course of their professional work.  

 

• Mental Capacity Act 2005  which is designed to protect and restore power to those 
vulnerable people who may lack capacity to make certain decisions; 
 

• Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 2007 which ensures people who cannot 
consent to their care arrangements in a care home or hospital are protected if 
those arrangements deprive them of their liberty; 

 

• The Care Act 2014 and accompanying guidance 2016 provide the statutory 
framework for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of adults; 

 

• The Modern Slavery Act 2015 which introduced changes in UK law, focused on 
increasing transparency in supply chains. The act specifies that commercial 
organisations that supply goods or services and have a minimum turnover of £36 
million are required to produce a ‘slavery and human trafficking statement’ each 
financial year. The CCG complies with this requirement and publishes its 
statement annually; 

 

• The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015  places a duty on certain bodies in 
the exercise of their functions, to have “due regard to the need to prevent people 
from being drawn into terrorism”. This duty is further clarified in the Prevent Duty 
2015. 

 

• The MAPPA Guidance (revised) 2019  The MAPPA Guidance 2012 places a 
“reciprocal duty” on the CCG and other NHS organisations to co-operate with the 
Responsible Authority in its task of assessing and managing risk to protect the 
public from sexual and violent offenders. 
 

• The Prevent Duty (revised) 2019  places a duty on certain bodies, including CCGs 
and Health providers to have “due regard to the need to prevent people from being 
drawn into terrorism”. 

 

 
1.4 During March 2020 the Government published a range of guidance which was to 

apply for the duration of the COVID–19 Pandemic.   In relation to safeguarding it 
noted that isolation may increase safeguarding risks for some families/households 
and advised CCGs that direct safeguarding work should continue but that time spent 
on safeguarding reviews should reduce. 

 
1.5 On 31st March 2020 the government published guidance for the Care Act Easements 

which were created under the Coronavirus Act 2020.  The guidance temporarily 
relaxed the duties placed on Local Authorities and introduced powers to enable Local 
Authorities some flexibility in relation to assessments, reviews and meeting individual 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/717048/fgm701-eng.pdf#:~:text=Female%20Genital%20Mutilation%20Act%202003%20%205.%20This,in%20protecting%20potential%20or%20actual%20victims%20of%20FGM
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/9/contents
https://www.scie.org.uk/mca/dols/at-a-glance
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2015/30/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/counter-terrorism-and-security-bill
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/821072/DSO_20_2012_MAPPA.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/prevent-duty-guidance/revised-prevent-duty-guidance-for-england-and-wales
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needs.  Whilst some Local Authorities chose to implement the Care Act Easements 
both Gateshead and Newcastle Local Authorities chose not to implement Easements 
under the Coronavirus Act. 

 
1.6  During February 2020 the Government announced plans to introduce a Protect Duty 

which will introduce a law which will require owners and operators of public spaces 
and venues to put in place measures to keep the public safe from a terrorist attack. 
In December 2020 the government announced that introduction of this legislation 
would be delayed into 2021. 

 
1.7 On 14th March 2018 the Government published its response to the Law 

Commission’s consultation on Mental Capacity and Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards (DoLS).  The proposed new legislation, Liberty Protection Safeguards 
(LPS) was intended to be implemented from 1st October 2020.  In July 2020 the 
Government announced a delay in its implementation to 1st April 2022.  LPS requires 
NHS bodies to be ‘Responsible Bodies’ under the Liberty Protection Safeguards. 
Responsible bodies will organise the assessments needed under the scheme and 
ensure that there is sufficient evidence to justify a case for deprivation of liberty.  LPS 
introduces system wide changes with both CCGs and Hospital Trusts being required 
to develop and introduce new arrangements in partnership with Local Authorities 
who are the Responsible Body in a range of other care settings. 

 
1.8 To ensure the effective implementation of LPS the CCG’s Designated Nurse, 

Safeguarding Adults has established and led a multi-agency LPS Implementation 
Group with representatives from both Local Authorities and the two Hospital Trusts.  
This group has met on a monthly basis from December 2020 onwards and 
progressed the following areas of work: 

  

• Developed and agreed terms of reference and reporting arrangements.  

• Established and maintained links with both Regional and National LPS forums to 
inform development of local arrangements. 

• Developed a joint integrated LPS work plan which set out key areas of work and 
milestones and identified opportunities for joint working. 

• Established and maintained a joint risk register to ensure key risks are identified 
and managed. 

• Ensured effective engagement with all partners / stakeholders. 

• Created opportunities to feedback on key areas under consultation for the 
implementation of LPS. 

 

2.0 Safeguarding Activity 
 
2.1 During this reporting period the country went into three lockdowns due to a global 

pandemic (Covid-19) resulting in restrictions that were imposed over a period of 
months in order to contain the virus. These restrictions did impact upon the health 
and safety of many adults and their families. Monitoring and assurance process did 
evidence significant increases in both referrals and contacts in a number of key areas 
of adult safeguarding.  During the first lockdown period there was an initial reduction 

https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-03-14/HCWS542/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-03-14/HCWS542/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-03-14/HCWS542/
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in adult safeguarding referrals as individuals began to have less access to services.  
The issue of hidden families and adults at risk became a key theme of the pandemic 
in many cases this meant that people were in a position where they had to self-isolate 
and this was particularly relevant to victims of Domestic Abuse who became more 
isolated.  This pattern was repeated during the subsequent lockdown periods.  
Overall the pandemic led to increases in safeguarding activity with increases 
numbers of referrals for both statutory (Section 42) and non-statutory safeguarding 
support and intervention. 

 
2.2 As the number of safeguarding referrals increased several key themes started to 

emerge.   There was a significant increase in referrals for self-neglect both as a 
primary and secondary concern.  The causes of these increases were varied but 
included cases where a reduction in usual support networks meant people were less 
able to cope, instances where people reduced or delayed contact with services and 
instead tried to self-care.  

 
2.3 Domestic Abuse also started to emerge as a significant issue whilst there has been 

an increase/fluctuation in reported abuse, more worryingly there has been a 
significant increase in the severity of injuries caused by Domestic Abuse.  Many areas 
also saw an increase in the numbers of women who were killed by their partners.  It 
has long been a nationally reported statistic that 2 women per week are killed by their 
partners, during the first 6 weeks of the initial lockdown 19 women were killed by their 
partners. 

 
2.3.1 During 2020- 21 Gateshead Community Safety Partnership decided to re convene its 

Strategic Domestic Abuse Forum.  The forum held its first meeting in January 2021 
and is chaired by the CCGs Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults.  The forum will 
lead the implementation of key requirements of the Domestic Abuse Bill and will 
eventually become the Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board that is required to 
be established in every Local Authority area under the Domestic Abuse Bill.  On 12th 
February 2021 the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
announced funding allocations to local authorities for the delivery of the duty under 
Part 4 of the Domestic Abuse Bill – on the provision of support within domestic abuse 
safe accommodation.  The Domestic Abuse Forum is leading work to agree funding 
proposals for Gateshead which received an allocation of £459,609. 

 
2.4  The national CONTEST Counter Terrorism Strategy was introduced in 2011.  The 

aim of CONTEST is to reduce the risk to the UK and its interests overseas from 
terrorism, so that people can go about their lives freely and  with confidence.  The 
counter-terrorism strategy is organised around four work streams, each comprising a 
number of key objectives: 

 
  • Pursue: to stop terrorist attacks; 
  • Prevent: to stop people becoming terrorists or supporting terrorism; 
  • Protect: to strengthen our protection against a terrorist attack; and 
  • Prepare: to mitigate the impact of a terrorist attack. 
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2.4.1 Prevent is aims to stop or intervene when vulnerable adults and children are at risk 
of exploitation and radicalisation.  It is identified as a safeguarding issue which needs 
to be managed by the statutory partnerships. The CCG as a responsible authority on 
the Community Safety Partnerships has a key responsibility for delivery of Prevent in 
healthcare settings. 

 
2.4.2 The Channel programme is part of Prevent and provides tailored support for people 

referred through Prevent who are considered to meet the criteria for support through 
the Channel process. Channel referrals are discussed at regular multi agency 
Channel panels which are held in each Local Authority area and are chaired by the 
Local Authority.  The CCG Safeguarding Team attend both Prevent and Channel 
meetings in Newcastle and Gateshead to represent the CCG and primary care where 
they share information on behalf of the individual’s GP. 

 
2.4.3 During 2020 - 21 Covid has led to a significant increase in referrals to Prevent and 

the number of cases discussed at the regular Channel Panels in each Local Authority 
area.  The impact of lockdown has been to reduce potential protective factors for 
individuals and coupled with an increase in mental health issues and a general 
increase in online activity this has led to a significant increase in Prevent referrals for 
radicalization.  During 2020-21 there has been a reported 29% increase in referral 
across the Northumbria Police area with the highest increase being recorded in 
Newcastle at 50%.  Whilst there is still a risk of ISIS based ideologies in the North 
East region the greatest risk is posed by Right Wing Terrorism.  Lockdown has also 
led to an increase in self radicalised terrorism which is now termed as Self-Initiated 
Terrorists who are harder to identify as they operate in isolation.   

 
2.4.4 A Regional CONTEST Board was established during 2019-20 to support delivery of 

the CONTEST strategy across the area covered by Northumbria Police.   The 
purpose of the Board is to develop a shared understanding of the strategic threat 
posed by terrorism nationally, regionally and to the Northumbria area and the CCGs 
Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults attends the board representing CCGs in the 
region. 

 
2.5   Since December 2020 the CCG Adult Safeguarding Team has been actively involved 

in the management of care home safeguarding and quality concerns which have 
emerged during lockdown.  Concerns relate primarily to three care homes which are 
operated by two care providers.  The concerns are being managed via the joint Local 
Authority and CCG procedure for Serious Provider Concerns and both providers are 
working with the CCG and Local Authority in the management of these issues.  The 
current concerns for both providers were raised by whistle-blowers and describe 
organisational abuse, a negative staff culture and specific individual allegations of 
abuse.  

 
2.5.1 The most significant concerns related to allegations regarding a care home which has 

led to a Police investigation which commenced in January 2021 involving 49 alleged 
victims and 15 staff suspects.  The CCG Safeguarding team are representing the CCG 
working with the Police and Local Authority to progress this investigation.  Whilst the 
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Police investigation is still ongoing it is possible that this may lead to charges against 
staff members involved.   

 
2.6 During quarter 3 and quarter 4 2020 -21 there has also been an increased number of 

safeguarding concerns raised in relation to complex home care packages.  This is 
potentially linked to reduced external oversight during Covid and increased pressures 
on staff to deliver complex levels of care in the community.  Where issues have been 
identified the CCG Safeguarding Team have linked directly with the CCG Quality Team 
and CHC Team to ensure these are effectively managed.  Where necessary this has 
involved the review of other care packages to provide assurance that other patients 
continue to receive safe and appropriate care. 

 
2.7   In response to the COVID -19 pandemic as with the wider CCG staff teams the 

safeguarding team has been working remotely since March 2020 and have adapted 
their working arrangements to ensure the CCG continued to comply with its statutory 
duties and responsibilities for safeguarding.  Key areas of development have included: 

 

• Strengthened Partnership Working – sharing information, seeking assurance and 
collaborative approaches with statutory partners. 

• Ensuring Safeguarding is included in recovery planning. 

• Ensuring CCG staff actively support Safeguarding Strategy meetings, discussions 
and related activity. 

• Maintaining effective information sharing on behalf of primary care services to 
support key safeguarding processes such as MARAC, MASH, MAART, Prevent 
and Exploitation. 

• Developed and shared additional guidance for primary care staff in relation Covid 
specific issues. 

• Worked with provider trusts to support delivery of services and safeguarding 
responsibilities during COVID. 

• Managing an increased workload whilst also supporting the work of the wider 
statutory partnerships; 

 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.0      Newcastle Gateshead CCG Safeguarding Adult Priorities 2020-21  
 

Key achievements  
 

•  Ensured safeguarding adults has been actively promoted during Covid including placing banners and posters at 
testing sites and vaccination hubs. 

• Established and supported targeted work and task and finish groups on key issues e.g. care homes;   
• Developed new approaches to deliver training remotely and to share learning. 
• Ensured effective information sharing via regional and national safeguarding networks. 
• Increased both capacity and training within the team to manage increased numbers of Statutory Reviews. 
• Chaired and led key areas of work to support the system in relation to safeguarding adults, 
• Developing plans to proactively manage and support services coming out of the pandemic, 
• Reviewing the Gateshead joint CCG/Local Authority Serious Provider Concerns Protocol. 
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3.1 The adult safeguarding work plan (Section 6) outlines the key objectives for the 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG Safeguarding Adults Team, alongside continuation of 
existing work streams and “business as usual” in ensuring that the CCG continues to 
comply with statutory obligations. This work plan has been reviewed and updated by the 
new Designated Nurse who was appointed in September 2020.  Whilst the team have made good 
progress in implementing the work plan it has been necessary to defer or extend some target dates 
where achievement has been impacted by Covid or external factors.  Where this is the case work 
will be continued as part of the 2021-2 work plan and priorities.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.0      Assurance – Key Health Priorities 

4.1  Internal Assurance 
 
4.1.1 Following the appointment of a replacement Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults 

in September 2020 the Adult Safeguarding Team has maintained a full establishment 
and have continued to manage the CCGs statutory duties and responsibilities for 
safeguarding adults.  CCG internal assurance is provided via safeguarding reports to 
the Quality Safety and Risk Group (Quarterly).  Reports provide local updates on the 
work of the safeguarding partnerships and ensure that key safeguarding risks, issues 
and developments are reported within the CCG.  Reports also outline activity relating 
to Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) and 
other non-statutory reviews such as Appreciative Enquiries. 

Newcastle additional priorities 
   
• Newcastle Safeguarding Adults Board have set priorities for 2020 which included a review of the Adult Multi-

Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) which was implemented during 2019 -20.  The Local Authority are seeking 
CCG support to provide a health input into the MASH and whilst the review of MASH has been slightly delayed 
during 2020-21 the CCG will support this review through 2021-22. 

• In February 2021 Newcastle Safeguarding Adults Board approached the CCG to seek funding to support the 
work of the Board and increased financial pressures related to the numbers of Safeguarding Adult Reviews 
which have been agreed during 2020-21.  The Safeguarding Team supported the Executive Director of Nursing 
to develop appropriate funding proposals for the CCG which have been approved for 2021-2 onwards.. 

• Safe Newcastle is developing work to meet the requirements of the Domestic Abuse Statutory Duty which 
includes a requirement to establish a Local Partnership Board (LPB).  The LPB will lead and coordinate 
implementation of a Strategic Needs Assessment and Commissioning Strategy for Domestic Abuse services in 
the City and the Safeguarding Team will be working as part of the LPB to deliver these priorities. 

 

 

Gateshead additional priorities 
 
• During 2020-21 Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board has identified a number of priorities which the 

Safeguarding Adults Team are actively involved in supporting via sub-groups and task and finish work steams 
these include: 

• Developing a Missing Adult Across Northumbria Protocol which was launched in November 2020.   
Implementation of the Protocol will be formally reviewed in May 2021. 

• Developing Organisational Abuse procedures as part of a review of safeguarding concerns raised in relation to 
Care Homes.  The new procedure will be aimed at providing a service level view of safeguarding activity to 
provide early indicators of potential organisational abuse. 

• Undertaking a review of Gateshead's, the Multi Agency Safeguarding procedures. 
• Reviewing the joint CCG/Local Authority Serious Provider Concerns Protocol. 
• The Safeguarding Team are also supporting Gateshead's Strategic Domestic Abuse Forum to implement 

Strategic Needs Assessment and Commissioning Strategy for Domestic Abuse services. 
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4.2 External Assurance 

 
4.2.1 The CCG Safeguarding Team have established arrangements in place to gain 

external assurance from providers in relation to their compliance with safeguarding 
duties and responsibilities these include: 
 

• Quarterly safeguarding dashboard reporting by each provider which are reviewed 
by the Safeguarding Team. 

• Attendance at Provider Safeguarding Assurance Committee meetings. 

• Regular supervision sessions with Named Professionals employed by the 
provider Trusts. 

• Escalation of any issues or concerns (by exception) reported to the relevant 
provider QRG. 

• Attendance at the CCG Serious Incident (SI) panels. 
 

5.0   Safeguarding Adults Performance/Activity 
 

5.1 Safeguarding adult's referral activity for Newcastle during 2020/2021 has increased 
overall by 42% when compared to 2019-20 and there has also been a 32% increase 
in the number of Section 42 (statutory enquiries) when compared to 2019/2020.  
Gateshead report a small rise in Safeguarding Adult Concerns overall at 3.1% but 
similar to Newcastle they have had a significant rise in Section 42 (statutory 
safeguarding enquiries) at 27.9% when compared to the previous year. 

 
 

6.0 Risks and Emerging Themes 
 

6.1 Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS)  
   
6.1.1   Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) are due to be implemented from April 2022 and 

will replace the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS).  The Liberty Protection 
Safeguards will provide protection for people aged 16 and above who are or who 
need to be deprived of their liberty in order to enable their care or treatment and lack 
the mental capacity to consent to their arrangements.   
 

6.1.2 Under the LPS, there is one Responsible Body for each authorisation that is granted. 
In order to identify the responsible body in any given case, the legislation creates the 
following responsibilities:  

• If the arrangements are carried out mainly in an NHS Hospital, the Responsible 
Body is the “hospital manager”, which would in most cases be the NHS Trust that 
manages the Hospital.  

• If the arrangements are carried out through the provision of NHS Continuing 
Healthcare (CHC) for adult patients, the responsible body is the relevant 
CCG/ICS.  

• In all other cases (including in patient care in an independent sector hospital) the 
responsible body is the “local authority” (in most cases this will be the authority 
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that is meeting the person’s needs or in whose area the person is ordinarily 
resident).  

 
 The regulation of the CCG/ICS role as a Responsible Body is likely to be undertaken 

by the Care Quality Commission (CQC). This will mean that CQC may inspect 
CCG/ICS’s for this activity, although details of precisely how the LPS will be regulated 
are still to be confirmed. 

 
6.1.3 The implementation of LPS will present a range of complexities and will require 

system wide change for health and social care practitioners and clinicians and 
presents significant risks for organisations who will need to be in a position to 
implement and manage LPS from the planned implementation date.  Key risks 
include: 

 

• Capacity to deliver LPS to timescale across all organisations – especially for 
health organisations who will have no existing infrastructure to deliver LPS. 
 

• The roll out of a wide scale training programme for staff at all levels, including 
specialist roles that will be required to implement and manage LPS. 
 

• Management of potential existing back logs in community (Judicial) DoLS cases 
as these will need to be managed in parallel with day to day management of new 
cases under LPS.   
 

6.2 Prevent  
 
6.2.1  During 2020-21 there has been a significant increase in Prevent cases with a reported 

50% increase in activity reported in Q3 2020-21 (most current activity data).  As 
previously reported, this has been a direct consequence of Covid and lockdown and 
will be monitored and reviewed by both the Local and Regional CONTEST Boards. 

6.3 Domestic Violence  
 
6.3.1 During 2020-21 as previously set out there has been an increase in Domestic Abuse 

incidents and more significantly a significant increase in the severity of incidents and 
injuries.  It is likely that this trend will continue until sometime after Covid restrictions 
have been fully lifted and this will continue to be monitored by both the Community 
Safety partnerships. 

 
6.4 Safeguarding Reviews and Domestic Homicide Reviews  
 
6.4.1 There has been a significant increase in review activity during 2020-21 with the 

partnerships identifying and approving 5 new reviews.  This coupled with a pause 
on existing reviews during the early part of 2020 means that there are now a 
significant number of reviews which will need to be progressed.  Capacity to 
complete review reports and to support the individual review processes will present 
capacity challenges for the safeguarding team and this will need to be kept under 
review during 2021-2 to ensure the CCG and health partners can meet their 



                                                                                                                                                  

 

14  

statutory responsibilities for both SARs and DHRs. At Quarter 4 2021 the Adult 
Safeguarding team had 14 statutory and non-statutory reviews to complete and this 
figure could potentially rise further during 2021-22. 

 
7.0 Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) and Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) 

 

 7.1 DHRs Newcastle 
 

Safe Newcastle currently has one Domestic Homicide Review which is being taken 
forward jointly with Gateshead as the victim had connections.  A further Domestic 
Homicide Review was agreed in December 2020 following the suicide of a victim 
which was directly linked to Domestic Abuse and as such met the criteria for a DHR. 

 
7.2 SARs Newcastle 
 

In November 2020 the CCG Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults led an 
Appreciative inquiry into the death of a 67 year old who died in March 2020, the final 
report is due to be finalised pending the outcome of the Coroner's Inquest in April 
2021.  In December 2020 the Newcastle Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) agreed a 
further three Safeguarding Adult Reviews which have commenced in sequence from 
January 2021. 

 
7.3 DHRs Gateshead 
 

Gateshead Community Safety Board currently has commissioned three Domestic 
Homicide Reviews in process, one of which as reported above is being progressed 
jointly with Newcastle.  

 
7.4 SARs Gateshead 
 

Gateshead Safeguarding Adults Board currently has commissioned one SAR and 
four Appreciative Inquiries in process.  Due to Covid no reviews have been concluded 
during 2020-21.  

8.0 Safeguarding Training  
 
8.1 The CCG safeguarding team have continued to deliver a range of training during 2020-21 

although Covid restrictions have required training to be adapted to a virtual format.  The 
Safeguarding Team have during 2020 developed a revised training offer to increase 
accessibility for clinical staff and the range of training delivered has included: 

 

• Level 3 virtual training updates for clinical staff; 

• Safeguarding Briefing sessions; 

• TiTO training sessions; 

• Circulation of recorded training sessions which have also been uploaded to GP Teamnet: 

• Governing Body safeguarding training to ensure the CCG maintains statutory compliance 
for training: 

• CCG staff briefing updates for the wider CCG staff team. 
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8.2 NG CCG mandatory safeguarding adult training as of 1st April 2021 
 

• Safeguarding Adults level 1          -  75% 
 

• Safeguarding Adults level 2          -  83% 
 

• Prevent (Radicalisation) level 1 -  91% 
 

9.0 Key Achievements / New Developments 

 

• The CCG safeguarding Team have ensured that the CCGs statutory 
responsibilities for Safeguarding have been maintained during the pandemic. 
 

• Training has been maintained and developed to ensure staff retain training 
competencies: 
 

• The team have led specific developments including safeguarding information 
and banners being provided for both testing sites and vaccination hubs: 

• Implemented a communications plan to ensure that safeguarding information is 
promoted via CCG social media and to ensure that the team/CCG support 
national safeguarding campaigns. 

• Established and led a multi-agency group to implement LPS across health and 
social care. 

• Worked with partners to manage an increased number of safeguarding and 
quality concerns which have emerged across care homes and home care 
agencies. 

• Led and supported the delivery of statutory and non-statutory reviews. 

10.0 Work Plan: 

ASG%20Work%20Pla

n%202020-21%20Q4%20update.docx
 

 

11.0 Priorities 2021-22 

 

• Ensure that the CCG and commissioned services maintain compliance with 
statutory safeguarding responsibilities. 

• To work with health providers to review and update training provision across 
services to support the trusts to achieve and maintain training compliance with 
the Intercollegiate Guidance for Safeguarding Adults. 

• To work in partnership with both Local Authorities to develop an integrated quality 
assurance and development programme to support providers during the recovery 
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phase of the Covid pandemic. 

• Work with the CCG Quality Team to support the implementation of a revised 
Quality Assurance programme for NHS funded /contracted services. 

• To manage capacity in relation to increased safeguarding activity during and post 
covid to ensure that key areas of risk are appropriately managed. 

• To work collaboratively to ensure that safeguarding is integrated into the wider 
CCG Covid recovery planning processes. 

• Lead multi agency arrangements for the implementation of LPS and ensure that 
statutory organisations are updated in relation to key developments, challenges 
and risks. 

• To ensure the CCG continues to meet its responsibilities in relation to the 
Domestic Abuse Agenda by: 

 

➢ Ensuring that NHS Partners are supported in their participation in Domestic 
Homicide Reviews and that learning continues to be embedded in practice.  

 

➢ Progress work with both Newcastle and Gateshead's Community Safety 
Partnerships to meet the requirements of the Domestic Abuse Bill, including 
Strategic Needs Assessment, development of a Commissioning Strategy 
and establishing Domestic Abuse partnership Boards. 

 

• To support Newcastle Local Authority to undertake a review of the Adult MASH. 

• To review and consider ICS implementation and implications for safeguarding to 
inform and support ICS development whilst also ensuring safeguarding 
arrangements are robust and effective. 

• To prepare for the implementation of the Serious Violence Duty and ensure the 
CCG complies with its core requirements as a specified authority. 

 

12. COVID-19: 
 
12.1 Covid and the lockdown restrictions have had a significant impact on safeguarding, 

and it is expected that as restrictions are lifted there will continue to be a significant 
increase in workload both in terms of day to day management of safeguarding cases 
and statutory reviews.  In addition, the safeguarding team will take a proactive 
approach to supporting providers in their covid recovery planning to ensure that 
services can address potential issues and gaps in service which may have inevitably 
emerged during lockdown.   

 
12.2 In addition working with partners the safeguarding team will review changes and 

developments to working practices that were necessary during the pandemic to 
ensure that where this has enhanced partnerships and ways of working these new 
processes are maintained and fully embed in practice. 

 
The safeguarding adults team will continue to monitor local safeguarding activity and 
highlight identified risks and associated actions to manage the inevitable surge of 
demand on services following the COVID-19 pandemic. 
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2. Recommendations: 

 
QSR/Governing Body are asked to note and discuss the content of the report. 

 
 

3. References: 
 
   
  Care Act 2014 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted  
 
  Royal College of Nursing (2018) Adult Safeguarding: Roles and Competences for Health  
  Care Staff. Intercollegiate Document.  
  https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pub-007069  
 
  SCIE (2020) DoLS. Liberty Protection Safeguards- latest developments: 
  https://www.scie.org.uk/mca/dols/practice/lps  
   
  The Mental Capacity Act: Code of Practice: 
  https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-capacity-act-code-of-practice  
  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pub-007069
https://www.scie.org.uk/mca/dols/practice/lps
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-capacity-act-code-of-practice
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Appendix 1    Glossary 
 
Care Quality Commission  The independent regulator of all health and social care 

services in England. The Care Quality Commission monitors, 
inspects and regulates hospitals, care homes, GP surgeries, 
dental practices and other care services to make sure they 
meet fundamental standards of quality and safety. 

 
Channel     Channel is a programme which focuses on 

providing support at an early stage to people who are 
identified as being vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism. 
The programme uses a multi-agency approach to protect 
vulnerable people. 

 
CNE Quality Surveillance Group Brings together different parts of the health and care system, 

across Cumbria and the North east to share intelligence 
about risks to quality in relation to Healthcare Services.  

 
Community Safety Partnership Policing and Community Safety Partnerships (PCSPs) are 

statutory bodies, set up to help make communities safer. 
They also make sure that the voices of local people are 
heard on policing and community safety issues. 

 
Dashboard A performance report used to provide at-a-glance views of 

key performance indicators (KPIs) relevant to a particular 
objective or business process.  

 
Independent Domestic Abuse Advocate  The main purpose of independent domestic violence 

advisors (IDVA) is to address the safety of victims at high risk 
of harm from intimate partners, ex-partners or family 
members to secure their safety and the safety of their 
children. Serving as a victim’s primary point of contact, 
IDVAs normally work with their clients from the point of crisis 
to assess the level of risk, discuss the range of suitable 
options and develop safety plans. 

 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Ensures people who cannot consent to their care 

arrangements in a care home or hospital are protected if 
those arrangements deprive them of their liberty. 
Arrangements are assessed to check they are necessary 
and in the person’s best interests. Representation and the 
right to challenge a deprivation are other safeguards that are 
part of DoLS 

 
Domestic Homicide Review is a statutory requirement mandated under Home Office 

Guidance conduct a multi-agency review of the death of a 
person aged 16 or over has, or appears to have, resulted 
from violence, abuse or neglect by: a person to whom he or 
she was related, or with whom he or she was or had been in 
an intimate relationship. 

 
DHR Panel a multi-agency panel which is established to manage the 

Domestic Homicide Review process. 
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Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) is a procedure where the female genitals are deliberately cut, 
injured or changed, but there's no medical reason for this to 
be done. 

 
Judicial Deprivation of Liberty is a Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLs) established by 

the Court of Protection (COP) for a person living in the 
community.  A Community DoLS can only be authorised by 
the COP. 

 
Independent Domestic Violence   Specialist DA worker whose role is to  
Advocate (IDVA) work with victims of DA and address the safety of victims at 

high risk of harm from intimate partners, ex-partners or family 
members to secure their safety and the safety of their 
children.  

 
Imkaan Is a UK-based women's organisation dedicated to 

addressing violence against Black and minoritised women 
and girls 

 
 
Independent Management Review   An IMR is a report produced by a Health  
(IMR) report or Social Care Agency providing details and analysis of its 

involvement in a case and forms part of a Domestic 
Homicide Review or Safeguarding Review  

 
Learning Disability Mortality Reviews A national programme to ensure the deaths of people with a 

Learning disability are reviewed. Reviews are carried out with 
a view to improve the standard and quality of care for people 
with learning disabilities. 

 
Liberty Protection Safeguards The Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) are the legislative 

framework for authorising a deprivation of liberty (within the 
meaning of Article 5 of the European Convention of Human 
Rights). They will replace the current process which is called 
the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) through the 
Mental Capacity (Amendment) Act 2019. 

 
Making Safeguarding Personal A sector led initiative which aims to develop an outcomes 

focus to safeguarding work, and a range of responses to 
support people to improve or resolve their circumstances. It 
is about engaging with people about the outcomes they want 
at the beginning and middle of working with them, and then 
ascertaining the extent to which those outcomes were 
realised at the end 

 
Management of Sexual Or Violent   An operating model implemented by the Offenders 
(MOSOVO)       Police for the Management of offenders.     

MOSOVO replaced MAPPA (Multi Agency Public Protection 
Arrangements).   

 
Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub    Provides a single point of contact for all  
(MASH) professionals to report safeguarding concerns. The MASH 

facilitates information-sharing and decision-making on a 
multi-agency basis involving the local authority, health 
agencies and the police. 

 



                                                                                                                                                  

 

20  

Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) a statutory review commissioned by the Safeguarding Adults 
Board in response to the death or serious injury of an adult 
with needs of care and support and it is believed abuse or 
neglect was a factor.  

 
Prevent the Government strategy launched in 2007 which seeks to 

stop people becoming terrorists or supporting terrorism. It is 
the preventative strand of the government’s counter-terrorism 
strategy, CONTEST 

 
 
Section 42 Enquiry The Care Act 2014 (Section 42) requires that each local 

authority must make enquiries, or cause others to do so, if it 
believes an adult is experiencing, or is at risk of, abuse or 
neglect. An enquiry should establish whether any action 
needs to be taken to prevent or stop abuse or neglect, and if 
so, by whom. 
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Governing Body – Risk Update as at 29 June 2021 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 The purpose of this paper is to: 
 

• Present Governing Body with a summary of the Assurance Framework and; 

• Operational risks rated as extreme or high. 
 
 The reporting period is 11 May 2021 to 29 June 2021. 
 

2. Changes to Risk Reporting 
 

Each management Committee now receives a risk register specific to its remit, as 
well as visibility of other risks where relevant.  
 
Governing Body in its role of providing strategic oversight of the CCG continues to 
receive an update on the Assurance Framework (i.e. all strategic risks). In 
addition, extreme operational risks are included for further assurance. 

 
2.1 Assurance Framework 

 
Governing Body has oversight of the CCG’s Assurance Framework. The CCG has 
adopted a new risk rating matrix in common with the other regional CCGs.  
 
The new matrix has changed the risk ratings which are now as follows: 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

• The introduction of the new risk assessment ratings means that strategic risk 
2237 is now rated as high (amber) having previously been rated as extreme 
(red). There has been no change in score. 
 

• No new strategic risks have been opened in the reporting period. 
 

• One strategic risk on the Assurance Framework has been closed. Risk 1632 
related to meaningful engagement with partners and stakeholders. The risk 
was scored 8 G (low) and was closed as the 360° survey was not undertaken 
this year.  
 
 

Full details of the Assurance Framework can be found in Appendix 2. 
 
 

Risk scores Rating 

20 - 25 Extreme 

12 - 16 High 

8 - 10 Moderate 

1 – 6  Low 
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2.2 Extreme and high operational risks 
 

• No new extreme operational risks have been added to the CCG’s risk 
register in the current reporting period. 
 

• Two operational risks have changed in score: 
 

• Operational risk 2313 relates to safeguarding vulnerable groups. 
The risk has increased from 12 A (high) to 16 A (high) due to 
vacancy in designated nurse role. 

• Operational risk 2271 relating to eating disorder service has 
reduced from 16 A (high) to 9 Y (moderate) as draft model 
service has been agreed and CNTW has agreed to recruit to 
specialist roles in Q3.  

• The new risk rating matrix has resulted in one operational risk that was 
previously rated as extreme (red) now being rated as high (amber) 
although the score has not changed: 
 

• Risk 2263 - Mental health services for children 

Details can be found in Appendices 1 and 3. 
 
 
2.3 All CCG risks 

No new risks have been added to the CCG risk register in the reporting period.   
 
Appendix 4 contains the new consequence descriptors that have been adopted by 
the CCG. 

 
 

3. Recommendations 
 

Governing Body is asked to review the Assurance Framework and Extreme 
operational risks and discuss whether: 

 

• The CCG’s strategic risk profile is an accurate representation; 

• Whether the correct risks are being highlighted as Extreme; 

• Whether sufficient actions are being taken to manage the risks.  
 

Appendices 

Appendix 1: Risk Report on the Assurance Framework 
 
Appendix 2: Assurance Framework 
 
Appendix 3: Operational risks scored 10 or above (extreme/high) 
 
Appendix 4: Risk matrix (for information only when reviewing risks) 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF THE CCG RISK PROFILE AS AT 29/06/2021 

1. Risk Heatmap (all risks) 2. Key Points 

(Assurance Framework and extreme or high Operational)

• The CCG has adopted a new risk rating matrix in common with 

the other regional CCGs. In summary the risk ratings are now 

as follows: 

• One strategic risk on the Assurance Framework has been 

closed. Risk 1632 related to meaningful engagement with 

partners and stakeholders. The risk was scored 8 G (low)* and 
was closed as the 360° survey was not undertaken this year. 

• Operational risk 2313 relates to safeguarding vulnerable 

groups. The risk has increased from 12 A (high) to 16 A (high) 

due to vacancy in designated nurse role.

• Operational risk 2271 relating to eating disorder service has 

reduced from 16 A (high) to 9 Y (moderate) as draft model 

service has been agreed and CNTW has agreed to recruit to 

specialist roles in Q3. 
Assurance Framework (Strategic risks) = blue

Risk scores Rating

20 - 25 Extreme

12 - 16 High

8 - 10 Moderate

1 – 6 Low
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3. EXTREME RISK MOVEMENT (Strategic and Operational)

Blue = strategic

Risk 

Ref
Description of Risk

Initial 

Risk 

Rating

Prev. 

Risk 

Rating

Current  

Risk 

Rating

Status Comments

2270 Provision of IAPT Services 20 R 20 R 20 R n

IAPT contract management is being transferred to 

place based management to give more place based 

ownership. Further work required to complete the 

transfer.

2235
Capacity to meet performance targets for 

diagnosis, treatment, cancer and A&E
25 R 20 R 20 R n

Increased wait times expected due to Covid-19.  

Terms of reference for Cancer ICP group to be 

developed.

2342

CCG strategic and operational plans need 

reviewing post Covid and in light of new 

planning guidance which is expected to 

include coping with future surges.

25 R 20 R 20 R n Regular North ICP planning meetings.

2263 Mental health services for children 16 R 16 R 16 A* n Score is driven by waiting times. 

2237 Sustainability of Primary Care 20 R 16 R 16 A* n
Current process for identifying candidates for 

resilience support to be reviewed.

2313 Safeguarding vulnerable groups 16 R 12 A 16 A*  Vacancy in designated nurse role.

2271 Eating disorder services 20 R 16 R 9 Y  CNTW has agreed to recruit specialist roles in Q3.

*Scores of 15 and 16 are now amber (high)
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NEW AND CLOSED RISKS FOR THE ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK

4. New Strategic Risks 

5. Closed Strategic Risks

• Risk 1632 related to meaningful engagement with partners and stakeholders. The risk was scored 
8 G (low)* and was closed as the 360° survey was not undertaken this year. 

No new strategic risks have been created in the period.
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

1. Achieve The CCG's Statutory Duties.

2258, 2346, 2262, 2347,Operational risks:

2420 Mark Adams

Neil Hawkins

Plans to place ICS on statutory
footing result in disruption to
delivery of CCG statutory
duties
Potential disruption to core
CCG business as NHSEI
Integrating Care proposals are
progressed. Impact on staff
morale and risk to delivery of
CCG functions as we transition
to the new system.

AO and Clinical Chair attend
Joint CCG Committee and ICS
Management Board

Minutes from CCG Joint
Committee and ICS
Management Board

None

Regular discussions and
updates provided at CMT,
Executive and Governing Body

NoneMinutes from CMT, Executive
and Governing Body.

None.

Established partnership work
via ICP and emerging
governance arrangements. ICP
groups include ICP Chairs, ICP
DoFs and ICP Chief Officers.

None.Feedback and involvement in
ICP groups.

None

Established placed based
partnerships ensuring joined up
messaging from 'place' to ICS.

NoneMinutes from Collaborative
Newcastle meetings and
Gateshead Cares meetings.

None

20 12 12

2295 Julia Young

Marc
Hopkinson

Coronavirus (Covid-19)
impacting the CCG internal
continuity
There is potential for the
coronavirus outbreak to
interrupt the business of the
CCG, either due to increased
staff sickness or potential
disruption to supply chain

ICP level co-ordinated response None NoneDaily / weekly calls

NG CCG responsible officer
appointed to oversee the
response

NoneClear decisions and
escalation of concerns

None

Command and control incident
response team in place

NoneDaily calls and actions None

Stop / continue critical activity
re-planning

NoneRe-prioritised list of critical
activities

None

Business continuity plans & IA's BIA's were updated however
some staff have been
deployed elsewhere

BCP being refreshed to take
into account ICP approach to
managing surge/escalation
and other areas that have
been flagged during pandemic
response.
BIA's currently being reviewed
to reflect CCG and new place
based approach to working.

None

25 12 8

2. Engage In Strategic Planning Relating To The Commissioning Of High-Quality Health Services

2270, 2235, 367, 2234,Operational risks:

2269 Jackie Cairns

Steven
NGMO
Llewellyn

Prescribing
There is a risk that poor quality
prescribing or drug shortages
could lead to patient safety and
experience issues and
unnecessary prescribing costs.
Caused by national shortages
(e.g. Brexit or supply issues) or
inadequate monitoring and/or
communication. This could
ultimately result in reputational
damage, legal challenge and
unsustainable prescribing cost
growth to the CCG.

Quarterly prescribing report:
Overarching Report, Controlled
Drugs Report, Antimicrobial
Report, submitted to Medicines
and Pathway Committee

NoneMinutes and papers of
Medicines and Pathway
committee

NoneNGA 2018-19/12: Medicines
Optimisation

Annual Practice Pharmacy
teams workplan

NoneSigned off workplans NoneNGA 2018-19/12: Medicines
Optimisation

Quarterly monitoring of Practice
Pharmacy teams workplans at
contract review meetings

NoneMinuted meeting NoneNGA 2018-19/12: Medicines
Optimisation

Contracts with Practice
Pharmacist provider

NoneSigned contract None

OptimiseRx introduced to GP's
to make recommendations on

NoneReport to medicines and
pathway & quarterly

NoneNGA 2018-19/12: Medicines
Optimisation

16 12 6

Page 1NG AF2
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

cost and safety monitoring meetings with
provider

Annual horizon scanning report
from NECS forecasting drug
cost changes

NoneReport outputs None

Annual QIPP plan monitored
monthly at QIPP PMO and
reported bi-monthly to
Medicines and Pathways
Committee

noneApproved plan, meeting
minutes

None

Robust and agreed formulary in
place with all prescribers,
including hospitals, that sets out
expectations for prescribing
activities.

NoneAgreed formulary and local
guidelines through the North
of Tyne & Gateshead Area
Prescribing Committee

NoneNGA 2018-19/12: Medicines
Optimisation

Brexit specific: Department of
Health contingency plans such
as stockpiles, alternative supply
routes and guidance on
planning and preparation.

Unprecedented scenario
which the CCG cannot
influence and will be driven
nationally.

Communications from NHS E /
Department for Health

1295 Joe Corrigan

Hilary
Bellwood

Failure to define and assess
the health needs of the
population.
Failure could result in
commissioning plans which are
not targeted as required, not
based on evidence of clinical
effectiveness and not
representing value for money,
resulting in inefficiencies and
failure to improve the health
and wellbeing of the population
served.

Outsourced business
intelligence services provided
by NECS subject to an SLA and
agreed specification and
monitoring mechanisms in place
to ensure that the SLA with
NECS is delivered to the
required quality BI team attend
planning meetings

1. Issues log.
2. Monthly SLA monitoring
meetings.
3. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes.

No current gaps identified.

Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA) and
Wellbeing for Life Strategy.
Public Heath Colleagues attend
planning meetings as part of
Core Offer

JSNA/NFNA embedded in all
planning processes

Health and Wellbeing Board.
Wellbeing for Life Board.
Audit Report: Health And
Wellbeing Board (significant
assurance).

Operational Plan and
Sustainability and
Transformation plan/ICS/ICP

1. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
2. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes.
3. Integrated Delivery Report.
4. Draft STP./ICS/ICP

No current gaps identified.Internal Audit Report: NGA
2019-20/06: Financial and
Strategic Planning -
substantial assurance

NHS England CCG Assurance
Framework.

NHS England CCG Ratings -
Published on MyNHS July
2019 Outstanding rating for
NGCCG retained

Deep dive reviews on Rightcare
analysis

reference to rightcare in
planning

ICP Planning group meets as a
minimum quarterly and more
frequently when planning
submissions required.

Notes and action logs

16 8 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

Implementation of Phase 3
response was audited and
substantial assurance was
received

Terms of reference were
proposed

Internal Audit

1296 Joe Corrigan

Hilary
Bellwood

Failure to have a coherent
strategy / plan for investment
and disinvestment in place. 
This could prevent allocation of
targeted resource by
population need, inefficiencies
in spend and lead to potential
legal challenge.

Commissioning plan in place
and agreed; informed by the
Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment / NFNA. Public
Heath Colleagues attend
planning meetings as part of
Core Offer

1. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
2. Monitoring of
commissioning plans which
are influenced by the JSNA /
NFNA
3. Commissioning plan
progress reported to
governing body (as part of
IEDR).

No current gaps identified.Internal Audit Report: NGA
2019-20/06: Financial and
Strategic Planning -
substantial assurance.

CCG Governing Body receives
reports on the commissioning
plan progress.

1. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
2. Integrated Delivery
Reports.

Reports from NECS on
commissioning plan progress
to governing body
incorporated in IEDR

Procurement Policy 1. Implementation of the
Procurement Policy.
2. Specialist procurement
advice from NECS.

Decommissioning Procedure 1. Procurement policy in
place.
2. Specialist procurement
advice from NECS.

Quarterly contract review and
quality review meetings in place

Minutes of meetings and
action

NGA 2019-20/05: Contract
and Performance Monitoring

Implementation of Phase 3
response was audited and
substantial assurance was
received

Terms of reference proposedInternal Audit

25 8 8

1630 Joe Corrigan

Hilary
Bellwood

Organisational development
planning fails to address the
need for robust leadership,
engagement, partnership
working and workforce
development.
This could result in a poorly led
organisation which will not
deliver on its strategic
requirements. OD Plan being
updated.

HR Reports HR report received by Chief
Officer, Chief Operating
Officer and Governing Body,
Management Team

HR reports are shared and
reviewed at Gov Body on a
quarterly basis and annually.
HR and OD issues are
discussed eg sickness
absence to ensure the
organisation has oversight in
order to address any areas of
capacity and capability to
deliver strategic requirements.

CCG Assurance Framework 1. Assurance meetings with
NHS England less frequent
due to internal NHSE/I
changes 
2. NHS England CCG Ratings
- Published on MyNHS July
2019 Outstanding rating for
NGCCG retained

Appraisal process 1. Appraisal documentation.
2. Appraisal programme.
3. Monitoring of completion of

NHS National Staff Survey
undertaken, results received
with 80% of staff identifying

8 6 6
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

appraisals by Head of
Organisational Development.
4. Personal Development
Plans.

they have had an appraisal.

Statutory and mandatory
training

1. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.

NECS OD Team prepare and
present update reports on
compliance with statutory and
mandatory training.

Organisation Development plan CCG now has Gold Better
Health Award.
Staff have been supported
throughout the pandemic
around their health and
wellbeing.
Risk assessment have been
undertaken for all staff to
ensure the workforce is fit and
well and able to deliver the
CCG's objectives.

Work has been completed
with NECS support to update
the OD plan. The OD Plan
forms part of the CCG IAF
Assurance

NHS Staff survey received and
feedback from local wellbeing
survey.

Responses from surveys will
be used to develop bespoke
OD support for staff.

2342 Joe Corrigan

Hilary
Bellwood

CCG Post Covid recovery plan

CCG strategic and operational
plans need reviewing post
Covid and in light of new
planning guidance which is
expected to include coping
with future surges.

Existing Operational Plan Awaiting planning guidance
from NHSE/I

Approved by Exec March
2020

Phase 2 recovery planning cell
established, meeting weekly
with Dr Dominic Slowie Medical
Director leading the cell as
SRO.
Phase 3 guidance released and
CCG plan with commentary on
patient activity and workforce
numbers has been submitted.

Notes and action logs
NGCCG Phase 3 plan
monitoring

CCG Phase 3 plan is a local
iteration of the wider ICS plan

Reporting to Governing body
and Executive Committee on
status of plans

Reports and minutes of
meetings

Regular North ICP planning
meetings

Notes of meetings

Between July 2020- March
2021 NHSE/I released planning
guidance in response to phased
recovery from COVID and H1
planning guidance.

Plans have been submitted in
line with the submission
deadlines.

Awaiting feedback but plans
have been shared with
Executive Committee and
Governing Body.

NHSE/I

Health and Inequalities is a
large feature of long term plan
and H1 planning guidance
therefore local CCG and place
based health and inequalities
plan being developed.

Plans are currently being
developed and will be shared
with Governing Body.

The Health and Inequalities
plan was included in the North
ICP plan and received good
feedback will be reviewed in
September 2021.

25 20 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

1299 Joe Corrigan

Lynn Wilson

Challenges of delivering
programmes of joint work with
local authority partners. 
Ability of the CCG to manage
robustly and provide
assurance of formal
agreements (s.75, s76 and
s256) and pooled budgets in
the face of continued financial
pressures.

Formal joint commissioning
arrangements with local
authorities. Recent joint appt
between LA and CCG for a
director in integration and joint
commissioning .

1. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes

Annual refresh of joint
commissioning plans

Monitoring and management of
providers of jointly
commissioned services.

1. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes

Joint commissioning service line
provided by NECS.  KPIs
covering all service lines
provided by NECS have been
agreed

Monitoring of outsourced
services to NECS including
that they have met their KPIs.

Audit Report NGA 1617/13:
Delivery against SLAs
(substantial assurance)

12 8 8

2237 Dominic
Slowie

Philippa
Dodds

Sustainability of primary care
Primary Care is unable to
provide long term, sustainable
and reliable quality care
services to patients. Caused
by workforce shortages,
increased patient demand,
failure of PCNs, infrastructure
and technology limitations.

Regular meeting of the Primary
Care Group to discuss
implications of pressures on
Primary Care.

PCG is an operational
meeting and there is now a
process for discussing risks
and deciding the escalation
processes appropriate. 
Meeting is currently taking
place virtually. 

Escalation of issues to
Primary Care Commissioning
Committee who also receive
PCG minutes.

None

Established CCG team of
Enablers with specialist roles
across workforce, IT and
estates who have good links to
specialist teams in NHS
England.

Some CCG team members
on temporary contracts which
could result in increased
workload when contracts end.
Current vacancies in these
teams will reduce capacity for
support.

PCG membership includes
enablement team and they
have a regular standing item
on the agenda.

NoneRegular audits covering areas
such as CQC audit, Patient
Access Audits, NHS
Workforce reporting, GP IT
audit, 6 facet estates surveys.

Access to Resilience
programmes to support Primary
Care with specific service
provision issues.

Annual, one off process to
access programme with
limited provision which
requires risk ranking and no
guarantees funding will be
provided. 
All practices likely to need
funding for resilience once
implications of Covid 19 are
fully realised. This annual
funding may not cover all
requests.

No gapsNHS England assess access
to Resilience program and
carry out regular progress
audits.

Place based strategic meetings
are taking place in primary care.

CCG has no formal
assurance and receives no
progress updates

CCG place based director
attends the meetings

No formal minutes taken to
record decisions / outcomes.
No overarching CCG wide
assurance

20 16 8

1300 Dominic
Slowie

Philippa
Dodds

Inability of CCG to establish,
manage robustly and provide
assurance of formal primary
care commissioning
arrangements,
which could result in failure to
commission primary care
effectively and efficiently.

Monthly Primary Care
Commissioning Committee as
part of CCG statutory delegated
co-commissioning
responsibility. Currently meeting
virtually with Chairs actions
taken when appropriate.

NonePCCC ToR and Minutes.
Minutes received by CCG
Governing Body. Reports to
the Governing Body.

NoneNHS England approval of
Level 3 submission.
Internal Audit report of Primary
Care Commissioning 2019/20
Reports received by PCCC
public meeting and CCG Audit
Committee.

Regular meeting of the Primary
Care Group to manage strategic

1. Membership of the group.
2. Minutes of the group

None

16 8 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

and operational issues in
Primary Care. Meeting currently
virtual with minutes and actions
taken as normal.

received by Primary Care
Committee.

Primary Care Quality Assurance
Process discussed in Primary
Care Quality Meeting

National data sets used can
be based on historic
information.  Current data set
(Q4 19.20) is delayed as a
result of Covid - 19 pandemic.
Latest data set due
September 2020.
Looking to source local data
to improve current assurance
processes.

Minutes of Primary Care
Quality Meetings. Quarterly
report sent to PCCC. 
New dashboards in
cooperating local data will be
in place covering quarter 3
2021 data and going forward.

None

Quality assurance dashboard Dashboard updated and now
provides better data.

Some data out of date due to
COVID

3. Transform Lives Together Through The Delivery Of Commissioned Health Services Based On Clinically Led, Patient-Focussed And Evidence Based Programmes

1896, 1156, 2314, 2271, 2263, 2261,Operational risks:

1301 Joe Corrigan

Colin Smith

Failure to manage robustly the
delivery of providers against
contracts, leading to failure to
achieve objectives and/or
national targets.
Underperformance against
contracts could lead to failure
to achieve objectives, national
targets and result in increased
waiting list times and failure to
deliver timely NHS care to
patients.

Monthly performance meetings
with main providers. Regular
updates on current performance
against plan underpinned by
assurance meetings.

Regular monthly contract
monitoring meetings with our
providers have resumed after
the break for the
pandemic.These ocntinue on a
regular basis for both major
acute providers. Performance
recovery followng the impact of
the pandemic is a key issue for
discusion given the intorduction
of block contracts has resulted
in reduced need to scrutinize
activity levels and associated
costs.

As a result of the impact of
covid-19 all usual
arrangements for the
monitoring of contract
performance were suspended
and national guidance
implemented which requires
the implementation of block
contracts for this year. This is
intended to provide security to
all organisations in terms of
cash flow. Review of key
performance challenges has
however now recommenced.

1. Contract and performance
meeting minutes.
2. Executive and Audit
Committee agenda and
minutes.
3. Ongoing review of financial
position particularly in relation
to cost reduction plans
4. Notes of meetings of
specific working groups
established to address waiting
time challenges (i.e
dermatology and
ophthalmology).

None

Robust contracts in place with
providers.

Due to the anticipated impact
of the pandemic the DHSC
issued guidance in the spring
which stood down the usual
contract negotiation process
and the requirement to have
contracts signed with all
providers in advance of the
new fiancial year. Normal
contracting processes were
therefore suspended. This
remains the case and further
guidance is awaited on the
process for agreeing contract
for 2021/22.
High level shadow activity and
fiance reports are being
provided by NECS colleagues

1. Meets with NECS to review
contract position on major
contracts in preparation for
reporting to Exec and CRGs.
2. NECS provider
management reports.
3. All contracts agreed and
signed off. (note - not
applicable for 2020/21 as
outlined above).

NoneNGA 1819-09 Contract and
Performance Monitoring -
substantial assurance

16 12 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

to provide an indicative guide
on how contracts woul;d have
been performing had they
remained on a PbR rather
than block arrangement.

Given the intorcution of block
vcontract arrangements due to
the impact of the pandemic,
activity pressures reports have
been stood down.

None1. Ongoing review of financial
position particularly in relation
to cost reduction plans. Note,
as above, financial position
review does not currently
include production of activity
pressures reports as outlined
above. 
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
3. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes.

NoneNGA 1819-09 Contract and
Performance Monitoring -
substantial assurance

Regular updates on current
performance against plan
underpinned by assurance
meetings and action logs.  

Monthly update provided to
Executive Committee and
quarterly to the Audit
Committee.

All contract and performance
review meetings formally
minuted and underpinned by
issues logs.

As a result of the impact of
covid-19 all usual
arrangements for the
monitoring of contract
performance have been
suspended and national
guidance implemented which
requires the implementation
of block contracts for this
year.

1. Contracting and
performance meeting
minutes.
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
3. Contract Operational Group
minutes.
4. Integrated Delivery
presentations to Executive
Committee.

NoneAudit Report: Non-financial
Performance Management
18/19(significant assurance)

1302 Joe Corrigan

Lynn Wilson

The CCG fails to commission
services in an appropriate,
transparent manner.
Failure to commission services
in an appropriate, transparent
manner or failure to comply
with legislation in relation to
competitive tendering, risks
leaving the CCG open to legal
challenges. The delivery of
new or reconfigured services is
delayed.

NECS provides the
procurement service for the
CCG which remains under
review.   The effectiveness of
this service will be reviewed in
year.  
Legal advice sought as
necessary.

1. Monitoring of outsourced
services to NECS, including
that they have met their KPIs.
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes
3. On-going assurance on
procurement plan.
4. Effective management of
conflicts of interest overseen
by Audit Committee.

Audit Report: Delivery against
SLAs NGA1718/13  CCG has
substantial assurance.

Robust communications and
engagement arrangements to
ensure duty to consult is met;
NECS to provide comms and
engagement support.

1. Comunications and
engagement strategy in place.
2. Regular reports to
Executive Committee
regarding duty to consult.

Executive committee. Minutes and papers from EC Regular procurement updates
from NECS.

12 8 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

2389 Joe Corrigan

Neil Hawkins

Health inequalities are not
identified and addressed 
Commissioned services are
designed and delivered in a
way which does not take into
account health inequalities
resulting in a widening of the
health inequalities gap.

Service redesign work as part
of phase 3 COVID response.
SRO appointed and work
includes a dedicated work
stream looking specifically at
health inequalities.

Phase 3 project board.
Regular reports to Executive
and Governing Body.

Health inequalities is a key
theme within planning guidance.
Regular planning meetings
within the CCG help to
coordinate activity and evidence
for assurance.

None identified at presentRegular reporting to Executive
and Governing Body.
Governing Body papers and
minutes. 
Executive Committee papers
and minutes.

None identified at present.Planning submissions to
NHSEI. 
NHSEI assurance meetings.

16 12 12

1303 Julia Young

Julia Young

Failure to ensure that
commissioned services deliver
adequate standards of
infection control and/or monitor
delivery against stringent
quality targets.
Risk that poor partnership,
collaborative and multi-agency
working leads to inadequate
standards of inadequate
infection control in
commissioned services.

Integrated Performance report
to Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee.

1. Quality, Safety and Risk
committee agenda and
minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
3. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes.

Audit Report NGA 2018-19/10:
Quality of commissioned
services (substantial
assurance)

Contracts with acute providers 1. Quality, Safety and Risk
committee agenda and
minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
3. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes.

Attend all Route Cause
Analysis reviews at FTs

Healthcare Acquired Infection
Partnership Board.

Notes of quality review
groups.

CCG rep now chairs ICS
anti-microbial resistance
board.

Service delivery Safety controls adhering to
the COVID policy

PPE provided when attending
patients
Regular reviewal on COVID
policy to meet the national
guidelines

16 9 6

1304 Julia Young

Julia Young

The CCG commissions
services that fall below the
required standards, putting
patient health, safety and
welfare at risk.
Quality of commissioned
services: a structured and
co-ordinated process of
assurance is not in place for
commissioned services
(including acute, mental health,
learning disability and
community services), meaning
that the CCG remains unaware
of any quality issues or
concerns and associated
action plans to address them.

Main provider contracts contain
clear performance expectations

1. Quality, Safety and Risk
committee agenda and
minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
3. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
4. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes

NGA 1819-09 Contract and
Performance Monitoring -
substantial assurance

All large providers on NHS
Standard Contract and
therefore have CQUIN
schemes.

1. Quality, Safety and Risk
committee agenda and
minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
3. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
4. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes

CCG designated posts to drive
quality agenda with further

1. Quality, Safety and Risk
committee agenda and

Internal audit report NGA
1718/04 safeguarding

20 8 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

support from NECS. minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
3. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
4. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes

arrangements (substantial
assurance)
NGA 1718/02 S117 [mental
illness aftercare] (good
assurance)
NGA 1819/10 Quality of
commissioned services
(substantial assurance)

CQC inspections CQC reports - all FTs are
rated good or outstanding.

4. Deliver The CCG Vision Of Improving Patient Involvement, Experience And Outcomes Though TransformationDevelop Programmes To Ensure Transformational Alignment Of The 6 National Service Patterns

2264, 2203,Operational risks:

5. Make Effective Financial Decisions Which Balance Individual, Local, Strategic And Population Needs

2315,Operational risks:

1306 Joe Corrigan

Jill McGrath

Risk to the CCG achieving its
statutory breakeven position. 
Failure to establish robust
budgets. Failure to establish
robust procedures for
monitoring outturn against
budget or to take action on
overspends to ensure a
balanced budget is delivered
while also delivering the
required services.

Audit  Committee. 
Finance and Performance
Committee.

1. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes
3. Action taken on evidence
and review of Budget
statements. 
4. Finance and Performance
Committee agenda and
minutes.

No current gaps identified.NGA 2019-20/07: Key
Financial Controls and QIPP
Reporting - substantial
assurance

Regular meetings between
budget holders and finance
team to ensure progress
against cost improvement plan
As part of the interim financial
framework some meetings were
paused during the early part of
2020/21

Action taken on evidence and
review of budget statements
Month 1-6 financial framework
involved reimbursement of
actual costs.

No current gap

Monthly contracting meetings,
supplemented by adhoc
meetings with acute providers,
to manage specific issues.

1. Contract Meeting minutes
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes

NGA 2019-20/05: Contract
and Performance Monitoring

Provision of bi-monthly reports
to the Governing Body

1. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
2. NHS England monthly
financial return (ISFE).

No current gapAudit Report: NGA
2019-20/07: Key Financial
Controls and QIPP Reporting
(substantial assurance)

Approved annual financial plan. Governing Body agenda and
minutes.

Quality, Performance and
Financial Sustainability meeting.
(QPFS).  The operation of this
meeting was paused in the
early part of 2020/21 alongside
the suspension of QIPP

QPFS paused due to
pandemic and temporary
financial framework

QPFS meeting notes and
action points.

No current gapsNational temporary financial
framework in place. NHSE/I
expected to issue new
guidance at the beginning of
2021/22.

12 8 8

1307 Joe Corrigan

Jill McGrath

Failure to robustly manage the
delivery of expenditure with
providers against contracts
and failure to deliver timely

Monthly performance meetings
with main providers.

Contracting Meeting minutes. No current gaps identified.NGA 2019-20/05: Contract
and Performance Monitoring -
substantial assurance

12 8 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

NHS care to patients.
This would lead to failure to
achieve value for money.

Regular updates on current
performance against plan
underpinned by assurance
meetings

1. Contracting Meeting
minutes. 
2. Audit Committee minutes. 
3. Contract Operational Group
minutes

NGA 2019-20/05: Contract
and Performance Monitoring -
substantial assurance

Accurate performance and
activity reports prepared by
NECS.

Audit Committee minutes

Expansion of former Finance
Sustainability Meeting to cover
quality and performance issues
now (QPFS meeting)
The QPFS meeting was paused
in the early part of 2020/21 as a
result of the Covid-19 response
alongside the suspension of
QIPP but reporting has
continued via Executive.

QPFS meeting notes and
action points.

No current gaps

1633 Joe Corrigan

Julia Young

Increasing activity and cost
associated with CHC
Increasing activity and cost
associated with CHC resulting
in a high impact on overall
financial position.

Development of a CHC Strategy
with a strategic board to
oversee this work along with the
operational workstreams to
deliver improvement across the
CHC pathway.

1. Minutes of meetings.
2. Notes from CHC panels.
3. SLA with NECS.
4. CHAT  - policies and SOPs
documented

No gaps identified.Risk Based Audit of
Continuing Healthcare - NGA
2019-20/08: Continuing
Healthcare and Funded
Nursing Care - substantial
assurance

Implementation of cost
validation process.

Who pays guidance changed
after COVID and further work
required to understand who is
funding patients and the
correct payment mechanisms

QIPP 20/21 Overdelivered
Benchmarking and financial
data collected and shared in
the CCG meetings. 

NECS database of approved
pathways of care.
Regional CHC benchmarking
information.
Treasury funded from March
to September on discharge to
assess model and now fund 6
weeks after discharge for
scheme 2 then patients are
reassessed after.

CCG director oversight
strengthened through
co-location with the enlarged
CHC team and weekly
director-led meetings to review
CHC activity and costs.

Meeting notes and action
plans.
Staff training and
development.

Monthly CHAT assurance tool

Financial impact of high cost
cases reported to CMT weekly.

CMT meeting notes

16 12 12

6. Ensure That Strong Corporate Governance And Information Governance Processes Are In Place

2437, 1094,Operational risks:

1635 Joe Corrigan

Neil Hawkins

Information governance risks
are not identified and
appropriate action to manage
them is not identified / taken to
manage and mitigate risks,
reducing them to an
acceptable level. 
.

Information Governance
Strategy

No gaps in controls identified.1. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
3. Internal Audit

Currently no gaps in
assurance identified.

Data security and protection
toolkit submitted March 2019 -
fully compliant.

Information governance policies 1. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes.

16 8 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.

Caldicott Guardian 1. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.

SIRO 1. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.

Data Security and Awareness
Toolkit

Audit Committee agenda and
minutes.

Data security and protection
toolkit submitted March 2019 -
fully compliant. 
Governance Assurance
Report from NECS.
NGA 2019-20/03: Data
Security and Protection Toolkit
- substantial assurance

Data Security and Awareness
training

Training reports from NECS
training detailing compliance
levels.

Data security and protection
toolkit submitted March 2019 -
fully compliant. 
NGA 2019-20/03: Data
Security and Protection Toolkit
- substantial assurance

1311 Joe Corrigan

Jill McGrath

The organisations does not
have robust risk assessments
in place to identify fraud,
bribery and corruption risks
resulting in non-compliance
with the NHSCFA standards
and risk to the organisation. 
The organisation fails to
consider Crime Risk
Assessments completed by
providers to ensure that
adequate arrangements are in
place within organisations with
which it commissions.

The organisation recognises
fraud bribery and corruption as
a corporate (strategic) risk and
has identified an appropriate
risk owner. Management of this
risk is devolved to Audit One
who have robust systems and
procedures in place.

Counter Fraud arrangements in
place, with accredited and
nominated Local Counter Fraud
Specialist. Includes annual
counter fraud plan. Anti-Fraud
Policy, Whistleblowing Policy.

1. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.
3. Counter Fraud Annual Plan
approved by Audit Committee.
4. Counter Fraud Annual
Report brought to Audit
Committee in May each year.

No current gaps identified.Audit Report: NGA
2019-20/07: Key Financial
Controls and QIPP Reporting
(substantial assurance)

All policies reviewed for
potential fraud implication as
part of approval process

1. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes.

Regular meetings with CFO and
Head of Corporate Services

Production of Counter Fraud
Annual Report

Annual Self Review Tool
completion and action plan

Staff briefings

Audit committee agenda and
minutes

NHS Protect Assessment.

12 8 8
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

1313 Joe Corrigan

Neil Hawkins

The CCG fails to put in place
adequate processes to
manage conflicts of interest.  
This failure could impact on the
ability of the CCG to deliver its
objectives in a cost effective,
open and transparent way.
Perception of conflict of
interest may lead to legal
challenges on decisions,
impacting on the ability of the
CCG to deliver against its
objectives.

Standards of  Business Conduct
and Declarations of Interest
Policy. Quarterly and annual
returns to NHS England
concerning CoI compliance.

No gaps in controls identified1. Signed declarations of
interest. 
2. Register of interests
3. Gifts and Hospitality
Register 
4. Minutes of meetings
(showing declared interests,
exclusions etc.)

No gaps in assurance
identified.

NGA 2020-21/02: Conflicts of
Interest - substantial
assurance

Standing Orders and Prime
Financial Policies.

1. Governing Body agenda
and minutes
2. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes

NGA 2020-21/02: Conflicts of
Interest - Substantial
Assurance

Conflict of interest guardian in
post

Audit Committee agenda and
minutes.

NHS England Assurance
Framework
NGA 2018-19/04: Conflicts of
Interest - Substantial
Assurance

Managing conflict of interest
mandatory training

Training reports received
confirm all decision making
staff who are required to
complete training have done
so.

NGA 2020-21/02: Conflicts of
Interest - Substantial
Assurance

12 8 8

1827 Mark Adams

Joe Corrigan

There is a risk that the CCG
executive team becomes
overstretched.  

There is a risk that the CCG
executive team becomes
overstretched. The CCG Chief
Officer is now shared across
the ICP footprint (Newcastle
Gateshead CCG, North
Tyneside CCG and
Northumberland CCG) and
North Cumbria which could
have knock on effects to the
workload of the executive team
and senior staff. This would
mean that the CCG risks
failing to deliver across the full
range of responsibilities to a
continued high standard.

Governing Body and
committees receive assurance
on discharge of duties and
achievement of targets and
objectives.

No gaps in controls identified.Reports to governing body
and committees: agendas,
papers and minutes.
Risk assurance framework.
CCG annual report confirming
discharge of duties.

Risk reviewed - no gaps in
assurance identified.

NGA 2019-20/01 Governance
Structures and Risk
Management Arrangements -
significant assurance

Organisation structure
underpins distribution of
responsibilities and duties.
System of supervision and
appraisals in place to support
effective deployment of staff
throughout the organisation.

Agreed organisation structure,
in line with CCG constitution
and scheme of delegation.
Staff survey.
Chief Officer meets director
team weekly at CMT to
address the organisation-wide
agenda.

Commissioning support
services delivered via the SLA
with NECS, providing additional
capacity to the CCG together
with collaborative ICP
workstreams on MHS, PLD,
Planned Care and Cancer
Services that will also provide
additional capacity and
resilience

Regular monitoring meetings
with NECS to review workload
and capacity.

Internal Audit assurance on
delivery against SLA (NGA
1718/13 - substantial
assurance).

9 6 6
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29/06/2021

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

1312 Joe Corrigan

Neil Hawkins

Effectiveness of corporate
governance 
The CCG fails to apply
principles of sound corporate
governance meaning the
Governing Body and Executive
Team are not kept informed of
risks and assurances which
might adversely influence
decision making. 

Approved CCG Constitution in
place.

No gaps in controls identified1. Risk Management Strategy
2. Risk assurance framework
and risk registers.

3. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes
4. Governing Body agenda
and minutes
5. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes

No gaps in assurance
identified.

NGA 2020/21 01: Governance
Structures and Risk
Management Arrangements -
substantial assurance

Robust and coherent
governance and assurance
framework

1. Risk Management Strategy
2. Risk assurance framework
and risk registers.

3. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes
4. Governing Body agenda
and minutes
5. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes

1. NGA 2020-21/01:
Governance Structures and
Risk Management
Arrangements - substantial
assurance.
2. Head of Internal Audit
Opinion.

Risk Assurance Framework. 1. Risk Management Strategy
2. Risk assurance framework
and risk registers.

3. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes
4. Governing Body agenda
and minutes
5. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes

NGA 2020-21/01: Governance
Structures and Risk
Management Arrangements -
substantial assurance

Audit Committee; Quality,
Safety and Risk Committee

1. Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee agenda and
minutes
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes
3. Audit Committee agenda
and minutes
4. Committee terms of
reference reviewed annually

Governing Body development
session programme

Governing Body agenda and
minutes.
Governing Body training -
mandatory.

Publication of all statutory
documents on website

CCG public website:
http://www.newcastlegatesh
eadccg.nhs.uk/

Internal Audit 1. Contract in place with
approved provider of internal
audit services including KPIs.
2. Internal audit progress
reports to Audit Committee.

Internal Audit reports and
Head of Internal Audit Opinion.

12 8 8
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29/06/2021

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Assurance Framework

Strategic
Risk 
Ref

Director
Owner

Description Controls Gaps in controls Gaps in assurancesInternal assurances Action on gaps Residual
Score

Target
Score

Initial
Score

External assurances

Commissioning support
services delivered via the SLA
with NECS, providing additional
risk management support to the
CCG.

Regular monitoring meetings
with NECS to review workload
and capacity.

7. Engage With The Public On Key Issues To Ensure Patients Experience The Highest Levels Of Care Available To Them

No operational risks

1305 Mark Adams

Julia Young

Public engagement and
involvement does not actively
inform the development of
services or improvements in
the quality of services.
This could mean that learning
opportunities are missed and
services underperform or are
not sufficiently targeted at
needs, resulting not only in
inadequate services but also a
lack of engagement with or
trust on the part of the public.

Communication and
engagement strategy.

Governing Body agenda and
minutes.

Engagement programme to
continue for 20/21 using virtual
methodology due to COVID-19
Pandemic. On line review
undertaken to agree preferred
method of patients and carers

1. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.

Audit Report NGA 1718/03:
Stakeholder engagement
(substantial assurance)

Lay members and locality team
members for Patient and Public
Involvement.

1. Involvement strategy
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.

Close working with
HealthWatch. Develop more
robust working arrangements
for engagement at a place base
with the Local Authorities and
NHSFT's.

Executive Committee agenda
and minutes.

Patient consultation to be
reviewed

Procurements to be decided
by the Executive meetings

9 4 4

8. Collaborate And Communicate With All Relevant Stakeholders In Relation To The Commissioning Of High-Quality Health Services.

2313, 2238,Operational risks:

1308 Julia Young

Neil Hawkins

Lack of member engagement
in CCG work
Failure to embed locally driven
commissioning improvements
could lead to a lack of
engagement of members in the
work, strategy and progress of
the CCG.

Practice commissioning forum
meetings and regular Time Out
sessions

No gaps in controls identified.1. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes.
2. Governing Body agenda
and minutes.  
3. Commissioning fora
agenda and minutes.

Currently no gaps in
assurance to consider.

Clinical Steering Group (key
forum for clinical input). 
Clinical Chair, Assistant Clinical
Chair, Clinical Directors and
Clinical leads engaged in
planning and delivery.

1. Clinical Steering Group
notes.
2. Executive Committee
agenda and minutes.
3. Operational Plan.

Currently no gaps in
assurance to consider.

NGA 2018-19/05: Financial
and Strategic Planning -
substantial assurance

Annual Members Meeting Minutes of AMM. Currently no gaps in
assurance to consider.

Weekly practice bulletin -
provides main source of
information sharing with
practices and federations.
Supported by regular Teams
sessions and workshops
(bi-monthly/monthly)

None No gaps identified

12 9 9
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Objective Date
Director
Risk owner

Description Initial TargetGaps in control Internal assurances

Score

Gaps in
assurance

Actions
Action owner
Details
Start date - target date
Progress

Residual ReviewsExternal assurances

C L Score C L Score C L

Controls

29/06/2021

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Extreme Operational Risks (15 or above)

Provision of IAPT services in
Newcastle
IAPT services are not provided
timely or to quality for access
and recovery. Caused by staff
shortages, demand, Covid 19
and management of service.
Results in poor outcomes for
patients or regulatory scrutiny.

Dominic Slowie

Jackie Cairns

2270        

Operational (N/G)

20 20Contract with IAPT provider
and review meetings
Mtgs not currently taking place
due to Covid

Regular contract performance
meetings and performance
data not currently in place due
to Covid 19

staff shortages at
provider and large
waiting list
change in delivery
to remote/digital
solutions during
Covid 19

None

Demand modelling as result of
phase 2

Adhoc mtg with providersCOVID is taking
priority over
routine contract
management

None

54 42. Engage In
Strategic Planning
Relating To The
Commissioning Of
High-Quality Health
Services

4 2 85 17/03/2021

Julia Young

Responsible Director
changed

04/03/2021

Catherine Richardson

Risk owner changed
(transferred to Jackie
Cairns)

10/03/2020 Jackie Cairns
IAPT contract management
is being transferred to place
based management to give
more place based ownership.
Further work required to
complete the transfer.
Further actions to be agreed
once this has progressed.

11/01/2021 - 31/01/2021

Capacity to meet performance
access targets for diagnosis,
treatment, cancer and A&E
Risk that demand for services
(both winter and year round)
outstrip capacity within the
system.

Results in failure to deliver key
performance targets for
diagnosis and treatment
including 18 week Referral to
treatment, 6 weeks for
diagnostics, cancer targets
and A&E.

This can result in poor patient
experience and outcomes, the
CCG breaches its Oversight
Framework, or suffers
reputational damage.

Joe Corrigan

Colin Smith

2235        

Operational (N/G)

25 20ICP performance group RTT CCG Governing Body and
Committees receive regular
reports on performance
through the integrated delivery
report (IDR).

Meeting now meets
regualry on a
bi-monthly basis and
is minuted and well
represented. Terms of
reference are agreed
and in place.

None No gap.

ICP performance group for
cancer

CCG Governing Body and
Committees receive regular
reports on performance
through the integrated delivery
report (IDR).

Minuted and
represented by key
stakeholders. Terms
of reference agreed
and in place.

Further
development
required how the
group operates
effectively. Terms
of reference
required.

Monthly Newcastle hospitals
performance sub group and
monthly with QE

Monthly meetings with NuTH
and GHNHSFT to discuss
performance pressures and
mitigation. Meeting minutes
and actions plans feed into the
group

None No gaps in
assurance

Regular contract and
performance meetings with
providers inc. summary of
risks and issues.
Given the move towards
system working more
discussion on performance
issues is being undertaken on
an ICP basis.

Meetings are minuted with
actions agreed

NGA 1819-09
Contract and
Performance
Monitoring -
substantial assurance

Covid-19 has had
a material impact
on performance.
Non urgent
elective activity
has been stood
down since the
beginning of April
and Out Patient
appointments are
severely curtailed.

No gaps in
assurance

Monthly meeting with FT
cancer leads and CCG lead
clinician for cancer

Meeting minutedNone No gaps in
assurance

A&E Delivery Board - board
and operational groups.

M.H provides the
organizational link into urgent
emergency planning.

Meetings are minuted
+ terms of reference
documented

The impact of
covid 19, whilst
reducing demand
on A&E, has
continued to
operate at below
the 95% standard.

No gaps in
assurance

55 42. Engage In
Strategic Planning
Relating To The
Commissioning Of
High-Quality Health
Services

4 2 85 08/04/2021

Colin Smith

Control and actions
updated.

13/11/2020

Colin Smith

Risks updated in
conjunction with Claire
Dovell.

06/01/2020
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Objective Date
Director
Risk owner

Description Initial TargetGaps in control Internal assurances

Score

Gaps in
assurance

Actions
Action owner
Details
Start date - target date
Progress

Residual ReviewsExternal assurances

C L Score C L Score C L

Controls

29/06/2021

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Extreme Operational Risks (15 or above)

Cancer locality groups with
cancer action plans agreed,
led by the CCG cancer leads
(system wide)

Meetings minutedNone None

Covid resumption of services -
The CCG will be actively part
of these discussions given the
need to be part of the
secondary care planning but
also to lead on primary care
mobilisation. Dominic Slowie is
the director lead supported by
senior CCG staff.

Actions agreed via email and
formal notes from recovery
meetings. CCG recovery
template updated at recovery
meetings.

Minutes of meetingsThe CCG is
following guidance
issues by NHSEI
and working with
provider
colleagues to
develop and
submit plans for
the restoration of
services.

None

Children and Young Peoples
Access to mental health
services
CYPS patients do not receive
the right treatment and access
to services, at the right time.
Caused by lack of capacity,
discrepancies in treatment
thresholds, poor
communication and referral
processes. Results in patients
have poor access to timely
and effective treatment, or
could escalate to crisis.
Reputation damage to the
CCG.
Capacity in CYPS for increase
in demand due to Covid 19
and pressure on service if
workforce capacity reduced.

Dominic Slowie

Catherine
Richardson

2263        

Operational (N/G)

16 16CNTW monthly contract
review meeting

NECS Chair the meeting
across north CCGs

Not currently
taking place due to
Covid

None

Trailblazer service
commissioned

The Trailblazer has now been
awarded to a new provider with
performance management
process in place.
Signed contract

None

Monthly access group
(attended by CYPS, school
health, PMHW, education,
social care, Barnardos)

Papers, actions plans, meeting
TOR

Waiting list for
referrals over 18
weeks

None

Quarterly performance
monitoring of variance to the 4
week wait plan.

Report details and trendsReport detail and
trends

None

Daily consultation line for
professionals to call CYPS or
PMHW to discuss queries.

PMHW quarterly
report on number of
consultations

Weekly emotional and health
wellbeing triage meeting
attended by CYPS, PMHW
and school health where
referrals from the early help
hub are discussed when it is
not clear which service would
be best.

Phase 4 covid planning
required Crisis 24/7 CYP MH

Limited until contracting
reinstated 
There is a 24/7 crisis provision
in place

Awaiting contract from
NHSE/I

None Contracting
mechanisms

44 43. Transform Lives
Together Through
The Delivery Of
Commissioned
Health Services
Based On Clinically
Led,
Patient-Focussed
And Evidence
Based Programmes

4 2 84 08/06/2021

Catherine Richardson

Controls and
assurances updated
and reviewed

04/03/2021

Catherine Richardson

Controls and
assurances updated

25/02/2020

Safeguarding Vulnerable
Groups
As a result of the Corona Virus
pandemic and restrictions on
normal service delivery there
is a risk that there will be a
reduced level of safeguarding
referrals and self-reported
disclosure.  This may result in
statutory safeguarding

Julia Young

Julia Young

2313        

Operational (N/G)

16 16Regular
video/teleconferencing with
external key partners

Regular network calls to
highlight and respond to
emerging risks/challenges

Meetings take place as
scheduled and are adequately
represented

Multi-agency
partnerships

None None

Daily CCG director and team
video conferencing to discuss
issues identified and agree

Exceptions escalated to
Executive Committee and
Governing Body

None

44 48. Collaborate And
Communicate With
All Relevant
Stakeholders In
Relation To The
Commissioning Of
High-Quality Health
Services.

4 2 84 16/06/2021

Julia Young

Controls, assurances
and actions reviewed
and updated.

30/04/2020 Julia Young
To successfully recruit to
designated nurse
safeguarding adult post
Job advertised and
interviews to take place.

11/06/2020 - 30/09/2021

Role for Designated Nurse
Safeguarding Adults has now
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Objective Date
Director
Risk owner

Description Initial TargetGaps in control Internal assurances

Score

Gaps in
assurance

Actions
Action owner
Details
Start date - target date
Progress

Residual ReviewsExternal assurances

C L Score C L Score C L

Controls

29/06/2021

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Extreme Operational Risks (15 or above)

partners being unable to meet
their responsibilities to
safeguard and protect
vulnerable adults and children
and potentially serious
safeguarding incidents being
reported by the Police.  Once
restrictions on service delivery
are lifted significant volumes of
cases of abuse, neglect and
exploitation will become
known which may potentially
result in considerable demand
from partners supporting adult
and children's MASH
arrangements

actions to respond accordingly

CCG Quality and Safety group
meeting to seek assurance
from commissioning and
clinical leads, and agree
actions for exception areas.

Exceptions to Exec and
Governing Body

Quality review groups updates
to the QSRC.

We have agreed
with providers we
will receive only
exception
reporting at
present
June 2021,
returned to
comprehensive
quality review
groups.

None

CCG to work with GP
practices and and other
stakeholders to support the
shielded patients and
residents in the care sector.

CCG Quality and Safety Group
Exec and Governing Body

NHSE assurance
framework

NHSE policy guidance
has been updated in
light of the vaccination
programme.

None

CCG safeguarding team
designated professionals
continue to provide specialist
advice and support to primary
care team and work with key
partners to ensure statutory
key committees are
functioning as usual - MAPPA,
MARAC, MASH, CCN etc.

Daily CCG director and team
call
Exec and Governing Body

None None

Recovery plans to be
developed by commissioning
leads to allow business as
usual in a phase approach
when appropriate, so normal
services can be provided to
meet the health needs of
patients

Exec
Governing Body

Recovery plans
are in
development.

CCG comms team to work
with national and regional
teams to promote public health
messages and encourage
people who are unwell to seek
help from their GPs and/or
hospitals if needed.

CCG Quality and Safety Group

Exec
Governing Body

Some healthcare services
have started on the recovery
pathway (e.g dental) to help
balance the urgent demand
against elective recovery
programme

Designated Nurse
Safeguarding Adults in post to
offer expert advice and
guidance

The mitigation for the risk of
the current post holder leaving
and a 3 month gap before new
person starts is  A member of

Executive director of nursing,
patient safety and quality will
assist and a team member is
acting up into the role for 3
months.

Current
designated nurse
safeguarding
adults is leaving.

16/03/2021

Chris Piercy

Risk owner &
responsible director
amended.

been recruited to. 

Date Entered : 16/06/2021
15:54
Entered By : Valerie
Chopamba
-----------
Ongoing pandemic has
impacted on completion of
action

Date Entered : 16/03/2021
17:31
Entered By : Wendy Marley
-----------
The mitigation for the risk of
the current post holder
leaving and a 3 month gap
before new person starts: A
member of the safeguarding
adults team will act up to
Band 8a to lead the
safeguarding adults team
This arrangement will be in
place for 4 months to allow a
transition. During the period
the band 8a will report
directly to the Executive
Director of Nursing with day
to day support and advice
from the Designated Nurse
Safeguarding Children.
Interviews for the
replacement are to be held
on 17th June and there are 5
very experienced candidates
and I anticipate an
appointment will be made
with a start date of 1st
October 2020 
 

Date Entered : 15/06/2020
10:42
Entered By : Liz Durham
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Objective Date
Director
Risk owner

Description Initial TargetGaps in control Internal assurances

Score

Gaps in
assurance

Actions
Action owner
Details
Start date - target date
Progress

Residual ReviewsExternal assurances

C L Score C L Score C L

Controls

29/06/2021

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Extreme Operational Risks (15 or above)

the safeguarding adults team
will act up to Band 8a to lead
the safeguarding adults team
This arrangement will be in
place for 4 months to allow a
transition. During the period
the band 8a will report directly
to the  Executive Director of
Nursing with day to day
support and advice from the
Designated  Nurse
Safeguarding Children.
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG Risk Matrix 
Table 1:   Consequence score 

 
 

Impact score (consequence/severity levels) and examples of descriptors  

 1 2 3 4 5 

Descriptor 
Negligible 
(very low) 

Minor (low) Moderate (low) Moderate (high) High 

Operational  Minor reduction in 
quality of treatment or 
service. 
 
 
 
 
No or minimal effect 
for patients / 
customers 
 
 
 
Loss/interruption >1 
hour. 

Single failure to meet 
national standards of 
quality of treatment or 
service. 
 
 
 
Low effect for small 
numbers of patients / 
customers 
 
 
 
Loss/interruption 
>8hour. 

Repeated failure to 
meet national 
standards of quality of 
treatment or service. 
 
 
 
Moderate effect for 
multiple patients / 
customers if 
unresolved. 
 
 
Loss/interruption >1 
day. 

Ongoing non-
compliance with 
national standards of 
quality of treatment or 
service. 
 
 
Significant effect for 
numerous patients / 
customers if 
unresolved. 
 
 
Loss/interruption >1 
week. 

Gross failure to meet 
national standards 
with totally 
unacceptable levels 
of quality of 
treatment or service. 
 
Very significant effect 
for a large number of 
patients if 
unresolved. 
 
 
Prolonged loss of 
service or facility.  

Reputational Not relevant to 
mandate priorities. 
 
 
No adverse media 
coverage. 
 
 
Recognition from the 
public. 
 
 
 
Rumours 

Minor impact on 
achieving mandate 
priorities. 
 
Low level of adverse 
media coverage. 
 
 
Small amount of 
negative public 
interest. 
 
 
Short term damage 
with stakeholders. 
 

Moderate impact on 
achieving mandate 
priorities. 
 
Moderate amount of 
adverse media 
coverage. 
 
Moderate amount of 
negative public 
interest. 
 
 
Longer term damage 
with individual 
stakeholders. 

High impact on 
achieving mandate 
priorities. 
 
High level of adverse 
media coverage > 3 
days. 
 
Negative impact on 
public confidence. 
 
 
 
Widespread 
stakeholder damage. 

Mandate priorities 
will not be achieved. 
 
 
National adverse 
media coverage > 3 
days. 
 
Damaging to the 
CCG's reputation to 
a degree that the 
public lose 
confidence in the 
NHS as a safe place 
for care. 
Sustained and 
widespread 
stakeholder damage.  

Financial  Small loss  
 
 
 
 
Risk of claim remote 

Loss of 0.1–0.25 per 
cent of budget  

 
 
 
Claim less than 
£10,000 

Loss of 0.25–0.5 per 
cent of budget  

 
 
 
Claim(s) between 
£10,000 and £100,000 

Uncertain delivery of 
key objective/Loss of 
0.5–1.0 per cent of 
budget  
 
Claim(s) between 
£100,000 and £1 million 

 
Purchasers failing to 
pay on time 

Non-delivery of key 
objective/ Loss of >1 
per cent of budget  
 
 
Claim(s) >£1 million  
 
 
Failure to meet 
specification/ 
slippage  
 
Loss of contract / 
payment by results  

Inspection / 
Audit 

Minor 
Recommendations  
 
 
Minor non-compliance 
with standard and/or 
policies  

Recommendations 
given 
 
 
Non-compliance with 
standards and/or 
policies. 

Reduced rating. 
Challenging 
recommendations. 
 
Non-compliance with 
core standards and/or 
policies  

Enforcement action 
Critical report and low 
rating 
 
Major non-compliance 
with core standard 
and/or policies. 

Prosecution. 
Zero Rating. 
 
 
Severely critical 
report. 

Staffing and 
Skill Mix 

Short term low staffing 
level temporarily 
reducing service 
quality <1 day. 

Ongoing low staffing 
level reducing service 
quality. 

Late delivery of key 
objective/service due 
to lack of staff. 
Ongoing unsafe 
staffing. 

Uncertain delivery of 
key objective/service 
due to lack of staff. 

Non-delivery of key 
objective/service due 
to lack of staff.  

Injury Minor injury not 
requiring first aid. 

Minor injury or illness, 
first aid treatment 
needed. 

RIDDOR/ Agency 
needed. 

Major injuries or long-
term 
incapacity/disability. 

Death or major 
permanent capacity.  

Patient 
Experience  

Unsatisfactory patient 
experience not directly 
related to patient care. 

Unsatisfactory patient 
experience- readily 
resolvable. 

Serious 
mismanagement of 
patient care. 

Serious 
mismanagement of 
patient care. 

Totally unsatisfactory 
patient outcome or 
experience. 
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Enclosure 13.1(a)1 

Executive Committee 
Tuesday 11th May 2021 – 10:00 – 10:30 

Via MS Teams 

MINUTES 

 
Chair Dr David Jones 
Present Dr Mark Dornan, Neil Hawkins, Joe Corrigan,  Bill Cunliffe, Mark Adams, 

Dr Georgina Butler, Lynn Wilson, Dr Dominic Slowie, 
 

Apologies                              Jackie Cairns, Julia Young 
In attendance Richard Scott 
PA Support                Carol Kaikavoosi 

  Action 

1 Welcome 
Dr David Jones (Chair) welcomed everyone to the meeting 

 

 1.1 Quoracy 
The meeting was declared quorate. 
  

 

 1.2 Conflicts of Interest 
No conflicts of interest noted 

 

 1.3 Minutes  
No minutes from previous meeting  

 
 

 1.4 Matters arising from the previous minutes / review of action log 
No matters arising 
 

 

 The Executive Committee was conducted via tele conference due to the current COVID period. 
Recognising that some of the responses could not to be left inactive in these current 

circumstances. 

 

2 Commissioning and Contracting 
Newcastle and Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 
Newcastle 
No agenda items 
 
Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 For information only 
3.1 Newcastle and Gateshead Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) Implementation Group  
      Progress Report May 2021 -  R Scott 
Newcastle Gateshead LPS Implementation Group (NGLPSIG) was established in January 2021. 
The group is responsible for coordinating the implementation of the Liberty Protection 
Safeguards across health and social care agencies in Newcastle and Gateshead and has 
representation from health and social care agencies who will have a role in delivering and 
managing LPS.  
 
Local agencies are working towards a timeline for full implementation of LPS by April 2022.  
 
Some of the current challenges include, capacity to deliver LPS within the timescale, the roll out 
of a wide scale training programme for staff at all levels, care home pressures due to Covid, 
arrangements for advocacy services required under LPS are similarly not fully understood and 
need to be mapped and clarified along with organisational responsibilities for commissioning 
services. 
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A Task and Finish group has been set up to work with the implementation group to map the 
capacity and demand. 
ACTION: The Executive Committee noted the content of the report and the risks and 
challenges as identified in the report. 
ACTION: Progress report to come to the Executive Committee on a quarterly basis. 
 
 

4 Governance 
No agenda items 

 

 

5 Any other business 
Integrated Delivery Report 

This report is sent out on a monthly basis to NGCCG Staff and electronically filed on the 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG Hub. 

 

 

 Next Meeting 
Tuesday18th May  2021  Via MS Teams 
10:05 – 10:30 
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Enclosure 13.1(a)2 

Executive Committee 
Tuesday 25th May 2021 – 10:00 – 10:30 

Via MS Teams 

MINUTES 

 
Chair Dr David Jones 
Present Dr Mark Dornan, Neil Hawkins, Joe Corrigan, Bill Cunliffe, Mark Adams, 

Dr Georgina Butler, Lynn Wilson, Dr Dominic Slowie, Jackie Cairns, Julia Young 
 

Apologies                               
In attendance  
PA Support                Carol Kaikavoosi 

  Action 

1 Welcome 
Dr David Jones (Chair) welcomed everyone to the meeting 

 

 1.1 Quoracy 
The meeting was declared quorate. 
  

 

 1.2 Conflicts of Interest 
No conflicts of interest noted 

 

 1.3 Minutes  
No minutes from previous meeting  

 
 

 1.4 Matters arising from the previous minutes / review of action log 
No matters arising 
 

 

 The Executive Committee was conducted via tele conference due to the current COVID period. 
Recognising that some of the responses could not to be left inactive in these current 

circumstances. 

 

2 Commissioning and Contracting 
Newcastle and Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 
Newcastle 
No agenda items 
 
Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 For information only 
No agenda items 

 
 

 
4 Governance 

4.1 Risk Register Report – N Hawkins 
The purpose of the paper is to present risks specifically relating to strategy and operational 
performance to the Executive Committee for discussion. 

To also provide a summary of extreme and high risks across the whole CCG and present a 
profile of the risks facing the CCG as of 14 May 2021. 
 
There have been only a few changes in this period. 
 
One operational risk has been closed:  
Risk 2316 - Lack of accessible PPE compromising patient and staff safety.  The risk had a 
residual score of 10 A (high) and has been closed due to the situation being resolved. 
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The risk score for two risks have been changed: _  
Risk 2437 – Risk that CCG service delivery is disabled by a cyber-attack. The risk was 
previously scored as 8 G (low), the impact of this risk has been reassessed giving a new residual 
score of 12 A (high). 
 
Risk 2258 – System resilience and escalation planning was previously scored as 16 R (extreme) 
and is now 12 A (high).  Regional surge and escalation plans agreed by all stakeholders.  

Emergency planning arrangements are tested regularly and have held up during the pandemic. 
 
Following a paper being taken to Quality, Safety & Risk Committee around reviewing the risk 
matrix, now looking to adopt the NHSE version of the risk matrix to enable a standardised 
approach across CCGs in the patch. 
ACTION: The Executive Committee noted the content of the report; and 
noted the risks and agreed that this accurately reflects NGCCG’s risk profile. 
 

5 Any other business 
Integrated Delivery Report 

This report is sent out on a monthly basis to NGCCG Staff and electronically filed on the 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG Hub. 

 

 

 Next Meeting 
Tuesday 1st June 2021 Via MS Teams 
10:05 – 10:30 
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Enclosure 13.1(a)3 

Executive Committee 
Tuesday 8th June 2021 – 10:00 – 10:30 

Via MS Teams 

MINUTES 

 
Chair Dr David Jones 
Present Dr Mark Dornan, Neil Hawkins, Joe Corrigan, Bill Cunliffe, Mark Adams, 

Dr Georgina Butler, Lynn Wilson, Dr Dominic Slowie, Jackie Cairns, Julia Young 
 

Apologies                               
In attendance Dr Sangeetha Bomisetty 
PA Support                Carol Kaikavoosi 

  Action 

1 Welcome 
Dr David Jones (Chair) welcomed everyone to the meeting 

 

 1.1 Quoracy 
The meeting was declared quorate. 
  

 

 1.2 Conflicts of Interest 
No conflicts of interest noted 

 

 1.3 Minutes  
Minutes from the previous meeting held 25th May 2021 were agreed 

 
 

 1.4 Matters arising from the previous minutes / review of action log 
No matters arising 
 

 

 The Executive Committee was conducted via tele conference due to the current COVID period. 
Recognising that some of the responses could not to be left inactive in these current 

circumstances. 

 

 Dr Sangeetha Bomisetty – New Clinical Lead for Quality from Beacon View Medical 
Practice, joined the Executive Committee as an observer. 

 

2 Commissioning and Contracting 
Newcastle and Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 
Newcastle 
No agenda items 
 
Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 For information only 
No agenda items 

 
 

 
4 Governance 

4.1 CO13 Healthcare Procurement Policy – N Hawkins 

The purpose of this policy is to provide clear and effective guidance to all CCG officers 
when undertaking procurement activities and to ensure that when commissioning 
healthcare services, and it gives a holding position for the next 12 months.  
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Since the policy was last reviewed there has been the EU Exit so multiple changes have 
been made in the policy document to adopt the process changes needed to implement 
this. The content to the links to the detailed financial policies have not changed.  

 

There have been no other significant changes. 

 

The policy will be reviewed again in the next 12 months when the ICS is in operation. 

 

5 Any other business 
Integrated Delivery Report 

This report is sent out on a monthly basis to NGCCG Staff and electronically filed on the 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG Hub. 

 

 

 Next Meeting 
Tuesday 15th June 2021 Via MS Teams 
10:05 – 10:30 
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Enclosure 13.1(a)4 

Executive Committee 
Tuesday 22nd June 2021 – 10:00 – 10:30 

Via MS Teams 

MINUTES 

 
Chair Dr David Jones 
Present Dr Mark Dornan, Neil Hawkins, Joe Corrigan, Bill Cunliffe,  

Dr Georgina Butler, Lynn Wilson, Dr Dominic Slowie, Jackie Cairns, Julia Young 
 

Apologies                              Mark Adams, 
In attendance Steven Llewellyn, Hannah Willougby 
PA Support                Carol Kaikavoosi 

  Action 

1 Welcome 
Dr David Jones (Chair) welcomed everyone to the meeting 

 

 1.1 Quoracy 
The meeting was declared quorate. 
  

 

 1.2 Conflicts of Interest 
Agenda item 2.1 Prescribing section of PEP 2021/22 – GP members can stay for discussion but 
abstain from making a decision. 

 

 1.3 Minutes  
Minutes from the previous meeting held 25th May 2021 were agreed 

 
 

 1.4 Matters arising from the previous minutes / review of action log 
No matters arising 
 

 

 The Executive Committee was conducted via tele conference due to the current COVID period. 
Recognising that some of the responses could not to be left inactive in these current 

circumstances. 

 

2 Commissioning and Contracting 
Newcastle and Gateshead 
2.1 - Prescribing section of PEP 2021/22 – S Llewellyn, H Willoughby 

The prescribing section of the PEP for 2021/22 aims to facilitate engagement with individual GP 
practices to achieve quality, cost-effective prescribing and value for money from use of NHS 
resources in the interests of all patients.  The freed up resources can be used to improve patient 
care and treat more patients. 

 

The scheme focuses on prescribing quality initiatives that deliver QIPP efficiencies.  It has been 
developed through analysis of prescribing data and in conjunction with CCG GP prescribing 
leads, and medicines optimisation team and clinical leads. 

 

The clinical priorities for 2021/22 have been identified as 

• Reducing inappropriate antibiotic prescribing in line with national antimicrobial resistance 
strategy detailed in the NHS England Quality Premium 

• Reducing variation and inappropriate prescribing of opioid and gabapentinoid  

• Reviewing patients with asthma who overuse short-acting beta2-agonist (SABA) inhalers 
It was noted that there are no guidelines on Asthma and whether this could be something that  
S Llewellyn could pick up with Clinical Leads to incorporate this into the PEP scheme. 

ACTION: The Executive Committee approved the prescribing section of the PEP for 2021/22 

 
Newcastle 
No agenda items 
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Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 

3 For information only 
No agenda items 

 
 

 
4 Governance 

No agenda items 

 

 

5 Any other business 
Integrated Delivery Report 

This report is sent out on a monthly basis to NGCCG Staff and electronically filed on the 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG Hub. 

 

 

 Next Meeting 
Tuesday 29th June 2021 Via MS Teams 
10:05 – 10:30 
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Enclosure 13.1(a)5 

Executive Committee 
Tuesday 22nd June 2021 – 10:00 – 10:30 

Via MS Teams 

MINUTES 

 
Chair Dr David Jones 
Present Dr Mark Dornan, Neil Hawkins, Joe Corrigan, Bill Cunliffe, Mark Adams 

Dr Georgina Butler, Lynn Wilson, Dr Dominic Slowie, Jackie Cairns,  
 

Apologies                              Julia Young 
In attendance  
PA Support                Carol Kaikavoosi 

  Action 

1 Welcome 
Dr David Jones (Chair) welcomed everyone to the meeting 

 

 1.1 Quoracy 
The meeting was declared quorate. 
  

 

 1.2 Conflicts of Interest 
None noted  

 

 1.3 Minutes  
Minutes from the previous meeting held 22nd June 2021 were agreed 

 
 

 1.4 Matters arising from the previous minutes / review of action log 
No matters arising 
 

 

 The Executive Committee was conducted via tele conference due to the current COVID period. 
Recognising that some of the responses could not to be left inactive in these current 

circumstances. 

 

2 Commissioning and Contracting 
Newcastle and Gateshead 

No agenda items 

 
Newcastle 
No agenda items 
 
Gateshead 
No agenda items 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 For information only 
No agenda items 

 
 

 
4 Governance 

4.1 HR Policies – N Hawkins 

The HR policies are reviewed every three years or sooner if there is a change in legislation/best 
practise. This report outlines three policies that have been reviewed initially by the HR Policy 
Working group on 21 April 2021, subsequently approved at the CCG Partnership Forum on 11 
June 2021 and now require ratification. An equality impact assessment has been completed for 
all policies.  
Updates include: 
Change Management Policy 

• In line with our NHS people plan the CCG will make all reasonable steps to ensure an 
employee’s mental health and wellbeing is supported through any organisational change. 
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• Each CCG will apply their own local pay protection policy or the previous PCT policy will 
apply. 

 
Grievance Policy 

• The Health & Wellbeing of people involved in investigation and grievance procedures 
should be paramount and continually assessed. Appropriate professional occupational 
health assessments and intervention should be made available to any person who either 
requests it including the consideration of reasonable adjustments or is identified as 
requiring such support.  

 
Retirement Policy 

• A Technical change made - From 1 April 2015 all members without protection joined the 
new 2015 pension scheme.  From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2022 this is known as the 
remedy period as at retirement eligible members can chose to receive 
either1995/2008/2015 scheme benefits for this period.   

 
It was noted that HR policies follow national guidance and although impact Executive members 
too they have been through a regional process and approved at partnership forum (including 
Trade Unions) and are being brought to Executive Committee for ratification. 

ACTION: The Executive Committee noted the changes to the HR policies detailed and 
agreed all 3 HR policies presented. HR06 Change Management, HR11 Grievance, HR29 
Retirement. 

 
 

5 Any other business 
Integrated Delivery Report 

This report is sent out on a monthly basis to NGCCG Staff and electronically filed on the 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG Hub. 

 

 

 Next Meeting 
Tuesday 6th July 2021 Via MS Teams 
10:05 – 10:30 
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG 
Enclosure 13.1(b) 

Quality, Safety and Risk Committee 
Thursday 6 May 2021, 2 – 4pm 
Meeting via Microsoft Teams 

 

 
In attendance; 

 

Margaret Stewart (Chair)                         (MS) Lay Member 

Paul Gertig                                              (PG) Lay Member 

Julia Young                                               (JY)                         Executive Director of Nursing 

Dominic Slowie                                        (DS) Medical Director 

Neil Hawkins                                            (NH) Head of Corporate Affairs 

Kirstie Atkinson  (KA) Clinical Quality Manager/Interim Head of 
Quality & Patient Safety (NGCCG) 

Ann Garside PA Support 

Item  Action  
1. Welcome and Introductions 

Margaret Stewart welcomed everyone to the meeting 
 

 

2. Apologies for absence 
Bill Cunliffe & Neil Macknight 
 

 

3. Quoracy 
The meeting was declared to be quorate 
 

 

4. Declarations of Conflict of Interest 
None 
 

 

5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.1   Notes of previous meeting held 04.03.2021 
The notes were agreed as a true and accurate record. 
 
Matters Arising; 
The Chair queried maternity services and mentioned the GHFT QRG notes 
refer to the three Local Maternity Services (LMS). 
JY clarified there was a need to understand the LMS structure with both ICP 
and clinical networks.  The RVI will be the centre for maternal medicine and 
NGCCG will be the lead commissioner.   Some funding has been allocated to 
the service but discussions to take place around the Perinatal Service.  It was 
confirmed that the key priority is continuity of care for women during labour. 
JY will prepare a short update summary for the next QSR meeting.   
 
5.2   Action Log 
Access & Choice Policy to be updated and brought back to QSR for 
approval 
NH noted the policy is presently with the author for review and it is hoped to 
bring the updated policy to the next meeting in July. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JY 
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Equality Strategy to be updated and brought back to QSR for approval 
NH noted the policy is with the author for review and it is hoped to bring the 
updated Strategy with Objectives and Action Plan to the next meeting in July. 
 
Medicines & Pathways Terms of Reference to be updated and brought 
back to QSR for approval 
Terms of Reference under review.Document will come back to QSR for 
approval in due course. 
 
PG noted that the update around mental health services had not yet been 
provided at Governing Body.  DS advisedthat he was unable to attend the next 
meeting of Governing Body but the Place based directors would address this. 
 
JY advised meetings had been held with the Directors of Nursing in the ICS 
and some slides had been shared suggesting what Quality would look like in 
the future ICS structure.  This is something for QSR Committee to consider as 
the meeting format may need to change. 
The Chair noted that a recent staff bulletin suggested the ICS should build on 
the jewels of the CCG.  It would be good to reflect on past achievements and 
leave a clear legacy when the CCG is dissolved.  
DS noted an advertisement had gone out for a 4 session Clinical Lead for 
Quality for the work the CCG will transition to in the next few months.  There is 
a commitment to the quality agenda and the workforce is expanding to cover it. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DS 

6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Integrated Quality, Safety & Risk Reports 
6.1   NG CCG Clinical Quality Exception Report 
 
Kirstie Atkinson (KA) updated QSR Committee around the Clinical Quality 
Exception Report, including the CCG Exceptions Dashboard. 
The purpose of the report is to provide QSR Committee with an update on the 
quality measures and assurance that actions are being taken with providers 
where necessary.  All issues/exceptionsraised will be discussed in Quality 
Review Groups to gain assurance/detailsof mitigating actions in place. 
 
The following observations were made; 
 
Gateshead NHS Foundation Trust (GHFT) 
 
60 day reporting from Serious Incidents (SII’s) – Gateshead achieved 
compliance of 10% which is a decrease on Q3 performance. KA advised the 
60 day reporting standard is still currently paused due to Covid. 
 
KA noted that the reporting issue and Action Plans had been raised with the 
Trust and it had been suggested that there should be some lighter actions and 
more timely responses.  It was noted the Trust is holding additional SI Panels 
and more reports were being received so hopefully the position will improve. 
 
Page 6/7 – Eight Pressure Damage ulcers noted. 
KA noted that Gateshead were good reporters of Serious Incidents and this 
figure was not out of line. 
DS advised that good assurance had been received in QRG meetings and SI 
panels but consideration should be given to present Covid issues. 
JY confirmed that robust conversations had taken place with the Trust but 
there is a need to understand the acuity of Covid patients and the greater 
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likelihood of tissue damage.  Processes as good as they can be to highlight 
issues and identify themes. 
 
Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (NUTHFT) 
 
Page 4 - There were a total of 182 E.Coli cases reported with the most 
significant theme being central line contamination. 
KA noted NuTH was likely to have more cases because of acuity of patients; 
however work was continuing to reduce HCAI incidents and regular updates 
were provided at the Trust QRG meetings. 
 
Page 5 – A Never Event was reported in April relating to the insertion of a 
wrong strength lens during a cataract operation.  The error had been identified 
and corrected immediately. 
The Chair queried whether this had occurred at the new Ophthalmology pop-
up Centre and whether theatre organisation was a factor.  KA confirmed that 
this was not a Newcastle Gateshead patient but the report will be considered at 
the Serious Incident panel and we will understand the root cause. 
JY noted that South Tees Hospitals NHSFT had undertaken some relevant 
work and it would be good for lessons learned to be shared between the two 
sites. 
 
Page 14 – An increase in inpatient falls was attributed in part to Covid patients 
suffering sudden deconditioning , putting them at greater risk of falls. There 
were also issues about falls post admission but before risk assessment and 
falls while waiting in the discharge lounge. 
 
Page 17 – It was noted that Newcastle Hospitals had received a number of 
awards, including being ranked amongst the top 200 hospitals in the world by 
international publication Newsweek, with both the RVI and Freeman Hospital 
listed in the top ten hospitals in the UK. 
 
Overall there have been issues with new teams working together as a result of 
Covid, and access to equipment such as pressure mattresses. 
 
 
NEASFT 
 
Page 8 – over the previous 12 months the Emergency 999 Service reported 
seven serious incidents relating to treatment delays. 
DS confirmed NEAS was presently at Opel 3.  
 
 
NGCCG 
 
Page 10 – NGCCG received one formal complaint from an MP relating to an 
enquiry on behalf of a constituent regarding access to dietary advice to reduce 
type 2 diabetes. 
It was noted that the National Diabetes Prevention Programme had been 
suspended through Covid but had now restarted.   
 
Action: QSR Committee received and noted the content of the Clinical 
Quality Exception report 
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7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PTG Annual Activity report 
Dominic Slowie (DS) updated QSR Committee on the PTG Annual Activity 
report. 
The role of the Professional Triage Group is to provide a forum to ensure that 
concerns raised about primary care clinicians, such as general practitioners, is 
discussed internally within the CCG with the support of the North of England 
Commissioning Support Unit (NECSU).  This is in order to determine whether 
further investigation may be required by NHSE/I or an appropriate professional 
body. 
 
The purpose of the report is to provide QSR Committee with an overview of the 
activity of the PTG between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021.  DS advised that 
the report contains summaries of all the issues raised but the practices in 
question have been codified to protect identification.  
Performance issues are monitored by NHS England. 
 
In answer to a query from the Chair as to whether QSR Committee could be 
assured there were no patient safety risks that had not been mitigated, it was 
confirmed that due to the nature of the issues it was impossible to confirm this 
absolutely, but great attention was always paid to patient safety risk. 
 
Issue 016 – Concerns raised that a practice was performing below the 
expected standard in relation to numbers of medical staff.  There were no 
particular safety issues or complaints but cannot provide total assurance at this 
stage.  This continues to be a risk but an Action Plan is in place. 
 
Newcastle 019 – Since 2018 there have been ongoing concerns regarding a 
particular practice.  PCC Committee considers performance reports and there 
is an Action Plan around each of the issues.  A face to face CQC visit is 
planned.  There are no particular patient safety issues at present.  However, 
the practice shows comparatively poor performance on cervical smears and 
diabetes monitoring.  
 
Action: QSR Committee received and noted the PTG Annual Activity 
report 
 
 

 

8. 
 
 
 

Corporate Governance documents for approval/noting 
 
8.1  Risk Register report 
 
Neil Hawkins (NH) updated QSR Committee on the Risk Register report.  The 
purpose of the paper is to provide a risk management update for review and 
discussion including; 
 

• A risk register containing risks specific to quality and safety 

• An update of high and moderate risks (across all CCG risks) including 
any significant changes 

• Details of any recommendations to close risks. 
 
NH confirmed that two risks had been down-graded to amber, namely impact 
of Covid and the System Resilience and Escalation Plan risks. 
The risk around PPE availability has been closed. 
NH confirmed risks could be reinstated if and when deemed necessary. 
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DS noted risks around Autism and Learning Disability are still very real.  There 
is a SEND inspection in Newcastle next week. 
JY confirmed she had attended Quality Surveillance Group (QSG) this 
morning.  This had been raised as a significant risk and escalated to the 
national risk register. 
 
PG queried the waiting times for Autism assessment and getting this below 
three months. 
It was noted that the pre-school autism pathway was delivered by Paediatrics. 
80 children awaiting assessment in Newcastle.  Some funding available to 
support a waiting list initiative to ensure assessment is carried out before a 
child starts school in September.  Toby Henderson Trust supports children post 
diagnosis as waiting times can be 12-18 months for children and longer for 
adults. There is a much higher incidence of ASD than previously thought and  
demand is rising faster than service available Autism and ADHD for adults on 
“right to choose” basis for pathways over 18 week waits. 
 
Action:  QSR Committee received and noted the content of the Risk 
Register report 
 
8.2   Risk Rating Matrix proposal  
Neil Hawkins (NH) updated QSR Committee on theRisk Rating Matrix 
proposal. 
 
NH reported that the paper sets out a proposal to standardise the risk 
assessment matrix tool across CCGs in the North East.  The proposal 
recommends adopting the risk matrix tool created by NHS England/NHS 
Improvement in 2019 which changes the risk rating thresholds. 

The move towards greater system working and the establishment of the 
Integrated Care System (ICS) means it is important for organisations to take a 
standardised approach wherever possible.   

The implementation of a standardised risk rating matrix across NECS and the 
CCGs will ensure that the ICS is assured that risks are being assessed in the 

same way and give a clearer picture of priorities and hotspots in the region. 
 
NH noted the normal risk rating is Red, Amber and Green but the proposal is to 
move to Red, Amber, Yellow and Green in the new version.  Scoring is the 
same.  It is not a significant change but it results in some movements in risks. 
NH advised the proposal had been discussed at officer level with no difficulties 
raised.   
 
DS advised the benefit of a consistent comparative across CCG’s would be 
useful but this feels like moving the boundaries.  We need to make sure we are 
not taking our eye off the ball. 
There are some services across the demographic footprint.  Should be 
consistent. 
 
MS confirmed QSR approve the principle of this, subject to examining the risks 
moving to a lower rating and, if necessary, moving them back to a higher 
rating. 
 
Action: QSR Committee received and noted the Risk rating matrix 
proposal 
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8.3  GAR Quarter 4 exception report 
Neil Hawkins (NH) updated QSR Committee on GAR Quarter 4 exception 
report 
 
NH noted that the NECS Governance team provide a Governance Assurance 
Report (GAR) to the majority of CCG committees across the North East (NE).  
Over recent months the governance team has worked with CCG Governance 
leads to review and refresh the current GAR to update the format and promote 
ease of review for CCG committees. 
 
NH advised this is a familiar report for QSR Committee. 
All indicators are healthy and comparable to others. 
The Data Quality training has passed the 90% mark required. 
 
Action: QSR Committee received and noted the GAR Quarter 4 exception 
report 
 
 

9. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.1     Covid-19 update 
Julia Young (JY) provided an update to QSR Committee. 
JY advised that there were no Covid positive patients in the QE and only one in 
the RVI.   
 
The present focus is on vaccination rates and elective recovery restoration 
work going forward, particularly addressing patients who are classed as "long 
waiters". 
 
Workforce is a key risk across the board in terms of Covid discussions.Staff 
across the system have had a hard slog over the past year and are exhausted. 
 
Some planning taking place for a possible third wave of Covid. 
 
Cancer pathways are being prioritised but there is no easy way to recover 
target waiting times quickly.  Need to work sensitively around this but also 
manage expectations as to what is possible going forward. 
 
PG suggested maybe some communication is required to help patients 
understand that there will be long waiting times for treatment. 
JY advised there is almost a daily ICS conversation around messages to the 
general public. 
 
DS noted that the NHS is perceived as a hospital based service but 90% of 
care takes place in primary care.  It is important that Primary care should not 
suffer if all emphasis is placed on hospital care.   
 
It was noted that there is also a need to get messages out around inequalities.  
This will be a continued priority for the new ICS. 
 
With regard to Covid vaccinations, it was noted that the national booking 
system had recently presented a challenge in booking first dose appointments.  
It was confirmed there had been a glitch in the system but hopefully all is 
resolved now. 
 
Action: QSR Committee received and noted the update 
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10. Quality Accounts presentation 
Margaret Stewart (MS)  and Julia Young (JY) updated QSR Committee on the 
Quality Accounts 
 
CNTW 
All services remained open during COVID but no progress on improving 
waiting times.  Existing waits maintained.  Significant concern about long waits 
on the ASD and ADHD pathways. 
Few waiting over 18 weeks for initial assessment for adult and other children’s 
services.  Noted that the community team have the Single point of Access 
(SPA) but there could be long waits for onward referral for interventions. 
No Out of Area placements as of the 31 March 2021 but note this was a 
snapshot in time and there had been issues earlier in the year. 
Suite of options for virtual/face to face consultations to be maintained. 
Thematic review of complaints to be undertaken but it was noted that there 
were a number of Serious Untoward Incidents being reported. 
It was confirmed that there were three significant sources of funding for Mental 
Health commissioning for this financial year. 
 
NuTH 
Reduced activity by 50% April 2020.  Hospital deaths from Covid were the 
lowest in the ICS. 
With regard to staff vaccinations, NuTH ranked in the top five nationally. 
Remote Outpatient consultations worked well.  It was reported that the tele-
dermatology pathway was going well but currently focusing only on 2 week 
cancer referrals. 
Recovery and dealing with long waiting lists a mammoth task. 
Good reduction in serious harm from pressure ulcers in older people’s services 
(excluding Covid related). 
Electronic record systems improved. 
No LeDeR reviews outstanding. 
 
GHFT 
Innovative use of volunteers eg for high risk falls patients, delivery of notes, 
medications etc. 
Safety, Human factors rather than Root Cause Analysis. 
Falls prevention continues with Falls Champions. 
Patient involvement encouraged and mothers involved in developing maternity 
pathways. 
It was noted that the Director of Nursing had moved to South Tees but 
oversight of the work was being maintained.   
 
St Oswalds 
Rapidly adapted care and services to ensure patient safety and increased use 
of technology. 
Creativity in generating income as Covid had severely impacted with the 
closure of charity shops etc. 
Lymphoedema Servicedoing home visits for first time. 
Increased volunteer support – Lymphoedema and Inpatients 
Training programme developed and delivered for employers ‘grief, loss and 
bereavement’ in response to devastating impact of pandemic.  Grant from 
National Lottery Fund. 
Commenced pilot Ambulatory Care Service in April 2021, working with partner 
organisations. 
 

 



 

8 
 

Tyneside Surgical Services 
Developing own facility which is on track to open in June 2021 on the Team 
Valley.  This will provide greater flexibility. 
Outpatient services delivered across four sites, providing advice and guidance 
for all specialities. 
Increased waiting times noted but service addressing this as a priority. 
Services adapted to make use of independent sector hospital services to 
manage waiting lists.   
2021/22 priorities include developing varicose vein ablation surgery and 
endoscopy services. 
 
Mental Health Concern 
COVID-19 outbreaks noted in two services, Pinetree Lodge and Briarwood. 
Three services had CQC HCAI visits with all being ‘assured’ 
Noted that processes were in place for donning and doffing PPE. 
Over 95% staff/residents have had COVID-19 vaccination. 
Good progress made against last year’s quality priorities.  Priorities for this 
year will be set and included in the full quality account report. 
Gateshead has elderly care homes but a lot of individuals in wards at St 
Nicholas Hospital have never had any oversight or case management.  
Consideration to be given around mental health from a quality perspective. 
Need to link in with the Justice System. 
 
Noted Quality Accounts to be finalised by 30 June.  Members agreed there 
was a lot of good practice but there were very clear challenges from the CCG 
in terms of proposing more ambitious quality objectives, learning from Covid 
and embedding existing quality improvements as standard. 
 
Action: QSR Committee received and noted the presentation 
 
 

11. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Quarter 4 Serious Incident report 
 
Kirstie Atkinson (KA) updated QSR Committee on the Quarter 4 Serious 
Incident report 
 
KA noted that thepurpose of this report is to provide the QSR committee with a 
summary of the serious incidents reported in Q4 (1 January to 31 March 2021) 
relating to Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust, Newcastle Upon Tyne 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear 
NHS Foundation Trust, North East Ambulance Serviceand Independent 
Providers. 
 
The report also shows how Trusts have performed against the timescales set 
out in the NHS Serious Incident Framework. This report also includes updated 
sections using a traffic light system which has been developed by the NECS 
clinical quality team to help analyse whether Trusts wards/departments have 
embedded learning from each type of SI they report.   
 
 
NuTHFT 
The following observations were made; 
 
Page 7 - One Never Event reported in Quarter 4 (surgical/invasive procedure), 
bringing the yearly total to three. 
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Page 24 – Ward 12 Freeman Hospital has reported six pressure ulcer Serious 
Incidents over the last three years. 
 
 
GHFT 
Page 17 – Develop the electronic handover tool currently being piloted on a 
small number of wards for general use across the Trust. 
 
Page 17 - Serious Incident in Quarter 3 reported as a result of the Trust failing 
to send GP handover letters to approximately 10% of admissions. 
 
 
NEAS 
It was noted in terms of dispatch crews some significant hand-over delays had 
occurred. 
KA confirmed that a Never Event approach had been taken for this and a rapid 
review carried out.  JY advised that NEAS had undertaken work on turnaround 
times and whilst response times had improved there was no evidence as to 
patient harm.  Some continuing challenges noted in Durham around 
ambulance diverts.   
 
Action: QSR Committee received and noted the Quarter 4 Serious 
Incident report 
 
 

12. Notes from other Committees for information 
 
Action: QSR Committee received the notes from other committees for 
information and noted the content. 
 
 

 

13. Any other Business 
There were no other items of business raised. 
 
 

 

 Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 
Thursday 1 July 2021 via MS Teams   
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Enclosure 13.1(c) 
 

Minutes of an Audit Committee meeting  
(Incorporating the Finance and Performance Committee)  

Held on Wednesday 17 March 2021  
                               Via Microsoft Teams, 2pm – 5pm 

Present: 
Michael Burke 
Jeff Hurst 
Oliver Wood 
Bill Cunliffe 
 

Lay Member (Chair) 
Lay Member   
Lay Member 
Secondary Care Clinician 

MB 
JH 
OW 
BC 
 

In Attendance:   
Joe Corrigan 
Neil Hawkins 
Alyson Williams 
Carl Best 
Martyn Tait 
Cameron Waddell 
 
Item 11 Only 
Colin Smith 
 
Claire Dovell 
 
Minutes: 

Chief Finance & Operating Officer, CCG 
Head of Corporate Affairs, CCG 
Audit One, Internal Audit 
Audit One, Internal Audit 
Audit One, Counter Fraud 
Mazars, LLP, External Audit 
 
 
Head of Performance and Provider 
Management NGCCG 
Performance Manager NGCCG 

JC 
NH 

AW 
CB 
MT 
CW 
 
 
CS 
 
CD 

Val Wood PA Support 
 

VW 
 
 

01/21 01 Pre-meeting for Members and Auditors   
 

Lay Members and Auditors held a private discussion prior to the formal meeting.   
 

01/21 02 Welcome and Apologies  
 

The chair opened the meeting and welcomed everyone, He introduced Martyn Tait 
Audit One Counter Fraud to the committee.  

 

01/21 03 Confirmation of Quoracy 
 

The meeting was declared quorate.  
 

01/21 04 Declarations of Interest 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
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01/21 05 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2021 and matters arising 
 

The minutes of the 20 January 2021 meeting were accepted by the committee as a 
true and accurate record. 
 

01/21 06 Action Log 
 

There were no outstanding actions to discuss.  
 

01/21 07 Chairman’s Business 
 

There was no chairman’s business to report.   
 

  01/21 08 CCG Matters 
 

i. Risk Assurance Framework/Risk Register Update 
 

Executive Risks 
 

• One new high strategic risk (2420) relating to the proposal to put the ICS 
on a statutory footing has been created.  The risk is scored as 12 A. 

• One new low operational risk (2437) to identify potential adverse impacts of 
a cyber-attack.  The risk is scored as 8 Green. 

• Operational risk (1896) has decreased from high (12 A) to low (8 G).  The 
risk relates to statutory safeguarding children requirements and GPs 
claiming for safeguarding children conference reports.  Named GPs are 
looking to include this as part of the primary care plus which commences in 
April 2021. 

CCG Risks 
 

• Risk (2346) has decreased from high (12 A) to low (6 G). The risk concerns 
the suspension of face-to-face safeguarding training to primary care due to 
COVID-19 social distancing requirements.  The training is being delivered 
virtually and will be reviewed in six months. 

The committee referred to risk 2437, scored 8 green, and commented that a cyber-
attack could be catastrophic for the NHS, it was suggested therefore that stronger 
controls be in place and the risk be rated 10 amber. 

NH agreed to speak to NECS I.T. to look again at the rating for risk 2437. 

CB assured the committee that the toolkit process together with the support from 
NECS should give them confidence, he referred to the self-assessment process and 
audit, which he said was more thorough than it had ever been. 

Risk Assurance Framework/Risk Register was accepted by the committee  
 
CD and CS joined the meeting to present item 11 Integrated Delivery Report which 
had been moved up the agenda 
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ii. Dates and Draft Cycle of Business 2021/22 
 

NH presented the Dates and Draft Cycle of Business 2021/22 which is produced 
annually and informs the committee of business for the coming year.   
 
The Draft Cycle of Business 2021/22 was accepted by the committee 
 

i. CFO Update Report  
 
JC gave an update to the committee outlining key highlights from the CFO report.  
 

Aged Debt 
With regard to the aged debt with Newcastle Council, it was reported that invoices 
are being worked through and are expected to be cleared for the year end. 
 
QIPP Update/Resource Releasing Initiatives 
Block contracts had hampered the CCGs ability to drive through some of the 
intended QIPP schemes with providers, however there were areas of efficiencies 
outside the block contracts which would continue to be delivered. 
 
Transition Arrangements 
In relation to measures put in place around integrated care systems and next steps, 

it was reported that a number of transition work streams groups have been 

established at various levels both regionally and within the ICS.  Similar working 

groups were looking at these issues within the ICP. Six areas were being looked at.  

 

1 ICS Financial Resources and Management – including such matters as 
capital and revenue policies and allocations, delegations, etc.  

2 Financial Planning – including such matters as financial planning for 2022/23 
and beyond, approaches to commissioning and contracting, roles of provider 
collaboratives, budget setting for HQ/Place teams and functions etc 

3 Transition Management – including such matters as cessation or merger? 
Business transfer agreements, closing and opening balances of assets and 
liabilities etc.  

4 People and OD – including such matters as team structures and skill sets, 
measures, training and education, etc. 

5 Provider Collaborative Development – including matters such as how many 
and legal form, key roles and responsibilities, how will they be resourced and 
held to account? 

6 Financial Improvement – including such matters as escalation and 
assurance, recovery regimes, etc. 

 

The Audit Committee, Executive and Governing Body will be kept apprised of policy 

and implementations plans as they emerge from NHSE/I and the ICS.  

 
ii. Presentation –  “So what’s the big deal about a global pandemic?” 
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BC gave a presentation to the committee which gave members food for thought  
around the covid pandemic. 
 
01/21  9i Audit One – Counter Fraud Progress Report 

Martyn Tait presented the Counter Fraud Progress Report with headlines for the 
period August 2020 to February 2021. 
 
STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE  

• Fraud prevention guide impact assessment - The NHS Counter Fraud 
Authority’s (NHSCFA) fraud prevention guide impact assessment (FPGIA) 
had been completed on behalf of the CCG. The completion of this 
document helps the NHSCFA to measure the impact of 13 fraud prevention 
notices (FPN) and quick guides issued towards the end of 2020. A report 
will be issued on how these have impacted across organisations and the 
NHS. 

• Self-Review Tool (SRT) - engagement has taken place.  A draft copy will 
be available once the portal is opened for review and hopefully approval. 

• Briefings –had taken place with the CFO and Audit chair with regard to 
Government Counter Fraud Functional Standard and how the existing 
standards for commissioners map across to the new requirements of the 
Functional Standard. A cross government regime will come into place from 
1 April 2021 and 12 standards will be worked across in place of the current 
26. 
 

INFORM & INVOLVE 

• Fraud Awareness -Unfortunately there has been little fraud awareness 
due to challenges this year but newsletters and e learning have continued. 
International Fraud Awareness Week (IFAW) ran from 15 to 21 November 
2020. Payslip messages had been sent to raise staff awareness of Audit 
One together with instructions on how to report any concerns in relation to 
fraud.  
 

PREVENT & DETER 

• Investigation Work – As a result of previous proactive and investigation 
work by the counter fraud team, recommendations for further action and/or 
process improvements at the organisation have been made and accepted.  
Outstanding work had been cleared. Recommendations will be 
implemented across the CCG. 

• Fraud alerts - 10 alerts have issued including payment diversion fraud, 
telephone invoice scams, salary diversion as well as in response to Fraud 
Prevention Notices issued by the NHSCFA. Checks had been completed 
within CCG with nothing to report to date. 

• Cyber Fraud –Examples of cyber fraud, suspected to be from Russia had 
been reported. In one case an NHS member of staff had their email cloned 
and their salary diverted. 

• NFI Data Matches -the Cabinet Office released the biennial NFI data 
matches. The CCG has 1089 matches across 12 data sets. The CFS will 
be reviewing these using a risk-based approach in conjunction with the 
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CCG. With regard to payroll matches, the plan is to sift spring/summer and 
report in September if any issues are identified. 

• Proactive Reviews- 4 completed.  2019/20 work had been delayed due to 
the pandemic.  No frauds had been identified to date. 

HOLD TO ACCOUNT – INVESTIGATIONS   

• 3 new referrals during period, 2 closed due to no fraud against the NHS, 1 
referral opened and forwarded to Northumbria Police. 

• Long standing case – CPS are meeting the head of operations tomorrow 
(2nd case conference) and progress is being made in terms of the 
investigation.  JC will be apprised of progress with CPS.  Case decision to 
be made in terms of prosecution. 

 
The report was accepted by committee. 

9ii  Internal Audit Progress Report 

AW reported on progress made against the plan following reporting earlier difficulties 
receiving requested information.  
 

• 4 reports have been issued with substantial assurance  

• Of the 4 audits in progress, one is at review stage, once field work is finished 
and few points cleared will be issued in draft. 

• 3 remaining audits, DSP Toolkit (work underway), ICP audit (being carried out 
across Northumberland, Newcastle/Gateshead and North Tyneside), CHC 
(looking at hospital discharge scheme). Testing to take place soon and 
everything is on track to be completed as planned in April 2021. 

• 1st Draft of Head of Internal Audit Opinion issued and no issues have been 
identified from work to date. Submission date to NHS England/Improvement is 
12 March 2021. The report is issued with an assurance level of ‘substantial’ 
which is not expected to change. 

• Planning 2021/22 -No detailed plan as yet but way forward agreed with CFOs. 
Days will be separated between core assurance and non-core assurance.  

• days for core areas will remain similar to last year, but there will be some 
rebalancing of resource to reflect enhanced DSPT requirements 

• days for non-core areas are unallocated at this stage but will be held to 
review/support emerging governance arrangements as ICS arrangements 
mature and for any emerging issues that arise during the coming year. 

• Next years’ time, Primary Care Commissioning to be looked at but PCN’s to 

be considered 

• CHC is a core area with different aspects covered cyclically. For 2021-22 it 

was suggested supporting counter fraud to look at payments in relation to 

CHC across all of the CCGs 

In reply to a query from JC in regarding the DSP Toolkit, CB informed the meeting 
that problems encountered obtaining evidence from NECS the situation had eased 
and a productive meeting taken place at the beginning of the week.  Discussions are 
continuing. 
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JC commented that the most pressing concern was to close down the CCG and 
hand on good set of balances. 
 
 
 
9iii Head of Audit Opinion 

Minor change made – had been submitted as required by 12 March 2021 with 

substantial assurance. 

9iv Internal Audit Charter 

The charter sets out relationship with the CCG and how we will work together, and  

has been produced using new branding for Audit One. 3 changes have been made 

and these have been summarised for information. 

The committee queried if 12 months’ notice of withdrawing from the consortium in 

March 2022 was required for Auditors? 

JC replied that this had been an issue when PCTs ceased and to be prudent it may 

be worth doing this however he suggested that this would be one of the transition 

issues which the working group would be looking at. 

01/21  10 i     External Audit - Audit Strategy Memorandum 

CW presented the key items note from Mazars’ Audit Strategy Memorandum for the 

year ending March 31 2021. 

Accounts 

The audit approach in relation to the accounts this year is not fundamentally different 
to last year given there have been no significant changes to underlying 
requirements. The deadline for submitting accounts for this year is 15 June 2021. 
It is planned to have work fundamentally completed on the accounts by the end of 

May 2021. However, as was the case last year, it will not be possible to conclude the 

Audit at this point as NHSE will not be reopening the ledger until 10 June 2021. 

Nevertheless, at this stage we anticipate meeting the 15 June 2021 deadline. 

Audit Risks   
Management Override (significant risk) – Mazars will continue to focus on areas of 
management judgment, material estimates, journals testing and consideration of any 
‘unusual transactions’. 
 

Prescribing Accrual (enhanced risk) - Last year the CCG included the actual figure 
for February and an estimate for March in the accounts instead of the usual estimate 
for both February and March. Subject to timing, this may also be the case this year. 
Testing will be carried out in line with the actual position for 2020/21. 

Value for Money (VFM)  
Mazars’ assessment has not yet been fully completed due to the timing of the 
guidance. However, it is anticipated that the annual audit letter will include findings 
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on VFM and will be issued at the same time as the annual report and accounts by 
the 15 June 2021.  
  

 

Fees  
An increase has been agreed with JC and the CCG.  The rise is consistent across 
CCGs and is due to amended Code of Audit Practice requirements, most notably in 
relation to VFM. 
  
On Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS) work, Mazars has included a 
proposed 2020/21 fee at this stage, based upon 2019/20 requirements. However, 
this is subject to NHSE&I requirements for 2020/21 which are not yet available. 
 

Independence  

CW highlighted that the only area of work undertaken outside of the ‘core audit’ 
related to work in relation to MHIS which is an audit related assurance service. 

Work done in relation to other bodies was also highlighted with no threats to 

independence noted 

01/21  11i      Finance and Performance-Integrated Delivery Report 
 
CD, and CS joined the meeting for item 11i only, and gave an update to the committee 

on the current Integrated Delivery Report. 

Recovery 

CD reported an improving picture. With pressures starting to ease for trusts and work 

had started regarding re-mobilising staff. 

➢ Current Covid pressures stabilising recovery 
➢ RTT improvement plateauing 
➢ National programme for clinical validation of waiting lists continues – 

prioritisation 
➢ Prioritisation of urgent and cancer patients 
➢ Mutual Aid - NUTH  
➢ Focus on maximising capacity incl IS usage 
➢ Increase in 52 wk waiters -Harm reviews being carried out for patients waiting 

over 52 weeks. 
➢ Ophthalmology & Orthopaedics pressures 

 
Recovery Schemes 

➢ Cataract surgical centre due to open in March monthly capacity circa 1000.   
➢ Expect reduction 1000 52 week waiters by end April dependant on patients 

wanting to present 
➢ Independent sector usage   
➢ Endoscopy additional sessions at GH and NUTH 
➢ Dermatology additional sessions at NUTH  
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➢ Chemo day unit capacity - 7 days NUTH  
➢ Breast clinical additional lists Gateshead   

 
Contract update 
CS Gave a brief update to the committee regarding contracts 

➢ All regular contract arrangements suspended wef 1st April 2020 
➢ PbR suspended and replaced by block contracts 
➢ Q1 2021/22 Block contracts to be retained 
➢ Focus on supporting providers with the restoration of services in line with the 

recent planning letter. 
➢ Activity incentive scheme withdrawn 
➢ Independent sector Framework and Q1 activity plans 

 
Activity incentive scheme 

➢ Elec, OP/DC procs : November target 90% - Actual  82% (74%) 
➢ MRI/CT and endoscopy procedures,: October target  100% - Actual 89% % 

(91%)  
➢ First outpatient attendances and follow-ups (face to face or virtually) : October 

target 100% - Actual 106%  (102%.) 
 
Month 10 – Forecast position (1) 
JMc in the absence of Phil Argent, gave an update to the committee on the current 
month 10 financial position. 

➢ The forecast outturn reported at Month 10 is an in-year pressure of £5,296k. 
➢ This is a £9.5m reduction from the pressure reported at month  (£14.9m) is 

largely due to the provision of funding allocations to cover Hospital Discharge 
costs for Months 7-8, together with some review of in year costs.  

➢ HDP costs incurred are reimbursed centrally, however until an additional 
allocation is received these costs are reported as a pressure.  The Month 10 
forecast position includes actual/forecast costs for months 9-12 but excludes 
funding for this. 

➢ Excluding the remaining HDP funding gap, the remaining position reflects a 
forecast underspend of £2m, largely relating to reduced costs reported on 
non-NHS acute providers and Continuing Healthcare.  This will continue to be 
reviewed for the remaining months of the financial year. 
 
JC confirmed that the CCG would fulfil its statutory obligation of breaking even 
in the coming year. 

 
01/21 12 Any Other Business  

 
It was agreed that the IDR report be moved up the agenda going forward to enable 
discussion around issues raised from the report.   

 
MB asked JC to pass on the committees thanks to CS and CD for their work on the 
IDR which it was agreed was a useful, comprehensive document.  

 
MB announced that this was the last meeting AW would be attending.  The 
committee thanked AW for her work and assistance, and wished her good luck in her 
new role. 
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The meeting closed at 16.00 p.m. 

 
01/21 13 Dates of next and future meetings 

• Wednesday 28 April 2021 (Audit Committee Workshop) 

• Friday 21 May 2021 
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Enclosure 13.1(d)1 

Minutes of a meeting of the 
Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

Tuesday 27 April 2021 
 

Due to Covid-19, the PCCC met via a video conference 
 

Present: 
Members:  
Mr Jeff Hurst Lay Member (Chair) 
Dr Georgina Butler GP Clinical Director 
Ms Jill McGrath Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
Dr Dominic Slowie Medical Director 
Dr Lynn Wilson Director of Gateshead System 
 

In attendance: 

 

Mr John Costello Gateshead Health and Wellbeing Board 
Ms Philippa Dodds Portfolio Manager – Primary Care Delivery 
Ms Ros Goode Commissioning Project Lead, Primary Care 
Ms Michelle Stamp Newcastle Wellbeing for Life Board 

 
04/21 01 Welcome and Apologies for Absence 

 

 Apologies received (members) from Jackie Cairns (Director of Newcastle 
System), Bill Cunliffe (Secondary Care Clinician) and Oliver Wood (Lay 
Member). 

 
 Apologies received (in attendance) from Siohban O'Neil (Newcastle 

Gateshead Healthwatch) and David Steel (NHS England). 
  

04/21 02 Confirmation of Quoracy 
 

The Committee was confirmed as quorate. 
 

04/21 03 Declarations of Interest 
 

Declarations of interest documentation had been circulated with the agenda. 
It was noted that Dr Georgina Butler, as a GP, had an interest regarding item 
7 Annual Health Checks for People with a Learning Disability. The item is an 
update on the CCG achievement level and therefore no action required 
regarding the conflict. There were no further declarations of interest relating to 
items on the agenda. 
 

04/21 04 Draft Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 30 March 2021 
 

  The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record. 
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04/21 05 Action Log 
 

 03/21 07 Annual Health Checks for People with a Learning Disability – 
item included on today's agenda. Complete 

 
04/21 06 Primary Care Co-Commissioning Budget Update 
 

 Jill McGrath provided a verbal update on the Primary Care Co-Commissioning 
budget. 

 
 The pre-audit outturn for 2020/21 is underspend of £25k on the budget (slightly 

less than previously indicated due to some late adjustment on the rent review). 
 
 Work is ongoing on the 2021/22 financial plan for the whole ICS (Integrated 

Care System) with a deadline of 6 May. It is expected that the Primary Care 
allocation will be as anticipated and, in keeping with the majority of the NHS 
Framework, is initially a 6-month allocation. Guidance is awaited regarding the 
basis of the budget allocation for the second half of the year. 

 
 A detailed proposal for the Primary Care Co-Commissioning budget will be 

provided at the May PCCC. 
 
 Committee acknowledged the work and planning to commit and deploy the 

budget as fully as possible thus allowing the greatest opportunity for Primary 
Care services to be delivered to patients. The small surplus is a strong position 
to end the year. The valuable support of colleagues at NHS England was also 
acknowledged. 

 
 The Committee noted and accepted the budget update. 
 

04/21 07  Annual Health Checks for People with a Learning Disability  
 

 Following the summary report presented at the April PCCC meeting, Dominic 
Slowie provided a verbal update on the end of year position. 

 
 The Direct Enhanced Service (DES) for Learning Disability Annual Health 

Checks established a target that 75% of people with a learning disability on a 
GP register would receive a health check. For a number of years, nationally, 
this has been an elusive target to reach. Due to the added difficulties arising 
from the Covid pandemic, the achievement level for this year was lowered to 
67% with emphasis on achieving this target in recognition that people with a 
learning disability have additional vulnerabilities and premature mortality. 

 
 With the national guidance and a great deal of work from CCG staff in 

providing support material, webinars and discussing the challenges faced, 
there was a concerted effort across the CCG to achieve the target. 

 
 The CCG end of year achievement was 78% overall, with Gateshead 82% and 

Newcastle 74% - both above the national target. Only 15 practices fell below 
the target and 3 achieved 100%. All practices have been informed of their end 
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of year achievement against the target and additional support offered, if 
required. 

 
With an additional target set for Primary Care Networks (PCNs) of 80%, as 
part of the Improvement and Impact Fund, it was reported that 6 PCNs 
achieved over 80%. 
 
It was noted that 2,579 people with a learning disability had received a 
comprehensive health check with a number of additional health problems 
identified for onward referral or support. The health checks, which included the 
opportunity for remote consultations, have been well received by patients.  

 
 The Committee noted the update for information, recognising the success of 

the scheme and the ambition to build further for next year. 
  

04/21 08  Internal Audit – Primary Medical Care Commissioning 
 

  Ros Goode presented the Audit One internal audit report on the Compliance 
Review of Primary Medical Care Commissioning issued 30 March 2021. 

 
 The CCG has responsibility to ensure General Practice in Newcastle and 

Gateshead is sustainable and provides high quality and safe care to the 
population within the available budgets. This audit, commenced in July 2020, 
has looked in particular at finance and governance in Primary Care. 

 
 The conclusion of the report is that governance, risk management and control 

arrangements provide 'substantial assurance' that risks identified are 
managed effectively; and compliance with the control framework was found to 
be taking place. This assurance level aligns to the NHS England assurance 
category of ‘full assurance’. 

 
  There was one minor, low priority finding identified relating to Private PCCC 

minutes not currently being presented to Private Governing Body meetings. 
 
  The Committee noted and welcomed the outcome and acknowledged thanks 

to those involved in providing information for the audit. 
 
04/21 09 NGCCG Primary Care Network DES 2021-22 Sign up 
 

  Primary Care Networks (PCNs) were established in 2019 and annually NHS 
England request notification of any changes to the structure of the PCNs and 
that Practices are willing to continue to sign up to the Network Contract 
Directed Enhanced Service (DES). 

 
 Philippa Dodds presented the report outlining the current known changes to 

PCNs in terms of Core Network Membership as well as other relevant 
changes. Practices will remain signed up to the Network DES for 2021/22 
unless they inform the CCG by 30 April 2021 that they wish to opt out. There 
is currently no indication that any will be withdrawing. 
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  Following the deadline, NHS England will be notified of the changes outlined 
in the paper. Should there be any further changes to PCNs prior to the 
deadline, PCCC will be updated at the May 2021 meeting. 

 
  The Committee noted the contents of the paper and the sign-up status of the 

PCNs listed in Appendix 2. 
 

04/21 10  Covid Vaccination Programme Update 
 

 Lynn Wilson provided an update on the vaccination programme. 
 
 The roll-out of the programme continues to show a positive impact on infection 

rates - there was a very slight increase last week, as expected, due to return 
to schools. In Gateshead the infection rate is 17.3 per 100,000 and there have 
been no positive Covid cases at the QE Hospital for over a week. 

 
 In addition to the vaccinations provided at the larger sites, Gateshead has 

delivered 130,000 vaccinations to date. 
 
 There is a similar positive position in Newcastle with vaccinations continuing 

through Cohorts 10 – 12. The national aim is to deliver to all Cohorts by July 
2021 and Newcastle and Gateshead are well on target to do this. 
 
The Committee received and noted the update for information. 
 

04/21 11  Any Other Business 
 

 There was no further business. 
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Enclosure 13.1(d)2 

Minutes of a meeting of the 
Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

Tuesday 25 May 2021 
 

Due to Covid-19, the PCCC met via a video conference 
 

Present: 
Members:  
Mr Jeff Hurst Lay Member (Chair) 
Dr Georgina Butler GP Clinical Director 
Ms Jackie Cairns Director of Newcastle System 
Ms Jill McGrath Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
Dr Dominic Slowie Medical Director 
Dr Lynn Wilson Director of Gateshead System 
 

In attendance: 

 

Mr John Costello Gateshead Health and Wellbeing Board 
Ms Ros Goode Commissioning Project Lead, Primary Care 
Ms Michelle Stamp Newcastle Wellbeing for Life Board 
Ms Siobhan O'Neil Newcastle and Gateshead Healthwatch 
Mr David Steel NHS England 

 
05/21 01 Welcome and Apologies for Absence 

 

 Apologies received (members) from Bill Cunliffe (Secondary Care Clinician) 
and Oliver Wood (Lay Member). 

 
 Apologies received (in attendance) from Philippa Dodds (Portfolio Manager, 

Primary Care Delivery). 
  

05/21 02 Confirmation of Quoracy 
 

The Committee was confirmed as quorate. 
 

05/21 03 Declarations of Interest 
 

Declarations of interest documentation had been circulated with the agenda. 
There were no further declarations of interest relating to items on the agenda. 
 

05/21 04 Draft Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 27 April 2021 
 

  The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record. 
 

05/21 05 Action Log 
 

 There are no outstanding actions. 
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05/21 06 Primary Care Co-Commissioning Budget Update 

 
 Jill McGrath presented the report, jointly prepared with Gillian Wood from NHS 

England, highlighting the key points in the proposed Primary Care budget for 
the period April – September 2021/22. 

 
  Consistent with the rest of the financial framework for the NHS this year, 

funding has been allocated for the first 6 months only (April to September 
2021). The report also set out expected funding for the full 12 months. 

 
  The report outlined the main areas to be highlighted in determining the detailed 

budgets and the associated risks and mitigations. Key risks relate to 
emergency support for practices due to pressures, increased premises costs, 
and population growth higher than planned. 

 
  There is a contingency fund against potential pressures of 0.5% and also 

uncommitted funds available. Further work to propose plans to best utilise 
uncommitted funds to support Primary Care across Newcastle and Gateshead 
is continuing. 

 
  There is also the risk of non-recurrent slippage which could result in 

underspend. 
  
  In discussion it was noted: 

• There is a potential risk of significant non-recurrent and recurrent slippage. 

• The pressures in Primary Care are high with an expectation of further 
increased pressure this year. 

• The need to ensure the budget is fully utilised in Primary Care for the care 
of patients across Newcastle and Gateshead. 

• Work needs to begin soon to consider the opportunities to commit funds to 
avoid a surplus, in particular noting the move to the Integrated Care 
System at the end of the financial year. 
 

  The Committee: 

• noted the anticipated full year funding allocation for primary medical 
services in 2021/22 and the financial impact of the contract changes; 

• noted the impact of temporary financial arrangements for CCGs providing 
funding for the first 6 months of 2021/22; 

• noted the potential risks and mitigations outlined in the report; 

• unanimously approved the budget for April – September 2021 at £39.9m 
as outlined. 

 
05/21 07  Covid Vaccination Programme Update 
 

  Newcastle: 

• The current 7-day infection rate per 100,000 is 48.9 (slightly up from 
43) 

• Incidences are predominantly in the age group 11 – 20 years 

• Some incidences in the age group 30 – 50 years 
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• No Covid cases in hospital 

• Vaccinations – currently over 159,000 first doses and 8,000 second 
doses administered 

• With a large younger population, plans are in place to ensure delivery 
of all first dose vaccinations to eligible populations in line with national 
trajectories 

• 43 cases of the Indian variant identified (travel related) 
 
 Gateshead: 

• Current infection rate 21 per 100,000 

• 43% increase in the last 7 days (equating to 13 people) 

• 1 Covid-positive patient in hospital – not in ITU and not elderly 

• No new Care Home outbreaks 

• Vaccinations – 170,000 administered 

• CBC Health Ltd have been contracted to deliver Cohorts 10 - 12 in 
place of Outer West practices 

• No cases of the Indian variant identified  
 
 The Committee received and noted the update for information. 

 
05/21 08  Any Other Business 
 

 There was no further business. 
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Dear Members 

Conclusion of pending matters– Audit Completion Report NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical 
Commissioning Group 2020/21 audit 

As required by International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are writing to confirm matters 
arising that were marked as outstanding within our Audit Completion Report presented on 25 May 
2021.  The outstanding matters that we described in our Audit Completion Report and the conclusions 
reached are detailed in the table below, supported by the following appendices:   

 Appendix 1 includes the summary of misstatements reported in our earlier Audit Completion 
Report, with changes highlighted; and  

 Appendix 2 includes the updated auditor’s report, with a final ‘delay to certificate’ paragraph 
set out below. 

 

Outstanding matter Conclusion reached 

Transaction testing, 
including payables 

There are no new issues arising we are required to report to you. 

Cut-off testing There are no new issues arising we are required to report to you.  

Disclosures There are no new issues arising we are required to report to you. 

Consolidation schedules  There are no issues arising from our audit work on the consolidation 
schedules.  

 

http://www.mazars.co.ukm/
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Outstanding matter Conclusion reached 

Review and closure 
processes 

We discussed subsequent events with management and reviewed 
available post balance sheet information at the point we signed the 
audit opinion.  

There are no new matters arising which we are required to report to 
you.  

Delay to certificate We cannot issue our formal ‘certificate’ until we have completed our 
VFM work, including issuing the VFM report. Our auditor’s report, 
including a final paragraph ‘delay to certificate’ is attached at 
Appendix 2. 

 

If you wish to discuss these or any other points, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

Cameron Waddell 

Partner 

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

 

  



 

3 

 

Appendix 1: summary of misstatements – changes shown in blue italics 

We set out below the misstatements identified for adjustment during the course of the audit, above the 
level of trivial threshold of £0.299 million. 

Unadjusted misstatements: the table below shows the misstatements identified during the course of 
our audit which management has assessed as not being material either individually or in aggregate to 
the financial statements and does not currently plan to adjust. 

Adjusted misstatements: there are no misstatements that have been adjusted by management 
during the course of the audit that we are required to report to you.  

  SOCNE SOFP 

  Dr £000s Cr £000s Dr £000s Cr £000s 

1 Dr: payables 

Cr: operating expenditure 

  

-517 

517  
 

Being the factual difference between the prescribing estimate for March and the actual, which 
was available late during the audit. This impacts also on the disclosure in the Payables note, 
with an adjustment between ‘payables non-NHS accruals’ and ‘payables non-NHS payables’. 

Update to correct entries reflected in the Audit Completion Report – amount remains 
unchanged.  

 Total unadjusted 
misstatements 

 -517 517  

 

Disclosure amendments 

Amendments have been made to the financial statements following our audit, including the following:  

 Various minor presentational points.  

 Note 4 operating expenditure: addition of narrative at the foot of the table in respect of the 
non-audit fee work (Mental Health Investment Standard related). 

 Note 13 related party transactions: minor update to disclosures.  

 Note 14 events after the balance sheet date: amendment to this note, to clarify there are no 
post balance sheet events arising to date. Narrative included in this note in respect of the 
February 2021 White Paper proposals has been added to the going concern accounting 
policy. 

 Remuneration and Staff report. There have been updates to a number of areas including: 

o Amendment to the fair pay disclosure. 

Unadjusted disclosure amendments 

 disclosure notes 2 and 4 include a split of expenditure and income into programme and 
administration, which the Government Accounting Manual states should not be included. 

 the financial statements contain a number of non-material disclosures and accounting policies 
which the Government Accounting Manual states should not be included.  

 the accounting policy for financial liabilities does not explicitly state how the CCG’s financial 
liabilities have been measured, however, the CCG is satisfied this is clear from the financial 
liability disclosure note, which sets out the amortised cost basis of measurement.  
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Appendix 2: Independent auditor’s report to the Governing Body of 

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group 

Report on the audit of the financial statements  

Opinion on the financial statements 

We have audited the financial statements of NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning 
Group (‘the CCG’) for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Statement of 
Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in 
Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including the 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted 
by HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual 2020/21 as contained in the Department of Health and 
Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2020/21, and the Accounts Direction issued by the NHS 
Commissioning Board with the approval of the Secretary of State as relevant to Clinical 
Commissioning Groups in England.  

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the CCG as at 31 March 2021 and of its net 
expenditure for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care 
Group Accounting Manual 2020/21; and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the CCG in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s 
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Accountable Officer’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the CCG's ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements 
are authorised for issue.  

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Accountable Officer with respect to going concern 
are described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
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information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on regularity 

In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reflected in the financial statements 
have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to 
the authorities which govern them. 

Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities the Accountable 
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. The Accountable Officer is also responsible for ensuring the regularity of 
expenditure and income.  

The Accountable Officer is required to comply with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2020/21 and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless 
the CCG is informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another 
entity. The Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate 
for the CCG to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in 
accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and as required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect 
of irregularities, including fraud. Based on our understanding of the CCG, we identified that the 
principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the National Health Service Act 
2006 (as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012), and we considered the extent to which 
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. 

We evaluated the Accountable Officer’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the 
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks 
related to posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias 
through judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates, and significant one-off or 
unusual transactions and any unusual accounting policies.  

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance 
with laws and regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements. Our 
audit procedures included but were not limited to: 

 discussing with management, the Audit Committee and Governing Body, the policies and 
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations; 
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 communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and 
remaining alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and 

 considering the risk of acts by the CCG which were contrary to applicable laws and 
regulations, including fraud.  

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to: 

 making enquiries of management, the Audit Committee and Governing Body on whether they 
had knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; 

 gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud; 

 discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and 

 addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing journal 
entry testing. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility 
for the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management, the Audit 
Committee and Governing Body. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection of 
irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the 
override of internal controls. 

We are also required to conclude on whether the Accountable Officer’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.  We performed our work in 
accordance with Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statement and regularity of public sector bodies in 
the United Kingdom, and Supplementary Guidance Note 01, issued by the NAO in April 2021.   

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description 
forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Report on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

Matter on which we are required to report by exception 

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we are not satisfied that the CCG has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2021. 

We have not completed our work on the CCG’s arrangements.  On the basis of our work to date, 
having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021, we have 
not identified any significant weaknesses in arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

We will report the outcome of our work on the CCG’s arrangements in our commentary on those 
arrangements within the Auditor’s Annual Report.  Our audit completion certificate will set out any 
matters which we are required to report by exception.  

Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer  

As explained in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s responsibilities, the Accountable Officer is 
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of the CCG’s resources. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 

We are required under section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy 
ourselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, and to report where we have not been able to satisfy ourselves 
that it has done so.  We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of 
the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
are operating effectively. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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We have undertaken our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion: 

 the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly prepared 
in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 2012; and 

 the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual 
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with 
the financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 

We are required to report to you if: 

 in our opinion the Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance issued by NHS 
England; or 

 we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; or 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 and schedule 7(1) of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014; or 

 we make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24 and schedule 7(2) of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

Use of the audit report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG, 
as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Governing Body of the CCG those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed. 

Delay in certification of completion of the audit 

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed the work 
necessary to satisfy ourselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness is its use of resources.  

 

 

 

Cameron Waddell, Key Audit Partner 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

The Corner House 
Bank Chambers 
26 Mosley Street 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
NE1 1DF 

Date 
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